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As a business practice, sustainable growth 
seeks to make more of the world’s people 
our customers—and to do so by developing 
markets that promote and sustain 
economic prosperity, social equity, and 
environmental integrity.

We pursue sustainable growth because 
it benefits our businesses and our 
shareholders. If one is looking for a new 
definition of corporate social responsibility, 
sustainable growth is it, and it is directly 
related to business self-interest.
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Ch. Muhammad Hussain Ch. Nazar Muhammad

The  story of ‘Servis’ begins in late 1930s    
when a group of three young graduates 

from college, started exploring the possibility 
of doing business together instead of aspiring 
for secured jobs. These determined young 
men, Chaudhry Nazar Muhammad, Chaudhry 
Mohammad Husain, both hailing from villages 
in Gujrat and Chaudhry Muhammad Saeed from 
the neighboring district of Gujranwala, had scarce 
capital as they came from families with modest 
means. They pooled their personal savings, and 
started a small businesses of making Mosquito 
nets, minor steel products, leather chappals and 
eventually travel bags, hand bags and holdalls,  
made of canvas and leather largely for supply to 
the army. Their promising business, operating 
out of an apartment with four small rooms in 
Gawalmandi, Lahore,  received a serious setback 
at the end of World War II when the army stopped 
purchases and again in 1947 when subcontinent 
was partitioned into Pakistan and India.  Most of 
their market was lost as it was based in Indian 
Cities of Delhi, Bombay, Calcutta, Madras 
and Cawnpur. The money thus lost was never 
recovered. They were using a neutral name of 

Our History

Service Limited for their products, not revealing 
any particular religious identity under intense 
competition from people of other faiths. 

After independence, they started their business 
afresh and this time with production of slippers, 
commonly called chappals in Pakistan. The 
limitation of financial resources did not deter 
them.  They had experience of handling leather 
and canvas as well as handmade chappals. They 
established Service industries in 1953, converted 
to a Public Limited Company in 1959 and 
ultimately listed on the stock exchange in 1970. 

In 1954, they installed a shoe manufacturing 
plant at industrial area in Gulberg, Lahore, and 
started production in the same year. The industry 
started manufacturing various types of shoes. A 
few years earlier retail outlet had been started at 
the Mall Road under banner of Hilal Store, later 
converted into a Servis store.

At Gujrat, they acquired large piece of land 
and established one of the biggest industrial 
complexes in Punjab, manufacturing leather and 
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Ch. Muhammad Saeed

canvas footwear, canvas fabric, textile spinning 
and  eventually also bicycle tires and tubes.  

Humility, fairness and diligence were the core 
values held by our founders and these led to 
the phenomenal success of the group over the 
years. They were hugely focused on the impact 
of their enterprise on society as a whole. They 
remained extremely particular about payment of 
taxes to the national exchequer,  and in looking 
after the interests of shareholder and workforce 
alike. The importance to society of creating 
employment opportunities, improve employees’ 
qualifications, develop backward areas and 
establish an export market stemmed from their 
vision and directed their growth. 

In the public sphere, they were the pioneers and 
founders of the Lahore Chamber of Commerce 
and Industry, the Federation of Chambers of 
Commerce and Industry and the Lahore Stock 
Exchange.

Ch Nazar Muhammad and Ch Muhammad 
Saeed were both Presidents of the Lahore 

Chamber, and Ch Nazar Muhammad also served 
as the President of the Federation of Chambers 
of Commerce and Industry as well as Chairman 
of the newly established Lahore Stock Exchange. 
He founded the Businessmen Hospital Trust and 
through it became the founding Chairman of the 
Shalamar Hospital.

Ch Mohammad Husain was a great promoter of 
cricket and became President for the Board of 
Control for Cricket in Pakistan.

Today, the production side of the company has 
developed  into the Service Industries Limited 
(SIL) which has world class shoes, tyres and tubes 
and specialized rubber production facilities in 
Gujrat, Muridke and in Negombo, Sri lanka. SIL 
is the leading exporter of footwear from Pakistan 
as well as tyres and tubes. Our manufacturing 
facilities are spread over three locations, with two 
in Punjab and one in Sindh. 

A humble venture of three friends has grown into 
a group that employs almost thirteen thousand 
people and makes a difference in the lives of 
millions of people every day. 
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To become the region's leading supply chain 
company by achieving consistent and sustained 
growth and delivering value to its business partners 
and its people.

VISION

Our Vision and Mission

MISSION
Strive continuously to exceed customer 
expectations in quality, delivery and service by 
developing top talent in the company and in 
its supply chain.
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To become the most trusted footwear atelier for 
our partners around the world through a culture 
of inclusivity, innovation, transparency and agility; 
and to deliver the highest value to our employees, 
shareholders and society.

To add value to our partners around the world by 
delivering the finest quality through continuous 
improvement.
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Company Information

“Great works are 
performed, not by strength, 
but by perseverance ”
– Samuel Johnson

Board of Directors
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Mr. Azmat Ali Ranjha 
Chairman 

Mr. Hassan Javed 
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Bankers
MCB Bank Limited
Habib Bank Limited
Faysal Bank Limited
Soneri Bank Limited
Allied Bank Limited
Askari Bank Limited
Meezan Bank Limited
MCB Islamic Bank Limited
Habib Metropolitan Bank
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) 
Limited
Samba Bank Limited
Bank Al Habib Limited
Dubai Islamic Bank Limited
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited
Bank of Punjab - Islamic
United Bank Limited

Auditors
M/s. Riaz Ahmad & Company, 
Chartered Accountants

Legal Advisor
Muhammad Ashfaq, 
Advocate High Court, 
of M/s. Bokhari Aziz & Karim
2–A, Block–G, Gulberg–II, Lahore.

Registered Office
Servis House,
2–Main Gulberg, Lahore–54662.
Tel:+92-42-35751990-96
Fax:+92-42-35710593   
 
Shares Registrar
M/s. Corplink (Pvt.) Limited
Wings Arcade, 1–K
Commercial, Model Town, Lahore
Tel:+92–42– 35916719, 
           35839182 
Fax: +92–42–35869037

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
Stock Exchange Symbol SGF

Factory
10-KM Muridke, Sheikhupura Road, 
Muridke

Web Presence
www.serviceglobalfootwear.com
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Geographical Presence
Our products are available in more than twenty countries.

England

Panama

Chile

USA

Canada

Ireland

Sri Lanka

Japan

Australia

South Africa

Holland

Germany

France

Spain Italy

Croatia Romania

Russia
Denmark

Belgium

UAEK.S.A
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“Growth is never by mere 
chance; it is the result of 
forces working together ”
– James Cash Penney
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
About Service Footwear Global Limited (SGFL)
SGFL has been formed with the vision to become a socially conscious business following its parent group’s tradition of corporate giving. 
Over the last several decades, the Group has been involved in significant philanthropic undertakings in health and education. SGFL’s 
aim is to strive to serve its employees, customers, shareholders, communities and the environment. The intention is simple: to give 
back, share prosperity and help people build and grow in a sustainable way. In 2018, the Group (Service Industries Limited) decided 
to consolidate the delivery of this work by establishing an independent corporate foundation by the name of Servis Foundation (SF). 
SF, as the Group’s philanthropic arm, aims to deliver its CSR goals through a programmatic and targeted mechanism. In the coming 
years, it is anticipated that SF will shoulder much SGFL’s philanthropic efforts also. At the Group level, our portfolio of CSR & ethical 
business practices comprises internal initiatives, directly-owned projects and institutional contributions through Servis Foundation. 
For details on the CSR activities of the Group, refer to Service Industries Limited 2022 Annual Report.

We use the section in the Annual Report to share how we are managing and measuring progress against our CSR goals, as well as 
to respond broadly to stakeholder expectations in this area. The newly established SGFL envisions to take forward the Group’s CSR 
activities within current factory catchment i.e. Muridke, Sheikhupura. 

Environment
SGFL houses Asia’s first solar powered footwear manufacturing facility. The factory completed the installation of a 2MW Solar Power 
Park. It is spread over four acres of land, consisting of 5,699 solar panels with an annual power generation of 2,570 MWh, becoming 
the first solar powered footwear factory in Asia. The initiative is equivalent to planting 200 trees daily, reducing carbon dioxide 
emissions by 1,350 tons annually. This initial step on the road to go green gives SGFL’s customers the benefit to market their products 
as eco-friendly in an increasingly environmentally conscious global population. 

Industrial Relations 
SGFL is Business Social Compliance Initiative (BSCI) certified, promoting workplace conditions in accordance with human rights, ILO 
conventions and national labor law. Additionally, SGFL is a member of Sedex, ensuring our dedication to driving improvements in 
responsible and ethical business practices in the global supply chain, providing our family the best working conditions for increased 
productivity.

Inclusion and diversity
SGFL is proud to be an equal opportunity employer and encourages the participation of females and persons with special needs 
in the workforce. SGFL has taken steps to create a work environment conducive to females by dedicating separate production lines 
employing ~171 females.

Consumer protection measures
SGFL is endeavouring to ensuring a Quality Management System focused on consistently providing products that meet the requirements 
of customers and applicable statutory and regulatory rules. We have the following buyer-driven certifications of compliance: BSCI, 
Euro Centra, TCP- Scan, C-TPAT, Next, Jack & Jones, TCP-Social Compliance, Levis, Inditex-SLCP-Higg, and Rock Fall-Sedex. 

Contribution to national exchequer
SGFL has a multi-million Rupee annual contribution to the national exchequer on account of taxes, duties and levies. In 2022, SGFL 
contributed PKR 254 million to the government’s nation building efforts. 
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
Notice is hereby given that the 4th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of Service Global Footwear Limited (the Company) will be held on 
Friday, the April 28, 2023 at 10:00 a.m. at Shalimar Tower Hotel, Adjacent Servis House, 2 - Main Gulberg, Lahore, to transact the following 
business:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of Service Global Footwear Limited (the ‘Company’) for the year ended 
December 31, 2022, together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon and Chairman’s Review Report.

2. To approve the final cash dividend of Rs. 1 per share i.e. 10% as recommended by the Board of Directors in addition to the interim cash 
dividend of Rs. 2.50 per share i.e. 25% already paid to the shareholders of the Company making a total cash dividend of Rs. 3.50 per 
share i.e. 35% for the year ended December 31, 2022.

3. To appoint Auditors and to fix their remuneration. The members are hereby given notice that the Audit Committee and the Board of 
Directors have recommended the name of retiring auditors M/s. Riaz Ahmad & Company, Chartered Accountants for re-appointment as 
auditors of the Company.

Special Business:

4. To consider and if deemed fit and pass with or without modification, a resolution as Special Resolution, as proposed in the Statement 
of Material Facts, pursuant to the provisions of Section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 for renewal of the investment in the form of 
working capital loan of up to PKR 4.5 Billion (Rupees Four Billion Five Hundred Million Only) in Service Industries Limited, a holding 
/ associated company approved by the shareholders vide special resolution dated April 28, 2022 and expiring on June 30, 2023 for a 
further period of one year till June 30, 2024 with all other terms and conditions of the investment to remain unchanged.

 
5. To approve the circulation of the annual audited financial statements to the members through QR enabled code and weblink by passing 

an ordinary resolution proposed in the statement of material facts.

(Annexed to the notice being circulated to the shareholders is a statement of material facts and draft resolutions pertaining to special business 
to be transacted at the AGM).

  By Order of the Board 

Lahore                  WAHEED ASHRAF
April 07, 2023                  Company Secretary
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NOTES:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from April 18, 2023 to April 28, 2023 (both days inclusive). 
Transfers received in order by our Shares Registrar, M/s. Corplink (Private) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial, Model 
Town, Lahore by the close of business on April 17, 2023 will be considered in time for the purpose of entitlement of final 
cash dividend and to attend, speak and vote at the AGM.

2. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint another member as 
his / her proxy to attend and vote in place of him / her at the meeting. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at 
the Registered Office of the Company duly stamped and signed not less than 48 hours before the time of meeting. A proxy 
must be a member of the Company. Proxy Forms in Urdu and English languages are attached to the notice circulated to the 
shareholders.

3. Members who have deposited their shares into Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (“CDC”) will further have to 
follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan in Circular No 
1 of 2000.

A. For Attending the Meeting

a. In case of Individuals, the account holder and/or sub-account holder whose registration details are uploaded as 
per the CDC Regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original CNIC or, original Passport 
at the time of attending the Meeting.

b. In case of corporate entity, the Board’s resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of the nominee 
shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the Meeting.

B. For Appointing Proxies

a. In case of individuals, the account holder and/or sub-account holder whose registration details are uploaded as 
per the CDC Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per above requirements.

b. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons, whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned 
on the form.

c. Attested copies of the CNIC or the passport of beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy 
form.

d. The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the Meeting.

e. In case of corporate entity, the Board’s resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall be furnished 
(unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.

4. The members can also participate in the Annual General Meeting through video link facility.

 To attend the AGM through video link, members and their proxies are requested to register their following particulars by 
sending an e-mail at shareholders@servis.com. 
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Folio / CDC 
Account No.

No.  of
shares held

Name CNIC No. Cell No. Email address

 The video link and login credentials will be shared with the shareholders whose e-mails, containing all the requested 
particulars, are received at the given e-mail address by or before the close of business hours (5:00 p.m.) on April 17, 2023. 

5. In accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, it is mandatory for a listed Company to 
pay cash dividend to its shareholders only through electronic mode directly into bank account designated by the entitled 
shareholders. In order to receive dividends directly into their bank account, shareholders are requested to submit Electronic 
Credit Mandate directly to the shareholder’s Broker/Participant/CDC Account Services.

6. The Government of Pakistan has made certain amendments in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby different rates are 
prescribed for deduction of withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by the companies. These rates are as follows:

 For filers of income tax returns              15%
 For non-filers of income tax returns  30%

 To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @15% instead of 30% all the shareholders 
whose names are not entered into the Active Tax-payers List (ATL) provided on the website of FBR, despite the fact that they 
are filers, are advised to make sure that their names are entered into ATL before the date of payment of the cash dividend, 
otherwise tax on their cash dividend will be deducted @30% instead of 15%.

 In the case of shares registered in the name of two or more shareholders, each joint-holder is to be treated individually as 
either a filer or non-filer and tax will be deducted by the Company on the basis of shareholding of each joint-holder as may 
be notified to the Company in writing. If the share is not ascertainable then each account holder will be assumed to hold 
equal proportion of shares and the deduction will be made accordingly. Therefore, in order to avoid deduction of tax at a 
higher rate, the joint account holders are requested to provide the below details of their shareholding to the Share Registrar 
of the Company latest by the AGM date.

Folio / CDC Account 
No.

Name of
Shareholder

CNIC Shareholding
Total

Shares
Principal/Joint

Shareholder

 The corporate shareholders having CDC accounts are required to have their National Tax Number (NTN) updated with their respective 
participants, whereas corporate physical shareholders should send a copy of their NTN certificate to the Company or the Shares Registrar. 
The shareholders while sending NTN or NTN certificates, as the case may be, must quote company name and their respective folio 
numbers.

7. Procedure for E-Voting

a. In accordance with the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulation, 2018, (the “Regulations”) the right to vote through electronic voting 
facility and voting by post shall be provided to members of every listed company for, inter alia, all businesses classified as special 
business under the Companies Act, 2017 in the manner and subject to conditions contained in the Regulations.

b. Detail of e-Voting facility will be shared through e-mail with those members of the company who have valid cell numbers / e-mail 
addresses (Registered e-mail ID) available in the Register of Members of the Company by the end of business on April 17, 2023. 
Members who intend to exercise their right of vote through E-voting shall provide their valid cell numbers and email addresses on 
or before April 17, 2023.

c. Identity of the Members intending to cast vote through e-voting shall be authenticated through electronic signature or 
authentication for login.

Notice of Annual General Meeting
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d. Members shall cast vote for agenda item No. 4 and 5 online from April 25, 2023 till April 27, 2023 5:00 p.m.  Voting shall close on 
April 27, 2023, at 5:00 p.m. A vote once cast by a Member, shall not be allowed to be changed.

8. Procedure for Voting Through Postal Ballot

a. Members may alternatively opt for voting through postal ballot. For convenience of the members, Ballot Paper is annexed to this 
notice and the same is also available on the Company’s website www.serviceglobalfootwear.com to download.

b. The members must ensure that the duly filled and signed ballot paper, along with a copy of Computerized National Identity 
Card (CNIC) should reach the Chairman of the meeting through post at the Company’s registered address, Servis House, 2-Main 
Gulberg, Lahore, or email at chairman@servis.com one day before the AGM, i.e., on April 27, 2023 before 5:00 p.m. A postal ballot 
received after this time / date shall not be considered for voting. The signature on the Ballot Paper shall match with signature on 
the CNIC.

c. In accordance with the Regulation 11 of the Regulations, the Board of the Company has appointed M/s Riaz Ahmad & Company, 
Chartered Accountants, (a QCR rated audit firm) to act as the Scrutinizer of the Company for the special business to be transacted in 
the meeting and to undertake other responsibilities as defined in Regulation 11 of the Regulations.

9. A valid tax exemption certificate is necessary for exemption from the deduction of withholding tax under Section 150 of the Income 
Tax Ordinance, 2001. Members who qualify under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and wish to seek an exemption must provide a copy of 
their valid tax exemption certificate to the Shares Registrar prior to the date of book closure otherwise tax will be deducted according to 
applicable law. 

10. The Company has placed the Annual Report containing Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022, 
Auditors’ and Directors’ Reports thereon and Chairman’s Review Report on its website: www.serviceglobalfootwear.com.

11. Shareholders have passed an Ordinary Resolution in the Annual General Meeting held on April 19, 2021 to transmit annual report  
through CD/DVD/USB in compliance of directive of SRO 470(1)/2016 dated 31st May 2016. The annual report is being emailed to 
shareholders who have provided their email address in terms of Section 223 (6) of the Companies Act, 2017 and through CD to other 
shareholders who have not so far provided their email addresses to the Company. The shareholders who wish to receive hard copy of the 
aforesaid documents may send to the Company Secretary / Share Registrar, the Standard Request Form available on the website of the 
Company and the Company will supply hard copies of the aforesaid document to the shareholders on demand, free of cost.

12. For any query / problem / information, the investors may contact the Shares Registrar: Mr. Muhammad Akbar Moghal, Phone No. 
042-35839182, 35916714, 5916719, e-mail address: corplink786@gmail.com and / or the Company: Mr. Tahir Maqsood, Phone 
No. 042-35751990, email address: shareholders@servis.com.

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 CONCERNING THE SPECIAL BUSINESS TO BE TRANSACTED AT THE 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

This statement sets out the material facts concerning the Special Business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to 
be held on April 28, 2023.

Item No. 4 of the Agenda – Renewal of investment in the form of working capital loan up to PKR 4.5 Billion (Rupees Four Billion Five 
Hundred Million Only) in Service Industries Limited, a holding / associated company

The members of Service Global Footwear Limited (SGFL) in their Annual General Meeting held on April 28, 2022 had renewed the investment 
in the form of working capital loan of up to PKR 4.5 Billion (Rupees Four Billion Five Hundred Million Only) in Service Industries Limited (SIL), 
a holding / associated company, as and when required by SIL, for a further period of one year till June 30, 2023 pursuant to the requirements 
of Section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 at markup rate of 1 month KIBOR plus 5 bps, which shall not be less than the borrowing cost of the 
Company to be charged by SGFL on the amount of loan outstanding. An amount of PKR 377 Million is outstanding against this investment 
as on March 23, 2023.

Annual Report 2022 15



The tenor of the working capital loan will be expiring on June 30, 2023. It is now proposed to renew the investment in the form of working 
capital loan of up to PKR 4.5 Billion for a further period of one year till June 30, 2024. All other terms and conditions of the investment will 
remain unchanged. The renewal of the working capital loan facility is subject to approval of the shareholders of SGFL in accordance with the 
requirements of Section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017. 

Regulation No. 5(7) of the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017 issued by SECP 
vide SRO 1240(I)/2017 dated December 06, 2017 requires that the Company shall not extend to an associated company or associated 
undertaking any loan or advance as running finance, revolving line of credit or any other similar facility for a period beyond one year provided 
that members may approve renewal of such loan or advance pursuant to section 199 of the Act. Further, Section 199(4) of the Companies Act, 
2017 requires that no change in nature and terms and conditions of the investment shall be made except under the authority of a special 
resolution.

Accordingly, renewal of the working capital loan to Service Industries Limited is being presented to the members for approval through passing 
of special resolution to fulfill the requirements of the afore-mentioned law and regulations.

The Board of Directors of SGFL in their meeting held on March 30, 2023 has recommended the renewal of working capital loan of up to PKR 
4.5 Billion for a further period of one year till June 30, 2024 subject to approval of special resolution by the shareholders.

None of the Directors, sponsors, majority shareholders of the Company and their relatives have any interest, directly or indirectly, in the 
proposed special resolution, except as stated below: 

Service Global Footwear Limited do not hold any share in Service Industries Limited.

Chaudhry Ahmed Javed, Mr. Arif Saeed, Mr. Omar Saeed and Mr. Hassan Javed Directors of the Company, are also Directors of SIL. 
 
Following are their present shareholdings in SIL:

Name of Director Shareholding

Chaudhry Ahmed Javed  2,062,264

Mr. Arif Saeed and his spouse 5,136,666

Mr. Omar Saeed  4,765,824

Mr. Hassan Javed  9,064,524

Service Industries Limited (SIL), a holding / associated company, currently holds 79.75% shareholding in Service Global Footwear Limited. The 
shareholding of the Directors of Service Global Footwear Limited is as follows:

Name of Director Shareholding

Chaudhry Ahmed Javed 1

Mr. Arif Saeed 782,001

Mr. Omar Saeed 1,455,501

Mr. Hassan Javed 1

Mr. Azmat Ali Ranjha 1

Mr. Abdul Rashid Lone 1

Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash 1

Mr. Hassan Ehsan Cheema 250,001

Mr. Qadeer Ahmed Vaseer 200,001

Notice of Annual General Meeting
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The Service Global Footwear Limited (SGFL) and its sponsors and directors have no interest, directly or indirectly in the Company except as 
stated above.

The following resolutions are proposed to be passed as special resolutions, with or without any modification.

“Resolved that pursuant to the requirements of Section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017, approval of the members of Service Global 
Footwear Limited (the “Company”) be and is hereby accorded and the Company be and is hereby authorized to renew the investment 
of up to PKR 4.5 Billion (Rupees Four Billion Five Hundred Million) in the form of working capital loan in Service Industries Limited, 
a holding / associated company, approved by the shareholders vide special resolution dated April 28, 2022 and expiring on June 30, 
2023, for a further period of one year till June 30, 2024 with all other terms and conditions of the investment to remain unchanged."

Further resolved that Mr. Hassan Javed, Chief Executive Officer and / or Mr. Arif Saeed, and / or Mr. Omar Saeed, Directors of the 
Company be and is hereby singly empowered and authorized to undertake the decision of said investment as and when deemed 
appropriate and necessary in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders and to take all steps and actions necessary, 
incidental and ancillary including execution of any and all documents and agreements as may be required in this regard and to do all 
acts, deeds and things, that may be considered necessary or necessary for the purpose of implementing this resolution.”

Item No. 5 of the Agenda – To approve the circulation of the annual audited financial statements to the members through QR 
enabled code and weblink by passing an ordinary resolution proposed in the statement of material facts

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (“SECP) vide SRO 389(I)/2023 dated March 21, 2023 has allowed the listed companies 
to circulate the Annual Audited Financial Statements including Annual Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account, Auditor's Report and 
Directors Report, etc. ("annual audited financial statements”) to its members through QR enabled code and weblink. This will enable the 
company to use of technological advancements and cost saving.

The company shall circulate the annual audited financial statements through email in case email address has been provided by the member 
to the company and the consent of member to receive the copies through email is not required. 

The company shall send the complete financial statements with relevant documents in hard copy to the shareholders, at their registered 
addresses, free of cost, within one week, if a request has been made by the member on the standard request form available on the website 
of the company. 

The following resolution is proposed to be passed as ordinary resolution, with or without any modification

“Resolved that approval of the shareholders of Service Global Footwear Limited (the “Company”) be and is hereby accorded and the 
Company be and is hereby authorized to circulate the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company together with the reports 
and documents required to be annexed thereto under the Companies Act, 2017 through QR enabled code and weblink instead of 
circulation through CD/DVD/USB."

Further resolved that Mr. Hassan Javed, Chief Executive Officer and / or Mr. Arif Saeed, and / or Mr. Omar Saeed, Directors of the 
Company be and is hereby singly empowered and authorized to do all acts, deeds and things, take or cause to be taken all necessary 
action for the purposes of implementing this resolution.

None of the Directors have any interest, directly or indirectly, in the aforesaid special business.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
Statement under Rule 4(2) of the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017

Name of Investee Company Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited Service Industries Limited

Total Investment Approved Long term equity investment increased from Rs. 
2,175,215,000 to up to Rs. 2,525,215,000 for 
purchase of 35,000,000 shares.

-  Working capital loan of up to Rs. 4.5 
Billion for a period of one year till June 30, 
2023.

-  Long-term loan of Rs. 2.5 Billion for a 
period of six years till June 30, 2027.

Amount of Investment made to date An investment of Rs. 2,423,316,500 has been 
made so far by the Company.

-  Investment made in the form of working 
capital loan amounting to Rs. 377 Million.

-  Investment made in the form of Long-
term loan amounting to Rs. 2.25 Billion 
for a period of six years till June 30, 2027.

Reasons for deviations from the 
approved timeline of investment, 
where investment decision was to 
be implemented in a specified time 

No deviation. The validity of resolution for 
investment of up to Rs. 2,525,215,000 is three (3) 
years from April 28, 2022. The balance investment 
will be made as and when funds are required by 
the associated Company.

No deviation. The investment will be made 
as and when funds are required by the 
associated company.

Material change in financial 
statements of associated company 
or associated undertaking since 
the date of the resolution passed 
for approval of investment in such 
company

Investment was approved on December 30, 
2020 and subsequently increased on April 
28, 2022. The sponsors have injected Rs. 
12,815,000,000 as equity and the associated 
company has commenced the commercial 
operations with effect from March 10, 2022.

As per latest audited financial statements for 
the year ended June 30, 2022 the balance 
sheet size is Rs. 26.795 Billion, Loss after tax is 
Rs. 334,092,000 and Loss per share is Rs. 0.38. 

There is no material change in the financial 
statements of the associated company since 
the date of passing of special resolution i.e., 
on June 30, 2021.

As per latest audited financial statements 
for the year ended December 31, 2022 the 
balance sheet size is Rs. 40.250 Billion, 
Profit after tax is Rs. 354 Million and 
Earnings per share is Rs. 7.54. 
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Board of Directors

Mr. Arif Saeed
Chairman / Non Executive Director

Mr. Hassan Javed
Chief Executive Officer/ Executive Director

Chaudhry Ahmed Javed
Non Executive Director

Mr. Omar Saeed
Non Executive Director

Mr. Azmat Ali Ranjha
Independent Director

Mr. Abdul Rashid Lone
Independent Director

Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash
Independent Director

Mr. Qadeer Ahmed Vaseer
Executive Director

Mr. Hassan Ehsan Cheema
Executive Director
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Group Executive Committee

Mr. Arif Saeed
Chairman / Director

Mr. Hassan Javed
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Omar Saeed
Director

Mr. Hassan Javed is a leather technologist from Nene College United Kingdom and Shoe 
Technologist from ISMS School Czech Republic. He is the Chief Executive Officer of Service 
Global Footwear Limited. He is also serving as a Director on the Boards of Service Industries 
Limited, Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited and Servis Foundation. Mr. Javed has 
also served Service Industries Limited in various capacities most notably as the Resident 
Director of Gujrat for more than fifteen years. He served as the Chairman, Board of Directors 
of Gujranwala Electricity Supply Company. He has also served as the Chairman of Pakistan 
Footwear Manufacturers Association.

Mr Arif Saeed graduated from the University of Oxford. He is currently the Chief Executive 
Officer of Service Industries Limited and serves as a Director on the Board of Service Long 
March Tyres (Private) Limited as well as Servis Foundation. He has been the CEO of Dar Es 
Salaam Textile Mills Limited. He was the founding Chairman of Quaid-e-Azam Solar Power 
(Private) Limited, Quaid-e-Azam Thermal Power (Private) Limited and the National Power Parks 
Management Company (Private) Limited which successfully set up four leading power projects 
in the public sector. Mr. Saeed serves on the governing board of Aitchison College and is 
currently the President of the Pakistan Rugby Union. He has been Chairman of the All Pakistan 
Textile Mills Association (APTMA) as well as the Lahore Stock Exchange.

Mr. Omar Saeed graduated with high honors from Brown University and did his Master’s in 
Business Administration from Harvard Business School. He is the Chief Executive Officer of 
Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited and Servis Foundation. Omar also serves as a Director 
on the Boards of Nestle Pakistan Limited, Systems Limited, Service Industries Limited, Service 
Global Footwear Limited and The Hunar Foundation.  Omar has served as the Chief Executive 
Officer of Service Industries Limited (SIL) from 2011 to 2018. Under his stewardship, SIL won 
the highly prestigious Pakistan Stock Exchange Top 25 Companies Award for the years 2011, 
2013, 2014 and 2015.
 
Prior to that, Omar was responsible for building Servis into one of Pakistan’s largest footwear 
retailer, with 500 stores nationwide. He founded Ovex Technologies (Private) Limited in 2004, 
which went on to become one of Pakistan’s leading call center companies before the business 
was sold in 2011. 
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2022 2021
(Rs in ‘000) % (Rs in ‘000) %

Wealth Generated

Sales  11,753,088  7,040,157 
Other Income  498,924  536,335 
Bought-in-material & Services  (8,031,958)  (4,621,583)

 4,180,860 100%  2,954,909  100% 
Wealth Distributed 

To Employee

Remuneration , Benefits,and Facilties  2,820,602 67%  2,013,149 68%

To Government

Taxation  345,891 8%  169,560 6%
Workers welfare fund  14,040  0%  11,689  0%

To Society

Donation  4,226 0%  1,930 0%

To Lenders

Dividend  -   0%  -   0%
Mark up & finance Cost  467,180 11%  184,057 6%

Retained for Reinvestment & Future Growth

Deperication  186,862 4%  171,371 6%
Retained Profit  342,059 8%  403,221 14%
Unappropriated profit,deperication & amortization  528,475 13%  574,592 19%

 4,180,860 100%  2,954,909 100%

Value Added and its Distribution
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Wealth Generated and Distributed

Amount %

Bought in material & Services  8,031,958 65.77%
To Employees  2,820,602 23.10%
To Government  359,931 2.95%
To Society  4,226 0.03%
To Lenders  467,180 3.83%
Retained for reinvestment & Future 
Growth  528,921 4.33%

Total  12,212,818 100%

2022

Amount %

Bought in material & Services  4,621,583 61.00%
To Employees  2,013,149 26.57%
To Government  181,249 2.39%
To Society  1,930 0.03%
To Lenders  184,057 2.43%
Retained for reinvestment & Future 
Growth  574,592 7.58%

Total  7,576,560 100%

2021
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Balance Sheet Composition     
Fixed and Current Assets

2022

Fixed assets 18%
Long term investments 15%
Long term loans and deposits 12%
Stores and spares 1%
Stock in trade 23%
Trade debts - net 13%
Advances and prepayments 9%
Other receivables 8%
Cash and bank balances 1%

2021

Fixed assets 17%
Long term investments 14%
Long term loans and deposits 18%
Stores and spares 0%
Stock in trade 17%
Trade debts - net 7%
Advances and prepayments 12%
Other receivables 7%
Cash and bank balances 7%

2021

Equity & Reserves 54%
Long term financing 2%
Non Current Liabilities 1%
Current liabilities 43%

Equities and Liabilities

2022

Equity & Reserves 43%
Long term financing 3%
Non Current Liabilities 1%
Current liabilities 53%

18%

15%

12%
1%23%

13%

9%
8%

1%

18%

17%

14%

12%
7% 7%

7%

17% 0%

43%

3%1%

53%

54%

2%1%

43%
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“Growth and comfort 
do not coexist ”
– Ginni Rometty
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Analytical Review

2019         2020         2021         2022 2019         2020         2021         2022 2019         2020         2021         2022

2019         2020         2021         2022 2019         2020         2021         2022 2019         2020         2021         2022

2019         2020         2021         2022 2019         2020         2021         2022 2019         2020         2021         2022

2019         2020         2021         2022 2019         2020         2021         2022 2019         2020         2021         2022

Current Assets Fixed Assets Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilites Reserve Contribution to Exchequer

Net Sales Cost of Sales Gross Profit

Operating Profit Net Profit EBITDA

6,318

8,420

6,355

7,779

1,029

2,088 2,131

2595

4,468

5,795 5,463

7,683

254

113

62
76

6,165
6,729

4,231

2,512

518

369

496

383

3,651

574

966

749

1,379

493

709

403
342 639

1,050
928

1,342

6,895 7,040

11,753

2,835

5,525 5,802

9,567

816

1,369 1,238

2,186
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EBITDA Margins to Sales

Gross Profit Margin

Earning per share

Return on Capital Employed

Breakup Value

Net Profit Margin

2019         2020         2021         2022 2019         2020         2021         2022 2019         2020         2021         2022

2019         2020         2021         2022 2019         2020         2021         20222019         2020         2021         2022

18%
467.51

497.5

25.9 32.9 30.18.25 2.10 1.67

13%

15%

22%
20%

18%
19%

18%

16%

8%
10%

13.5%

10.3%

5.7%
2.9%

11%

Return on Equity

2019         2020         2021         2022

20%

17%

6% 6%

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

2019         2020         2021         2022

(842)

(727)

(2,277)

601

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

2019         2020         2021         2022

(2,030)

682
344

(1,387)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

2019         2020         2021         2022

2,399

1,293

1,612

655

2019         2020         2021         2022

13%

9%

4%
6%

Debt to Equity Ratio
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Three Years at a Glance
Description 2022 2021 2020

Sales  11,753  7,040  6,895 
Gross profit  2,186  1,238  1,369 
Operational profit  1,379  749  918 
Profit before tax  688  573  777 
Profit after tax  342  403  709 
Share capital  205.09  204.44  163.55 
Share holder's equity  6,165  6,729  4,231 
Property, plant & equipment  2,595  2,131  2,088 
Total assets  14,365  12,562  10,522 
Net current assets  96  892  2,625 
Market Value Per Share (Rs.)  33  46  -   

Dividend (%)

Cash - Interim 25  -    -   
Cash - Final  10   20  -   
Bonus Shares  -    -    -   

Profitibility (%)

Gross Profit  18.60  17.58  19.86 
Operational profit   0.12   0.11   0.13 
Profit Before Tax  5.85  8.14  11.28 
Profit After Tax  2.91  5.73  10.28 

Return to Shareholders

R.O.E -Before Tax (%) 11.16  8.51  18.38 
R.O.E -After Tax (%) 5.54  5.99  16.75 
E.P.S-After Tax (Rs.)  1.67  2.10  8.25 
Price Earning Ratio  19.86  22.08  -   

Activity (Times)

Sales To Total Assets  0.82  0.56  0.66 
Sales To Fixed Assets  4.53  3.30  3.30 
Inventory Turnover Ratio  1.80  1.65  1.19 
Interest Coverage Ratio  1.73  2.18  2.84 

Liquidity/Leverage

Current Ratio  1.01  1.16  1.45 
Break-up Value per Share  30.06  32.92  25.87 
Total Liabilities To Equity  1.33  0.87  1.49 
Debt Equity Ratio 06:94 04:96 09:91
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“There can be no sustainable 
development without 
sustainable energy 
development”
– Margot wallstorn
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Horizontal Analysis

2022 2021 2020

Increase/(Decrease) 
from last year

Increase/(Decrease) 
from last year

Increase/(Decrease) 
from last year

Rs '000 % Rs '000 % Rs '000 %
Balance Sheet

Equity & Reserve  6,164,524 -8%  6,729,388 59.1%  4,230,787 68.4%
Long term financing facilities  360,852 43%  252,589 -35.8%  393,429 23.1%
Non Current Liability  157,391 35%  116,625 14.2%  102,118 60.0%
Current Liabilities  7,682,519 41%  5,463,321 -5.7%  5,795,184 29.7%

14,365,286 14% 12,561,923 19.4% 10,521,518 42.9%

Non-Current Asset
Property Plant and Equipment  2,594,578 22%  2,131,404 2.1%  2,087,874 102.9%
long term  investment  2,217,650 23%  1,805,402 0.0%  -   0.0%
long term  loan &deposit  1,774,206 -22%  2,270,404 16993.8%  13,282 -18.6%

Current Asset   
Stores  and spares  81,956 90%  43,061 -1.1%  43,535 -12.5%
Stock in-trade  3,360,359 61%  2,093,095 51.6%  1,381,029 42.0%
Trade Debts  1,839,720 125%  817,714 -12.6%  936,041 32.2%
Loans & Advances  1,230,354 -21%  1,557,662 -50.5%  3,149,790 110.6%
Trade Deposits and Prepayments  12,988 98%  6,564 0.3%  6,546 -0.2%
Other recievables  1,091,855 21%  901,200 -45.3%  1,647,008 14541.8%
Cash and Balance  161,620 -83%  935,417 -25.5%  1,256,413 -83%

14,365,286 14% 12,561,923 19.4% 10,521,518 42.9%

2022 2021 2020

Increase/(Decrease) 
from last year

Increase/(Decrease) 
from last year

Increase/(Decrease) 
from last year

Rs '000 % Rs '000 % Rs '000 %

Profit & Loss

Net Sales  11,753,088 66.9%  7,040,157 2.1%  6,894,711 88.9%
Cost of Sales  9,567,437 64.9%  5,802,423 5.0%  5,525,411 94.9%
Gross Profit  2,185,651 76.6%  1,237,734 -9.6%  1,369,300 67.9%
Administration and selling expenses  1,490,251 50.4%  1,017,231 17.3%  867,498 77.4%
Other income  683,804 36.9%  528,133 13.8%  464,069 87.5%
Operating profit  1,379,204 84.2%  748,636 -22.5%  965,871 68.3%
Financial charges  467,180 153.8%  184,057 31.2%  140,320 123.9%
Share of profit  (224,074) -2831.9%  8,202 -117.0%  (48,110) -337.6%
Profit before taxation  687,950 20.1%  572,781 -26.3%  777,441 46.2%
Provision for taxation  345,891 104.3%  169,560 147.0%  68,646 79.8%
Profit after taxation  342,059 -15.2%  403,221 -43.1%  708,795 43.6%

30 Service Global Footwear Limited



Vertical Analysis

2022 2021 2020 2019

Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease) 

Rs '000 % Rs '000 % Rs '000 % Rs '000 %
Balance Sheet

Equity & Reserve  6,164,524 42.9%  6,729,388 53.6%  4,230,787 40.2%  2,512,143 34.1%
Long term financing facilities  360,852 2.5%  252,589 2.0%  393,429 3.7%  319,484 4.3%
Non Current Liability  157,391 1.1%  116,625 0.9%  102,118 1.0%  63,817 0.9%
Current Liabilities  7,682,519 53.5%  5,463,321 43.5%  5,795,184 55.1%  4,468,062 60.7%

14,365,286 100.0% 12,561,923 100.0% 10,521,518 100.0% 7,363,506 100.0%

Non-Current Asset
Property Plant and Equipment  2,594,578 18.1%  2,131,404 17.0%  2,087,874 19.8%  1,029,030 14.0%
long term  investment  2,217,650 15.4%  1,805,402 14.4%  -   0.0%  -   0.0%
long term  loan &deposit  1,774,206 12.4%  2,270,404 18.1%  13,282 0.1%  16,318 0.2%

Current Asset
Stores  and spares  81,956 0.6%  43,061 0.3%  43,535 0.4%  36,112 0.5%
Stock in-trade  3,360,359 23.4%  2,093,095 16.7%  1,381,029 13.1%  1,577,779 21.4%
Trade Debts  1,839,720 12.8%  817,714 6.5%  936,041 8.9%  659,099 9.0%
Loans & Advances  1,230,354 8.6%  1,557,662 12.4%  3,149,790 29.9%  2,382,786 32.4%
Trade Deposits and Prepayments  12,988 0.1%  6,564 0.1%  6,546 0.1%  3,108 0.0%
Other recievables  1,091,409 7.6%  901,200 7.2%  1,647,008 15.7%  1,650,692 22.4%
Cash and Balance  161,620 1.1%  935,417 7.4%  1,256,413 11.9%  8,582 0.1%

14,365,286 100.0% 12,561,923 100.0% 10,521,518 100.0% 7,363,506 100.0%

2022 2021 2020 2019

Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease) 

Rs '000 % Rs '000 % Rs '000 % Rs '000 %

Profit & Loss

Net Sales  11,753,088 100.0%  7,040,157 100.0%  6,894,711 100.0%  3,650,875 100.0%
Cost of Sales  9,567,437 81.4%  5,802,423 82.4%  5,525,411 80.1%  2,835,367 77.7%
Gross Profit  2,185,651 18.6%  1,237,734 17.6%  1,369,300 19.9%  815,508 22.3%
Administration and selling expenses  1,490,251 13.0%  1,017,231 14.4%  867,498 12.6%  488,983 13.4%
Other income  683,804 6.2%  528,133 7.5%  464,069 6.7%  247,517 6.8%
Operating profit  1,379,204 11.7%  748,636 10.6%  965,871 14.0%  574,042 15.7%
Financial charges  467,180 4.0%  184,057 2.6%  140,320 2.0%  62,678 1.7%
Share of profit  (224,074) -1.9%  8,202 0.1%  (48,110) -0.7%  20,248 0.6%
Profit before taxation  687,950 5.9%  572,781 8.1%  777,441 11.3%  531,612 14.6%
Provision for taxation  345,891 2.9%  169,560 2.4%  68,646 1.0%  38,185 1.0%
Profit after taxation  342,059 -2.9%  403,221 5.7%  708,795 10.3%  493,427 13.5%
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Chairman’s  Review

I am pleased to report that the performance of the Board remained 
par excellence throughout the year and their contributions 
effectively steered the Company towards achievement of its 
objectives and creation of new benchmarks, while maintaining its 
reputation for good governance and providing steady returns to 
our shareholders.

The Company has a nine (9) member Board of Directors (“the 
Board”) which comprises of individuals with diverse background 
having core competencies, knowledge, and experience relevant 
to the business of the Company. The Composition of the Board 
and its Committees is in accordance with the requirements of 
Companies Act, 2017 and Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019. 

The Board has developed a mechanism for annual evaluation 
of Board’s own performance, members of the Board and 
its Committees in compliance with the provisions of Listed 
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. 
The performance evaluation mechanism also ensures that all 
statutory and legal requirements are fulfilled with regard to 
procedures, meetings and oversight role of the Board. 

During the financial year 2022, the Board successfully achieved 
targets and objectives set for the growth of the Company by 
performing the following functions:

• Ensured effective and robust oversight. 
• Supervised overall corporate strategy, key financial 

performance indicators and other budgetary targets. 
• Ensured the quality and appropriateness of financial reporting 

and the transparency of disclosures.
• Carried out risk assessment especially relating to regulatory 

and legal requirements, market trends, materials’ supply 
and price, energy availability and cost, foreign exchange 
fluctuations, interest rate and liquidity.

• Reviewed effectiveness of internal control system.
• Evaluated the significant investments.
• Reviewed details of financing facilities availed by the Company.
• Ensured timely dissemination of price sensitive and inside 

information to relevant regulatory authorities. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to present to you the Annual Report 
of Service Global Footwear Limited (“the Company”) showing overall performance of 
the Company and effectiveness of the leadership in attaining the Company’s aims 
and objectives for the year ended December 31, 2022.

The Board of the company is fully committed to add value to 
the shareholders’ wealth. Consistent with our commitment to 
provide steady returns to our shareholders, the Board is pleased 
to propose a final dividend of Rs. 1/- per share. 

Arif Saeed
Chairman

March 30, 2023
Lahore
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“Without continual growth 
and progress, such words as 
improvement, achievement, 
and success have no meaning”
– Benjamin Franklin

Annual Report 2022 33



Directors’ Report to the Shareholders
The Board of Directors of Service Global Footwear Limited (SGFL) is 
pleased to present to you its Annual Report along with the company’s 
audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
December 31, 2022 (“FY 2022”).

The Directors’ Report has been prepared in accordance with section 
227 of the Companies Act, 2017. This report is to be submitted to the 
members at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held 
on April 28, 2023.  

SGFL has been in the footwear business, with manufacturing facilities 
fully focused on production of footwear products for export markets. 
SGFL is the largest exporter of footwear from Pakistan. It’s primary 
target market is the comfort shoe category and also its key revenue 
driver. The Company’s registered Head Office is located at Servis 
House 2 Main Gulberg, Lahore.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPIS) FOR FY 2022 V/S FY 2021

Please find below key performance indicators of Service Global 
Footwear Limited (SGFL) for the year ended December 31, 2022 
compared against financial results year ended December 31, 2021. 

PARTICULARS
2022 2021

Amount In 
Thousands

Percentage
To Sales

Amount In 
Thousands

Percentage
To Sales

% 
Change

Net Sales  11,753,088  7,040,157 67%

Gross Profit  2,185,651 19%  1,237,734 18% 77%

Operating Profit  1,379,204 12%  748,636 11% 84%

Profit before tax  687,950 6%  572,781 8% 20%

Net profit after tax  342,059 3%  403,221 6% -15%

Earning Per Share (EPS)  1.67  2.10 -20%

SGFL has recorded exceptional sales of Rs.11.75 billion in year 2022 
which are 66.94% higher than last year. In spite of local challenges, 
increase in wages and massive inflation, SGFL has been able to achieve 
growth of 84% in its operational profit over last year from Rs. 748 million 
in 2021 to Rs. 1.38 billion in 2022.  

SGFL investment in SLM has caused a loss of 224 million which has 
brought the profit before tax to 687 million which is 20% higher than last 
year. However, in this year, we are hopeful that SLM will start delivering 
a positive bottom line which will positively contribute to profit of SGFL.

SGFL is poised to leverage its structured approach towards growth and 
holds firm on its commitment to add great value for its shareholders.

EARNING PER SHARE (EPS)

The earnings per share of the Company stood at PKR 1.67 during the 
year ended 31st December 2022 as compared to PKR 2.10 during 
last year reflecting a decrease of 20%. The main reasons for reduction 
in EPS escalated input material prices, higher international freight 
costs and increase in minimum wage. The management is making 
every possible effort to improve the profitability of the company.

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA OF PREVIOUS YEARS 

An overview of key operating and financial data for previous years 
is annexed.

EVALUATION OF COMPANY PERFORMANCE

The Board has developed a mechanism of regular performance 
evaluation. Every member of the Board ensures their active 
participation in the meetings of the Board. Detailed discussions are 
held on strategic matters and clear directions are provided to the 
management, which are regularly monitored by the Board and its 
committees.

For the purpose of evaluating the performance of the Company, 
the management uses various indicators that include industry 
growth, position of peer companies in the business segment where 
the company operates, prior years’ performance, macroeconomic 
indicators and business environment impacting the Company.

Budgets are formulated and actual performance is measured against 
the budget at regular intervals during the year so that remedial 
action could be taken on a timely basis. 

The management ensures that the Company adopts the best 
practices of corporate governance. The management also reviews 
performance of business at each quarter with an aim to improve 
performance against budget and last year. Moreover, the company 
has not defaulted in payment of any debts during the year. 

RISKS, UNCERTAINTIES AND MITIGATIONS

The Company’s overall risk management program focuses 
on minimizing potential adverse effects on the Company’s 
performance. Company’s senior management team carries out the 
overall risk management for the Company and the results are shared 
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with the Board of Directors. This entails identifying, evaluating and 
addressing strategic, financial, commercial and operational risks to 
which our company is exposed. 

A senior management team also carries out intensive budgeting 
and planning exercise including SWOT analysis of the Company 
and its business segments. Based on the same, key challenges are 
addressed and opportunities identified, action plans developed 
and executed to achieve the long-term strategic objectives of the 
Company.

ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH AND SAFETY (EHS)

SGFL has taken following initiatives to provide a safe, healthy and 
ethical environment for all internal stakeholders like employees, 
customers and shareholders associated with the company.

a) Asia’s First Solar Powered Footwear Factory
In September 2017, SGFL completed the installation of a 
1MW Solar Power Park and enhanced the capacity to 2MW in 
September 2019, becoming the first solar powered footwear 
factory in Asia. SGFL was the first company to represent Pakistan 
on Green Initiative on WTO forum Geneva earlier this year.

b) Industrial Relations
SGFL is Business Social Compliance Initiative (BSCI) certified, 
promoting workplace conditions in accordance with human 
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rights, ILO conventions and national labor law. Additionally, SGFL 
has been a member of SEDEX Global since 2015, ensuring our 
dedication to driving improvements in responsible and ethical 
business practices in the global supply chain and providing over 
10,000 employees the best working conditions for increased 
productivity. 

c) Employment of females and persons with disability
SGFL is proud to be an equal opportunity employer and 
encourages the participation of females and persons with 
special needs in the workforce. SGFL has taken steps to create a 
work environment conducive to females by dedicating separate 
production lines in Muridke Footwear factories, employing over 
171 females currently.

d) International Standards and qualifications.
SGFL has gone through an extensive project of Integrated 
Management system(IMS) and has qualified and certified now 
on three international standards in February 2022.

• ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management
• ISO 14001:2015 Environmental Management
• ISO 45001:2018 Occupational Safety

In addition to this, SGFL has also become the first shoe company 
in the country to have its inhouse laboratory certified under 
following standard.

• ISO 17025/2017 Laboratory Management System

In continuity of our commitments to remain one of the most 
complaint companies on international standards, we have taken 
some further standards to qualify this year.

e) Consumer Protection Measures
SGFL is also a member of SATRA Technologies since 2010 who 
conduct research and tests on footwear and leather products to 
ensure that the product is comfortable, safe, performs well and 
is durable.  

f) Business Ethics and Anti-Corruption Measures
We have a commitment of conducting our business with honesty 
and integrity and in full compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations. Our Statement of Ethics & Business Practices states 
that “It is the Company’s policy to conduct its operations in 
accordance with the highest business ethical considerations, to 
comply with all statutory regulations and to conform to the best 
accepted standards of good corporate citizenship.”

g) Contribution to National Exchequer
SGFL has a significant annual contribution to the national 
exchequer on account of taxes, duties and levies. In 2022, SGFL 
contributed PKR 254 million on this account.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

SGFL has been formed with the vision to become a socially 
conscious business entity following its parent group’s tradition of 
corporate giving. Over the last several decades, the Group has been 
involved in significant philanthropic undertakings in health and 
education. SGFL’s aim is to strive to serve its employees, customers, 
shareholders, communities, and the environment. The intention is 
simple: to give back, share prosperity and help people build and 
grow in a sustainable way.

During the year, the Company contributed PKR 4.226 million on 
account of CSR activities.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Year-2022 witnessed exceptional growth which was ever highest in 
the history of SGFL. This growth came with spirited sales and product 
development efforts which were thoroughly supported by rapid 
expansion in capacity.

One of the highlights of 2022 is forming a strategic alliance with one 
of the biggest footwear companies in the United States. It carries a 
tremendous potential of expansion and growth in coming years. We 
have added dedicated production lines under this agreement.

We are also in discussions with one of the most renowned European 
brands to start its sourcing from SGFL in near future. Initial steps 
are completed and we will start its production in 2nd quarter of 
2023. This will add a great value to our customer portfolio, and 
consequently it will inspire our growth efforts.

Our investment towards safety footwear development has matured 
into a solid product line. Now we have multiple current era (CE) 
marked products to sell in Europe in year-2023 and beyond. 

Our operations in China have been augmented through the 
incorporation of a Chinese subsidiary named, “Dongguan Service 
Global Limited”. Now we have our own development center, sales 
office, and procurement setup in the hub of global footwear 
sourcing. This provides us a great competitive edge against other 
regional manufacturers on various fronts that includes technology, 
development efficiency, cost control, and sales drive.

In spite of local challenges in our country, SGFL is well structured 
to continue its growth momentum and holds it commitment to add 
great value to its shareholders.

ADHERENCE TO BEST PRACTICES OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is determined to meet and wherever possible, exceed 
in all legal and ethical requirements and to conduct all businesses 
according to the highest professional and ethical standards and 
practices. The Board defines a path of continuous improvement 
constantly challenging existing processes. It also requires the 
Company to embrace change so that the Company is in the right 
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place when new opportunities open. This also means attracting 
the best talent in the marketplace and giving them the skills and 
opportunities, they need to become high achievers. The Company 
constantly reviews its portfolio to provide answers to society’s 
most vital challenges, enabling it to create sustainable value for its 
shareholders.

The company continues to utilize the services of independent firms 
to evaluate internal controls and operations to ensure fair financial 
reporting processes, compliance with applicable laws and adherence 
with internal control systems. This also results in achieving our 
objective of adding value to our operations.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The Company strictly adheres to the principles of corporate 
governance mandated by the Securities and Exchange Commission 
of Pakistan and has implemented all the prescribed stipulations. 
The same have been summarized in the following statement of 
compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019 duly reviewed by the external auditors.

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT ON CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL 
REPORTING FRAMEWORK

Following is the Directors’ statement on Corporate and Financial 
Reporting framework:

a. The financial statements, prepared by the management of 
the Company, present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its 
operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

b. Proper books of account have been maintained by the 
Company.

c. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently 
applied in the preparation of financial statements and 
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgment.

d. International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as 
applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in the preparation 
of financial statements.

e. The Company maintains a sound internal control system 
which gives reasonable assurance against any material 
misstatement or loss. The internal control system is regularly 
reviewed. This has been formalized by the Board’s Audit 
Committee and is updated as and when needed.

f. There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern.

g. There has been no material departure from the best 
practices of Corporate Governance, as detailed in the listing 
regulations.

h. The Key operating and financial data for the last two years is 
annexed to the annual report.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has established an effective and efficient system 
of internal and financial controls to safeguard the assets of the 

Company, prevent and detect fraud and ensure compliance with 
all statutory and legal requirements. The internal control structure 
is regularly reviewed and monitored by the Internal Audit function. 

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Board of Directors has approved Directors’ Remuneration Policy. 
The main features of the policy are as follows:

• The Company shall not pay remuneration to its non-executive 
directors including independent directors except for meeting 
fee for attending Board and its Committees meetings.

• The Company will reimburse or incur expenses of travelling 
and accommodation of Directors in relation to attending of 
Board and its Committees meetings. 

• The Directors’ Remuneration Policy will be reviewed and 
approved by the Board of Directors from time to time.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the following amounts 
were charged in the financial statements for remuneration including 
benefits to Chief Executive Officer and Executive Directors:

a) Rs. 72.312 million (2021: 64.730 million) was paid to the 
Chief Executive Officer. 

b) Rs. 49.723 million (2021: 32.657 million) was paid to two 
Executive Directors. 

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

During the year under review, four (4) meetings of the Board of 
Directors of the Company were held, and the attendance position is 
as follows:

NAME DESIGNATION ATTENDEES

Mr. Arif Saeed Chairman 4/4

Mr. Hassan Javed Chief Executive Officer 4/4

Chaudhry Ahmed Javed Director 0/4

Mr. Omar Saeed Director 3/4

Mr. Azmat Ali Ranjha Director 4/4

Mr. Abdul Rashid Lone Director 3/4

Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash Director 4/4

Mr. Hassan Ehsan Cheema Director 4/4

Mr. Qadeer Ahmed Vaseer Director 4/4

Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend 
the Board Meeting and Committee Meetings.

The Board has constituted two (02) Committees i.e. Audit Committee 
and Human Resource and Remuneration Committee. The 
Committees comprised of following members:
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee consists of three members, one of whom is 
Non-Executive Director and two are Independent Directors. The 
Chairman of the committee is an Independent Director. The terms 
of reference of this Committee have been determined in accordance 
with the guidelines provided in the Code of Corporate Governance 
and advised to the Committee for complian:

The Committee held four (4) meetings during the year. Attendance 
by each member was as follows:

NAME DESIGNATION ATTENDEES

Mr.  Abdul Rashid Lone Chairman / Independent 

Director

3/4

Mr. Omar Saeed Member / Non-Executive 

Director

4/4

Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash Member / Independent 

Director

3/4

HUMAN RESOURCE AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Human Resource & Remuneration Committee comprises of 
three members one of whom is Independent Director, one is Non-
Executive Director and one is Executive Director. The chairman of the 
Committee is an Independent Director. The Committee is involved 
in making recommendations to the Board regarding executives’ 
remuneration, performance evaluation and succession planning etc. 
The Committee held three (3) meetings during the year. Attendance 
by each member was as follows:

NAME DESIGNATION ATTENDEES

Mr. Azmat Ali Ranjha Chairman / Independent 

Director

3/3

Mr. Hassan Javed Member / Executive Director 3/3

Mr. Omar Saeed Member / Non-Executive 

Director

3/3

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

The pattern of shareholding as at December 31, 2022 along with 
disclosure as required under the Code of Corporate Governance 
is included in this Annual Report. All trades in the shares of the 
Company, if any, carried out by the Directors, CEO, CFO, Company 
Secretary, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor 
children are also annexed.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The present Auditors M/s. Riaz Ahmad & Company, Chartered 
Accountants, retire and being eligible, offered themselves for 
re-appointment. The Board of Directors recommended their re-
appointment as auditors of the Company for the financial year 
ending December 31, 2023.  

INVESTMENTS IN RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Company maintains retirement benefits plans for its employees 
which are regulated through the respective Board of trustees.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial 
position of the Company occurred between 31 December 2022 
and March 30, 2023 except for the declaration of the final cash 
dividend of Rupees 1 per share (i.e. 10%) for the year ended 31 
December 2022 which is subject to the approval of members in 
the forthcoming annual general meeting and as disclosed in the 
accompany audited financial statements of the company for the year 
ended 31 December 2022 more specifically in Note 47.
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We look forward to continuing to deliver results in the coming years.

For and on behalf of the board

Arif Saeed Hassan Javed
CHAIRMAN CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

March 30, 2023
Lahore
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

Name of Company: Service Global Footwear Limited
Year ended:  31 December 2022

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations 
in the following manner:

1. The total number of Directors are nine (9) as per the following:

 a.        Male:                  8
 b.        Female:             1

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

Category Names

Independent 
Directors

Mr. Azmat Ali Ranjha 
Mr. Abdul Rashid Lone
Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash   
(Female Director)

Non-Executive 
Directors

Mr. Arif Saeed 
Chaudhry Ahmed Javed 
Mr. Omar Saeed 

Executive Directors Mr. Hassan Javed 
Mr. Hassan Ehsan Cheema
Mr. Qadeer Ahmed Vaseer

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as 
a Director on more than seven listed companies, including 
this company;

4. The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured 
that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it 
throughout the company along with its supporting policies 
and procedures;

5. The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall 
corporate strategy and significant policies of the company. 
The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of 
the significant policies along with their date of approval or 
updating is maintained by the company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and 
decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the Board / 
shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and the Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the 
Chairman and, in his absence, by a Director elected by the 
Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the 
requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to 
frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of 
the Board;

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures 
for remuneration of Directors in accordance with the Act and 
the Regulations;

9. Following Directors have attained the directors training 
program certification:

Names of Directors
Mr. Omar Saeed

Mr. Hassan Javed

Mr. Azmat Ali Ranjha

Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash

 Following Director meets the exemption criteria of minimum 
of 14 years of education and 15 years of experience on the 
Boards of listed companies, hence is exempt from Directors’ 
training program:  

Name of Director
Mr. Arif Saeed

10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial 
Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, 
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of 
employment and complied with relevant requirements of 
the Regulations;

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly 
endorsed the financial statements before approval of the 
Board;

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members 
given below:

 a)  Audit Committee

Names Designation held

Mr. Abdul Rashid Lone Chairman

Mr. Omar Saeed Member

Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash Member
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 b) HR and Remuneration Committee

Names Designation held

Mr. Azmat Ali Ranjha Chairman

Mr. Hassan Javed Member

Mr. Omar Saeed Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have 
been formed, documented and advised to the committee for 
compliance;

14.  The frequency of meetings (quarterly / half yearly / yearly) of 
the committee were as per following:

 a) Audit Committee

 Four quarterly meetings were held during the year ended 31 
December 2022. 

 b) HR and Remuneration Committee

 Three meetings of HR and Remuneration Committee were 
held during the year ended 31 December 2022.

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function who 
are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the 
purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures 
of the company;

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed 
that they have been given a satisfactory rating under 
the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with 
Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their 
partners are in compliance with International Federation of 
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and 
that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit 
are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-
dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief 
Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary 
or Director of the company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them 
have not been appointed to provide other services except 
in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other 
regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that 
they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 
32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied with; 
and

19. Explanations for non-compliance with requirements, other 
than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 are below: 
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Sr. 
No.

Requirement Explanation of Non-Compliance Regulation
Number

1 Responsibilities of the Board and its members 
The Board is responsible for adoption of corporate 
governance practices by the company.  

Non-mandatory provisions of the Regulations are 
partially   complied. The company is deliberating 
on full compliance with all the provisions of the 
Regulations.

10(1)

2 Directors’ Training
It is encouraged that by 30 June 2022, all directors on 
the Board have acquired the prescribed certification 
under any director training program offered by 
institutions, local or foreign, that meet the criteria 
specified by the Commission and approved by it.

4 out of 9 directors of the Company have acquired 
Directors' Training Program certification. One director 
is exempt from Directors’ Training Program. The 
Company has planned to arrange Directors' Training 
Program certification for remaining 4 directors by end 
of next financial year.

19(1)

3 Directors’ Training
Companies are encouraged to arrange training for at 
least one head of department every year under the 
Directors’ Training program from July 2022.

The Company has planned to arrange Directors’ 
Training Program certification for head of departments 
over the next few years.

19(3)

4 Nomination Committee
The Board may constitute a separate committee, 
designated as the nomination committee, of such 
number and class of directors, as it may deem 
appropriate in its circumstances.

Currently, the Board has not constituted a separate 
nomination committee and the functions are being 
performed by the human resource and remuneration 
committee. 

29

5 Risk Management Committee
The Board may constitute the risk management 
committee, of such number and class of directors, as 
it may deem appropriate in its circumstances, to carry 
out a review of effectiveness of risk management 
procedures and present a report to the Board.

Currently, the Board has not constituted a risk 
management committee and a senior officer of the 
Company performs the requisite functions and apprise 
the Board accordingly. 

30

6 Disclosure of significant policies on website
The Company may post key elements of its significant 
policies, brief synopsis of terms of reference of the 
Board’s committees on its website and key elements 
of the directors’ remuneration policy.

Although these are well circulated among the relevant 
employees and directors, the Board shall consider 
posting such policies and synopsis on its website in 
near future.

35

Arif Saeed 
Chairman
 
March 30, 2023
Lahore

 Hassan Javed
 Chief Executive
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Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed 
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

To the members of Service Global Footwear Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the 
Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Service Global Footwear Limited (the Company) for the year ended 31 December 2022 in 
accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether 
the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not 
and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s 
personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations. 

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal control systems 
sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement 
on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate 
governance procedures and risks. 

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before 
the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of 
this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit 
Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately 
reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company 
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants 

Lahore.
Date: March 30, 2023

UDIN: CR202210158GrBdIWvXO
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the members of Service Global Footwear Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion  
We have audited the annexed financial statements of Service Global Footwear Limited (the Company), which comprise the statement of 
financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement 
of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations 
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of financial position, the 
statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows 
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the 
state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of the profit, other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows 
for the year then ended. 
 
 
Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.  

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of 
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  
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Following are the Key audit matters:

Sr. No. Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in our audit

1 Revenue recognition

The Company recognized net revenue of Rupees 11,753.088 
million for the year ended 31 December 2022.

We identified recognition of revenue as a key audit matter 
because revenue is one of the key performance indicator of 
the Company and gives rise to an inherent risk that revenue 
could be subject to misstatement to meet expectations or 
targets.

For further information on revenue, refer to the following:

- Summary of significant accounting policies, 
Revenue recognition note 2.24 to the 
financial statements. 

- Revenue note 27 to the financial statements.

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue, 
amongst others, included the following:

• Obtaining an understanding of the process relating 
to recognition of revenue and testing the design, 
implementation and operating effectiveness of key 
internal controls over recording of revenue;

• Comparing a sample of revenue transactions recorded 
during the year with sales orders, sales invoices, delivery 
documents and other relevant underlying documents;

• Comparing a sample of revenue transactions recorded 
around the year end with the sales orders, sales invoices, 
delivery documents and other relevant underlying 
documentation to assess if the related revenue was 
recorded in the appropriate accounting period;

• Assessing whether the accounting policies for revenue 
recognition complies with the requirements of IFRS 15 
‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’;

• We also considered the appropriateness of disclosures in 
the financial statements.

2 Stock-in-trade 

As at 31 December 2022, stock-in-trade is stated at Rupees 
3,360.359 million.

Stock-in-trade is measured at the lower of cost and net 
realizable value.

We identified existence and valuation of stock-in-trade as a 
key audit matter due to its size, representing 23.39% of total 
assets of the Company as at 31 December 2022, and the 
judgement involved in valuation.

For further information on stock-in-trade, refer to the following:

• Summary of significant accounting policies, 
Stock-in-trade note 2.21 to the financial 
statements.

 
• Stock-in-trade note 19 to the financial 

statements.

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of stock-in-trade, 
amongst others, included the following:

• Assessing the design, implementation and operating 
effectiveness of key internal controls over valuation of 
stock-in-trade including determination of net realizable 
values;

• Attending inventory counts and reconciling the count 
results to the inventory listings to test the completeness 
of data;

• Assessing the net realizable value of stock-in-trade by 
comparing, on a sample basis, management’s estimation 
of future selling prices for the products with selling prices 
achieved subsequent to the end of the reporting period;

• Comparing the net realizable value to the cost of a 
sample of stock-in-trade and comparison to the associated 
provision to assess whether stock-in-trade provisions are 
complete
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon  
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but 
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

Sr. No. Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in our audit

• Assessing accuracy of inventory ageing reports and 
adequacy of provisions;

• In the context of our testing of the calculation, we analysed 
individual cost components and traced them back to the 
corresponding underlying documents. We furthermore 
challenged changes in unit costs;
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• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, 
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 
financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law 
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of 
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns; 

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the Company’s 
business; and  

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the Company and 
deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mubashar Mehmood.

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants 

Lahore.
Date: March 30, 2022

UDIN : AR2022101585qI9M07wm
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Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2022

2022 2021
Amount Amount

Note Rupees in thousand

Equity and liabilities

Share capital and reserves

Authorized share capital
250,000,000 (2021: 250,000,000) ordinary shares of
Rupees 10 each  2,500,000  2,500,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 3  2,050,875  2,044,375 
Reserves 4  4,113,649  4,685,013 
Total equity  6,164,524  6,729,388 

LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term financing 5  360,852  252,589 
Employees' retirement benefit 6  157,391  113,864 
Deferred liabilities 7  -    2,761 

 518,243  369,214 
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 8  1,972,206  1,359,804 
Accrued mark-up 9  176,187  31,064 
Short term borrowings 10  5,488,314  3,924,075 
Current portion of non-current liabilities 11  40,962  148,378 
Unclaimed dividend  4,850  -   

 7,682,519  5,463,321 

Total liabilities  8,200,762  5,832,535 
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 12
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  14,365,286  12,561,923 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Hassan Javed
(Chief Executive)
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2022 2021
Amount Amount

Note Rupees in thousand
ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Fixed assets 13  2,594,578  2,131,404 
Long term security deposits 14  10,572  11,116 
Long term loans to employees 15  13,634  9,288 
Long term investment 16  2,217,650  1,805,402 
Long term loan to Holding Company 17  1,750,000  2,250,000 

 6,586,434  6,207,210 

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spares and loose tools 18  81,956  43,061 
Stock-in-trade 19  3,360,359  2,093,095 
Trade debts 20  1,839,720  817,714 
Loans and advances 21  1,230,354  1,557,662 
Accrued mark-up 22  -    57,837 
Short term deposits and prepayments 23  12,988  6,564 
Other receivables 24  871,505  496,022 
Advance income tax - net 25  220,350  347,341 
Cash and bank balances 26  161,620  935,417 

 7,778,852  6,354,713 

TOTAL ASSETS  14,365,286  12,561,923 

Arif Saeed
(Director)

Usman Liaqat
(Chief Financial Officer)
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Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended December 31, 2022

2022 2021
Amount Amount

Note Rupees in thousand
Revenue 27  11,753,088  7,040,157 
Cost of sales 28  (9,567,437)  (5,802,423)
Gross profit  2,185,651  1,237,734 

 

Distribution cost 29  (920,784)  (562,260)
Administrative expenses 30  (523,342)  (419,766)
Other expenses 31  (46,125)  (35,205)

 (1,490,251)  (1,017,231)
 695,400  220,503 

Other income 32  683,804  528,133 
Profit from operations  1,379,204  748,636 
Finance cost 33  (467,180)  (184,057)

 912,024  564,579 

Share of (loss) / profit of equity accounted investee - net of taxation  (224,074)  8,202 
Profit before taxation  687,950  572,781 
Taxation 34  (345,891)  (169,560)
Profit after taxation  342,059  403,221 

Earnings per share - basic (rupees) 35  1.67  2.10 

EARNINGS PER SHARE - DILUTED (RUPEES) 35  1.67  2.10 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Arif Saeed
(Director)

Usman Liaqat
(Chief Financial Officer)

Hassan Javed
(Chief Executive)
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31, 2022

2022 2021
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand
Profit after taxation  342,059  403,221 
Other comprehensive loss

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Remeasurements of employees’ retirement benefit obligation income - net of tax  (16,860)  (1,492)

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss  -    -   
Other comprehensive loss for the year - net of tax  (16,860)  (1,492)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR  325,199  401,729 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Arif Saeed
(Director)

Usman Liaqat
(Chief Financial Officer)

Hassan Javed
(Chief Executive)
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2022

2022 2021
Amount Amount

Note Rupees in thousand
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH (USED IN) / GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 36  (1,929,900)  670,909 

Finance cost paid  (317,080)  (166,584)
Income tax paid  (221,661)  (103,321)
Workers' profit participation fund paid  (18,300)  (30,104)
Workers' welfare fund paid  (11,455)  (15,866)
Employees' retirement benefit paid  (2,978)  (3,691)
Net decrease in long term loans to employees  (6,579)  (2,556)
Net decrease / (increase) in security deposits  796  (4,951)
Insurance claim received against loss of assets due to fire and business interruption loss  477,492  - 
NET CASH (USED IN) / GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS  (2,029,665)  343,836 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure on fixed assets  (684,225)  (214,979)
Interest on term deposit receipts and saving accounts received  28,115  32,070 
Loans given to Holding Company  (9,886,995)  (3,008,311)
Loans repaid by Holding Company  11,156,097  2,403,500 
Interest on loans to Holding Company received  599,986  297,793 
Investment made  (636,322)  (1,786,995)
Insurance claim received against loss on operating fixed assets and capital
work-in-progress due to fire  18,101  - 
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets  6,270  88 
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES  601,027  (2,276,834)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issuance of share capital - net of share issuance costs  -  2,078,149 
Proceeds from exercise of share options  6,500  - 
Proceeds from long term financing  149,306  5,303 
Repayment of long term financing  (148,460)  (137,568)
Short term borrowings - net  1,564,239  (333,882)
Dividends paid  (916,744)  -   
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  654,841  1,612,002 
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  (773,797)  (320,996)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR  935,417  1,256,413 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR  161,620  935,417 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Arif Saeed
(Director)

Usman Liaqat
(Chief Financial Officer)

Hassan Javed
(Chief Executive)
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1 THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

1.1 Service Global Footwear Limited (the Company) was incorporated as a public limited Company on 19 July 2019 in Pakistan under 
the Companies Act, 2017 and got listed on 28 April 2021. The shares of the company are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The 
registered office of the Company is located at 2- Main Gulberg, Lahore. The principal activities of the Company are manufacturing, sale, 
marketing, import and export of footwear, leather and allied products. The Company is the subsidiary of Service Industries Limited.

1.2  Geographical location

 Geographical location and addresses of all business units are as follows:

Offices, Manufacturing units, Retail outlets Addresses

Registered Office and Head Office Servis House, 2 – Main Gulberg, Lahore
Factory site 10 - KM, Muridke – Sheikhupura Road, Lahore
Land for factory site Hadbast Manga Otar, Raiwind, Lahore
Factory outlet 10 - KM, Muridke – Sheikhupura Road, Lahore

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been 
consistently applied to all years presented unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

a) Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. 
The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified 
under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

 Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued 
under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

b) Accounting convention

 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as otherwise stated in the respective 
accounting policies.

c) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires the use of certain critical 
accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company's accounting 
policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including 
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas where various assumptions and 
estimates are significant to the Company's financial statements or where judgments were exercised in application of accounting 
policies are as follows:

i) Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairments

 Estimates with respect to residual values and useful lives and pattern of flow of economic benefits are based on the analysis 
of the management of the Company. Further, the Company reviews the value of assets for possible impairment on an annual 
basis. Any change in the estimates in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of operating fixed assets, 
with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2022
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ii) Inventories

 Inventory write-down is made based on the current market conditions, historical experience and selling goods of similar 
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in market conditions. A review is made on each reporting date on 
inventories for excess inventories, obsolescence and declines in net realisable value and an allowance is recorded against the 
inventory balances for any such declines. 

 
iii) Income tax

 In making the estimates for income tax currently payable by the Company, the management takes into account the current 
income tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

iv) Allowance for expected credit losses

 The allowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree of estimation and judgement. It is based on the lifetime 
expected credit loss, grouped based on days overdue, and makes assumptions to allocate an overall expected credit loss rate 
for each group. These assumptions include recent sales experience and historical collection rates.

v) Revenue from contracts with customers involving sale of goods

 When recognizing revenue in relation to the sale of goods to customers, the key performance obligation of the Company is 
considered to be the point of delivery of the goods to the customer, as this is deemed to be the time that the customer obtains 
control of the promised goods and therefore the benefits of unimpeded access.

vi) Provisions

 As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws, regulations, public expectations, 
technology, prices and conditions, and can take place many years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions are reviewed 
at each reporting date and adjusted to take account of such changes. Any adjustments to the amount of previously recognized 
provision is recognized in the statement of profit or loss unless the provision was originally recognized as part of cost of an 
asset.  

vii) Contingencies

 The Company reviews the status of all pending litigations and claims against the Company. Based on the judgment and 
the advice of the legal advisors for the estimated financial outcome, appropriate disclosure or provision is made. The actual 
outcome of these litigations and claims can have an effect on the carrying amounts of the liabilities recognized at the statement 
of financial position date.

viii) Impairment of investment in equity method accounted for associate

 In making an estimate of recoverable amount of the Company's investments in equity method accounted for associate, the 
management considers future cash flows.

d) Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year and are relevant to the Company

 Following amendments to published approved accounting standards are mandatory for the Company’s accounting periods beginning 
on or after 01 January 2022:

• Amendments to IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ – Covid-19 related rent concessions extended beyond 30 June 2021;
• Amendments to IAS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ - Proceeds before Intended Use;
• Amendments to IAS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ - Onerous Contracts – Cost of Fulfilling a 

Contract amends IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’;
• Annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020 which amended IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and IFRS 16 ‘Leases’;
• 'Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3)' published by the International Accounting Standards Board 

(IASB) with amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations'.

 The above-mentioned amendments to approved accounting standards did not have any impact on the amounts recognized in prior 
period and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.
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e) Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year but not relevant to the Company

 There are amendments to published standards that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2022 but 
are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements and are therefore not 
detailed in these financial statements.

f) Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective but relevant to the Company

 Following amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for the Company’s accounting periods 
beginning on or after 01 January 2023 or later periods:  

 Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’) effective for the 
annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2023. These amendments in the standards have been added to further clarify when 
a liability is classified as current. The standard also amends the aspect of classification of liability as non-current by requiring the 
assessment of the entity’s right at the end of the reporting period to defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve months after 
the reporting period. An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes 
in Accounting Estimates and Errors’.

 Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and IFRS Practice Statement 2 ‘Making 
Materiality Judgement’) effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2023. These amendments are intended to 
help preparers in deciding which accounting policies to disclose in their financial statements. Earlier, IAS 1 states that an entity shall 
disclose its ‘significant accounting policies’ in their financial statements. These amendments shall assist the entities to disclose their 
‘material accounting policies’ in their financial statements.

 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12 ‘Income taxes’) effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2023. These amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on 
transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations.

 Change in definition of Accounting Estimate (Amendments to IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors) 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. This change replaced the definition of Accounting Estimate with a 
new definition, intended to help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates.

 On 31 October 2022, the IASB issued 'Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (Amendments to IAS 1)' to clarify how conditions with 
which an entity must comply within twelve months after the reporting period affect the classification of a liability. The amendments are 
effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2024.

 
 On 22 September 2022, the IASB issued 'Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16)' with amendments that 

clarify how a seller-lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy the requirements in IFRS 15 to be 
accounted for as a sale. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2024.

 Amendments to IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ and IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ (deferred 
indefinitely) to clarify the treatment of the sale or contribution of assets from an investor to its associates or joint venture, as follows: 
require full recognition in the investor’s financial statements of gains and losses arising on the sale or contribution of assets that 
constitute a business (as defined in IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’); require the partial recognition of gains and losses where the assets 
do not constitute a business, i.e. a gain or loss is recognized only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or 
joint venture. These requirements apply regardless of the legal form of the transaction, e.g. whether the sale or contribution of assets 
occur by an investor transferring shares in a subsidiary that holds the assets (resulting in loss of control of the subsidiary), or by the 
direct sale of the assets themselves.

 The above amendments and improvements are likely to have no significant impact on the financial statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2022
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g) Standards and amendments to approved published standards that are not yet effective and not considered relevant to the 
company

 There are other standards and amendments to published standards that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 
01 January 2023 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements 
and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.

2.2 Functional and presentation currency

 Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in 
which the Company operates (the functional currency). The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s 
functional and presentation currency. Figures are rounded off to the nearest thousand of Pak Rupees.

2.3 Foreign currency transactions and translation

 All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the reporting 
date. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. 
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange 
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are charged or credited to statement of profit or loss. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into Pak Rupees at 
exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are 
stated at fair value are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date when fair values are determined.

2.4 Employees’ retirement benefits

i) Contributory provident fund

 There is an approved contributory provident fund for employees of the Company. Equal monthly contributions are made both by the 
employees and the Company to the fund in accordance with the fund rules. The Company’s contributions to the fund are charged to 
statement of profit or loss.

ii) Defined benefit plan

 The Company operates a funded gratuity scheme as a defined benefit plan for its permanent employees other than those who 
participate in the provident fund scheme. The managerial staff is entitled to participate in both the provident fund trust and gratuity 
fund scheme.

 The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that 
employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets. The 
calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When 
the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits 
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value 
of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

 Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding 
interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. 
The Company determines the net interest expense / (income) on the net defined benefit liability / (asset) for the period by applying 
the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then net defined 
benefit liability / (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability / (asset) during the period as a result of 
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plan are recognized in profit 
or loss.

 When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the 
gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of 
a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.
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iii) Compensated absences

 The Company provides for liability in respect of employees' compensated absences in the period in which these are earned.

2.5 Taxation

 Current

 Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing law for taxation 
of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year, if 
enacted. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years 
arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising from differences between the 
carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the 
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets to the 
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses 
and tax credits can be utilized. 

 Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based on tax rates that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of profit or loss, 
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also 
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.6 Borrowings

 Financing and borrowings are recognized initially at fair value and are subsequently stated at amortized cost. Any difference between 
the proceeds and the redemption value is recognized in the statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the 
effective interest method.

2.7 Borrowing costs

 Interest, mark-up and other charges on long-term finances are capitalized up to the date of commissioning of respective qualifying 
assets acquired out of the proceeds of such long-term finances. All other interest, mark-up and other charges are recognized in 
statement of profit or loss.

2.8 Fixed assets

 Fixed assets except freehold land and capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses (if any). Cost of operating fixed assets consists of historical cost, borrowing cost pertaining to erection / construction 
period of qualifying assets and other directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to working condition. Freehold land is stated at 
cost less accumulated impairment loss.

 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All 
other repair and maintenance costs are charged to statement of profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

 Depreciation

 Depreciation on operating fixed assets is charged to the statement of profit or loss applying the reducing balance method so as to 
write off the cost / depreciable amount of the assets over their estimated useful lives at the rates given in note 13.1. Depreciations on 
additions is charged from the month in which the assets are available for use up to the month prior to disposal. The residual values and 
useful lives are reviewed by the management, at each financial year end and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.

 De-recognition

 An item of operating fixed assets is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or 
disposal.  Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset is included in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is 
de-recognized.
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 Capital work-in-progress

 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less identified impairment losses, if any. All expenditure connected with specific assets 
incurred during installation and construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to operating 
fixed assets as and when these are available for use.

2.9 Intangible assets

 Intangible assets, which are non-monetary assets without physical substance, are recognized at cost, which comprise purchase price, 
non-refundable purchase taxes and other directly attributable expenditures relating to their implementation and customization. After 
initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets 
are amortized from the month, when these assets are available for use, using the straight line method, whereby the cost of the 
intangible asset is amortized over its estimated useful life over which economic benefits are expected to flow to the Company. The 
useful life and amortization method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

2.10 Right-of-use assets

 A right-of-use asset is recognized at the commencement date of a lease. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss (if any). Cost comprises of the initial amount of the lease liability, adjusted for, as 
applicable, any lease payments made at or before the commencement date net of any lease incentives received, any initial direct 
costs incurred, and, except where included in the cost of inventories, an estimate of costs expected to be incurred for dismantling and 
removing the underlying asset, and restoring the site or asset.

 Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful life of the 
asset, whichever is shorter. Where the Company expects to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the 
depreciation is charged over its estimated useful life. Right-of use assets are subject to impairment or adjusted for any re-measurement 
of lease liabilities.

 The Company has elected not to recognize a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability for short-term leases with terms of 12 
months or less and leases of low-value assets. Lease payments on these assets are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

2.11 Lease liabilities

 A lease liability is recognized at the commencement date of a lease. The lease liability is initially recognized at the present value of the 
lease payments to be made over the term of the lease, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be 
readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments comprise of fixed payments less any lease incentives 
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, 
exercise price of a purchase option when the exercise of the option is reasonably certain to occur, and any anticipated termination 
penalties. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

 Lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The carrying amounts are re-measured if there 
is a change in the following: future lease payments arising from a change in an index or a rate used; residual guarantee; lease 
term; certainty of a purchase option and termination penalties. When a lease liability is re-measured, an adjustment is made to the 
corresponding right-of use asset, or to statement of profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is fully written down.

2.12 Employees’ share option scheme

 The Company operates an equity settled share based Employees Stock Option Scheme. The compensation committee of the Board of 
Directors of the Company evaluates the performance and other criteria of employees and approves the grant of options. These options 
vest with employees over a specific period subject to fulfillment of certain conditions. Upon vesting, employees are eligible to apply 
and secure allotment of Company’s shares at a price determined on the date of grant of options.

 At the grant date of share options to the employees, the Company initially recognizes employee compensation expense with 
corresponding credit to equity as employee share options reserve at the fair value of option at the grant date. The fair value of option 
determined at the grant date is recognized as an employee compensation expense on a straight line basis over the vesting period. Fair 
value of options is arrived at using Black Scholes pricing model.
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 When share options are exercised, the proceeds received, net of any transaction costs, are credited to share capital (nominal value) and 
share premium.

2.13 Investment in associate – (with significant influence)

 Associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence but not control or joint control. Investment in associate is 
accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognized at cost. 

 Under the equity method of accounting, the investment is initially recognized at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the 
Company’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Company’s share of movements 
in other comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from associate is 
recognized as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment. 

 When the Company’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other 
unsecured long-term receivables, the Company does not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments 
on behalf of the other entity. 

 Unrealized gains on transactions between the Company and its associate are eliminated to the extent of the Company’s interest in 
these entities. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. 
Accounting policies of equity accounted investee have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted 
by the Company. 

 Investment in equity method accounted for associate is tested for impairment in accordance with the provision of IAS 36 `Impairment 
of Assets`

2.14 Ijarah contracts

 Under the Ijarah contracts the Company obtains usufruct of an asset for an agreed period for an agreed consideration. The Company 
accounts for its Ijarah contracts in accordance with the requirements of IFAS 2 ‘Ijarah’. Accordingly, the Company as a Mustaj’ir (lessee) 
in the Ijarah contract recognises the Ujrah (lease) payments as an expense in the statement of profit or loss on straight line basis over 
the Ijarah term.

2.15 Investments and other financial assets

a) Classification

 The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

• Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and
• Those to be measured at amortized cost

 The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash 
flows.

 For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For 
investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity 
instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account 
for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company reclassifies debt investments when and 
only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

b) Measurement

 At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value 
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of 
financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

  Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely 
payment of principal and interest. 
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 Debt instruments

 Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow 
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

 Amortized cost

 Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and 
interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective 
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized directly in profit or loss and presented in other income 
/(other expenses) together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the 
statement of profit or loss.   

 
 Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

 Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash 
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are 
taken through other comprehensive income, except for the recognition of impairment losses (and reversal of impairment 
losses), interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in profit or loss. When the financial 
asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from 
equity to profit or loss and recognized in other income / (other expenses). Interest income from these financial assets is 
included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other 
income / (other expenses) and impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

 
 Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

 Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt instrument 
that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognized in profit or loss and presented net within other income / (other 
expenses) in the period in which it arises.   

 
 Equity instruments

 The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value for financial instruments quoted in an active market, the 
fair value corresponds to a market price (level 1). For financial instruments that are not quoted in an active market, the fair value 
is determined using valuation techniques including reference to recent arm’s length market transactions or transactions involving 
financial instruments which are substantially the same (level 2), or discounted cash flow analysis including, to the greatest possible 
extent, assumptions consistent with observable market data (level 3). 

 Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

 Where the Company’s management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other 
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Impairment 
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVTOCI are not reported separately from other 
changes in fair value.   

 Fair value through profit or loss

 Changes in the fair value of equity investments at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in other income / (other 
expenses) in the statement of profit or loss as applicable. 

 Dividends from such investments continue to be recognized in profit or loss as other income when the Company’s right to receive 
payments is established.

2.16 Financial liabilities - classification and measurement

 Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified 
as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at 
fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses 
are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also included in profit or loss.
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2.17 Impairment of financial assets

 The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECLs) on: 

-  Financial assets measured at amortized cost;
-  Debt investments measured at FVTOCI; and
-  Contract assets.

 The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are measured at 12-month 
ECLs:

- Debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
- Other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the 

financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date 
(or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

 When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating 
ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This 
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed 
credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

 The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than past due for a reasonable 
period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 
12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date 
(or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum period considered when estimating 
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

 The Company has elected to measure loss allowances for trade debts using IFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based 
on lifetime ECLs. The Company has established a matrix that is based on the Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted 
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. When determining whether the credit risk of a 
financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and 
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative 
information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment including forward-looking 
information.

 Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

 The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering of a 
financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and 
amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery from 
the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply 
with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

 At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost and debt securities at FVTOCI are 
credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future 
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

 Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
- a breach of contract such as a default;
- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise;
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- it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

2.18 De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

a) Financial assets

 The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers 
the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of 
the financial asset are transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and 
does not retain control over the transferred asset. Any interest in such derecognized financial assets that is created or retained 
by the Company is recognized as a separate asset or liability.

b) Financial liabilities

 The Company shall derecognizes a financial liability (or a part of financial liability) from its statement of financial position when 
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

2.19 Offsetting of financial instruments

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the financial statements when there is a legal 
enforceable right to set off and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.

2.20 Impairment of non-financial assets

 Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are 
subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment at each statement of financial position date or whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount for which 
assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell 
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately 
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of 
the impairment at each reporting date. Reversals of the impairment losses are restricted to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount 
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if impairment losses had 
not been recognized. An impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

2.21 Inventories

 Inventories, except for stock-in-transit and waste stock, are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined as 
follows:

 Stores, spares and loose tools

 Usable stores, spares and loose tools are valued principally at cost using first-in-first-out (FIFO) cost formula, while items considered 
obsolete are carried at nil value Items-in-transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon.

 Stock-in-trade

 Cost of raw material, work-in-process and finished goods is determined as follows:

 (i) For raw materials: First-in-first-out (FIFO) cost formula
 (ii) For work-in-process and finished goods: Direct material, labor and appropriate manufacturing overheads
 (iii) Finished goods purchased for resale: Moving average  

 Materials in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon. Waste stocks are valued at net 
realizable value.

 Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and 
the estimated costs necessary to make a sale.
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2.22 Trade and other payables

 Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are initially recognized at fair value, which is normally the transaction cost.

2.23 Trade and other receivables

 Trade debts are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less 
any allowance for expected credit losses. 

 Other receivables are recognized at amortised cost, less any allowance for expected credit losses.

2.24 Revenue recognition

 (a) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods, which is 
generally at the time of delivery.

 (b) Interest

Interest income is recognized as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the 
amortized cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate, 
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net 
carrying amount of the financial asset.

 (c) Dividend

Dividend on equity investments is recognized when right to receive the dividend is established.

2.25 Contract assets

 Contract assets arise when the Company performs its performance obligations by transferring goods to a customer before the customer 
pays its consideration or before payment is due. Contract assets are treated as financial assets for impairment purposes.  

2.26 Customer acquisition costs

 Customer acquisition costs are capitalized as an asset where such costs are incremental to obtaining a contract with a customer and are 
expected to be recovered. Customer acquisition costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract.

 Costs to obtain a contract that would have been incurred regardless of whether the contract was obtained or which are not otherwise 
recoverable from a customer are expensed as incurred to profit or loss. Incremental costs of obtaining a contract where the contract 
term is less than one year is immediately expensed to profit or loss.

2.27 Customer fulfilment costs

 Customer fulfilment costs are capitalized as an asset when all the following are met: (i) the costs relate directly to the contract or 
specifically identifiable proposed contract; (ii) the costs generate or enhance resources of the Company that will be used to satisfy 
future performance obligations; and (iii) the costs are expected to be recovered. Customer fulfilment costs are amortized on a straight-
line basis over the term of the contract.

2.28 Right of return assets

 Right of return assets represents the right to recover inventory sold to customers and is based on an estimate of customers who may 
exercise their right to return the goods and claim a refund. Such rights are measured at the value at which the inventory was previously 
carried prior to sale, less expected recovery costs and any impairment..

2.29 Contract liabilities

 Contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods to a customer for which the Company has received consideration 
from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods, a contract liability is recognized when the 
payment is made. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs its performance obligations under the 
contract.
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2.30 Refund liabilities

 Refund liabilities are recognized where the Company receives consideration from a customer and expects to refund some, or all, of 
that consideration to the customer. A refund liability is measured at the amount of consideration received or receivable for which the 
Company does not expect to be entitled and is updated at the end of each reporting period for changes in circumstances. Historical 
data is used across product lines to estimate such returns at the time of sale based on an expected value methodology.

2.31 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at banks on current, saving and deposit accounts and other short term highly 
liquid instruments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in 
values.

2.32 Provisions 

 Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events and it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
can be made of the amount of obligation.

2.33 Earnings per share - basic and diluted

 The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit 
or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 
the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company and the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.34 Contingent assets

 Contingent assets are disclosed when the Company has a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will only be 
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. 
Contingent assets are not recognized until their realization becomes certain.

2.35 Contingent liabilities

 Contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events whose existence will only be 
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. 
Contingent liabilities are not recognized, only disclosed, unless the possibility of a future outflow of resources is considered remote. In 
the event that the outflow of resources associated with a contingent liability is assessed as probable, and if the size of the outflow can 
be reliably estimated, a provision is recognized in the financial statements.

2.36 Derivative financial instruments

 Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value. Any directly attributable transaction costs are recognized in the statement of profit or 
loss as incurred. They are subsequently remeasured at fair value on regular basis and at each reporting date as a minimum, with all 
their gains and losses, realized and unrealized, recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

2.37 Share capital

 Ordinary shares are classified as share capital. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as 
a deduction, net of tax.

2.38 Government grants

 Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and 
the Company will comply with all attached conditions. 

 Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognized in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the 
costs that they are intended to compensate. 
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 Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred 
income and are credited to profit or loss over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.39 Dividend and other appropriations
 Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Company's financial statements in the period 

in which the dividends are declared and other appropriations are recognized in the period in which these are approved by the Board 
of Directors.

2.40 Goodwill
 Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non controlling interests in the 

acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition date 
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition date amounts 
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non 
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain. Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for impairment at least 
annually.

3. Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Share Capital

2022 2021 2022 2021
 (Number of shares) (Rupees in thousand)

Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each fully paid up in cash  54,437,500  54,437,500  544,375  544,375 
Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each issued pursuant to the
Scheme (Note 3.1.1)  150,000,000  150,000,000  1,500,000  1,500,000 
Ordinary share of Rupees 10 each issued under Employees
Stock Option Scheme  650,000 -  6,500 -

 205,087,500  204,437,500  2,050,875  2,044,375 

3.1 Movement during the year

2022 2021 2022 2021
 (Number of shares) (Rupees in thousand)

Balance at the beginning of the year  204,437,500  163,550,000  2,044,375  1,635,500 
Issue of ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each fully paid-up in cash -  40,887,500 -  408,875 
Issue of ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each under Employees
Stock Option Scheme  650,000 -  6,500 -
Balance at the end of the year  205,087,500  204,437,500  2,050,875  2,044,375 

3.1.1 As on 25 June 2020 (completion date for the purpose of the Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction [the Scheme] 
under section 279 to 283 and 285 of the Companies Act, 2017 between Service Industries Limited and its members and Service 
Global Footwear Limited and its members), net assets including surplus on revaluation of land, building and plant and machinery 
of the Company amounting to Rupees 2,890.684 million had been determined by Service Industries Limited - Holding Company 
in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. In return, the Company issued share capital of Rupees 
1,500 million (150,000,000 ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each) to Service Industries Limited - Holding Company. Resultantly, capital 
reserve for issuance of bonus shares of Rupees 1,390.684 million was recorded in the books of account of the Company.  
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3.2 163,550,000 (2021: 163,550,000) ordinary shares of the Company are held by Service Industries Limited - Holding Company. 
          

2022 2021
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

4 RESERVES

Composition of reserves is as follows:

Capital reserves 

Reserve for issuance of bonus shares (Note 3.1.1)  1,390,684  1,390,684 
Share premium (Note 4.1)  1,687,997  1,669,274 
Share options reserve (Note 4.2)  25,031  18,723 

 3,103,712  3,078,681 
Revenue reserve

Un-appropriated profit  1,009,937  1,606,332 
 4,113,649  4,685,013 

4.1 This reserve can be utilized by the Company only for the purposes specified in section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017.  
         

4.2 Share options reserve

4.2.1 Description of scheme:

 Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2020 was approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) on 25 November 
2020 which comprises of an entitlement pool of 4.350 million shares. Under the scheme, share options of the Company are granted 
to business head, vice president operations, vice president innovation and product strategy and employees of level MG 3 and above. 
The exercise period for options granted under the scheme shall be six months of the completion of respective vesting period. Details 
of the scheme are as follows:

Option grant year Number of options Vesting period Exercise price

Rupees in

2020  1,500,000 01 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 10
2021  712,500 01 January 2022 to 31 December 2025 25
2022  712,500 01 January 2023 to 31 December 2026 30
2023  712,500 01 January 2024 to 31 December 2027 36
2024  712,500 01 January 2025 to 31 December 2028 44

 According to the Employees Stock Option Scheme, if in anyone year, the full number of options are not granted, then the un-granted 
options maybe carried forward to the subsequent years. During the year, compensation committee granted 848,000 (2021: 650,000) 
options out of total 1,500,000 options from grant year 2020 and remaining 2,000 options will be granted in subsequent years. No 
option has been granted out of 712,500 options from grant year 2021 and will be granted in subsequent years.   
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2022 2021

Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

4.2.2 Movement in employee's share option reserve:

Balance at the beginning of the year  18,723  -   
Add: Recognized during the year at the fair value  25,031  18,723 
Less: Transferred to share premium  (18,723)  -   
Balance at the end of the year  25,031  18,723 

4.2.3 Movement in share options outstanding at end of the year is as follows:

 The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share options during 
the year:

2022 2021
Number of 

options
WAEP

(Rupees)
Number of 

options
WAEP

(Rupees)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year  650,000  10  -    -   
Add: Options granted during the year  848,000  10  650,000  10 
Less: Options exercised during the year  (650,000)  10 

Outstanding at the end of the year  848,000  10  650,000  10 

Exercisable at the end of the year  848,000  -    650,000  -   

4.2.4 Exercise price for options outstanding at the end of the year is Rupees 10.

4.2.5 Measurement of fair value 

 The fair value of the employee share options has been measured using the Black-Scholes pricing model.   

 The inputs used in the measurement of the fair value at grant date of the equity-settled share-based payment plans were as follows: 

2022 2021
Fair value at grant date Rupees  29.5180  28.8042 
Share price at grant date Rupees  47.00  38.00 
Exercise price Rupees  10.00  10.00 
Expected volatility % 15.96% 21.00%
Expected life Years  1.00  1.00 
Expected dividend % 20%  -   
Risk-free interest rate % 10.75% 8.41%
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 The expected life of the share options is based on historical data and current expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise 
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of 
the options is indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily be the actual outcome.    

2022 2021
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

5. LONG TERM FINANCING

From banking companies - secured

Long term loans (Note 5.1)  401,814  397,491 
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities (Note 11)  (40,962)  (144,902)

 360,852  252,589 
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5.3 This loan was obtained by the Company under SBP Refinance Scheme for payment of wages and salaries to workers. It was 
recognized and measured in accordance with IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments'. Fair value adjustment was recognized at discount rates 
ranging from 7.75% to 7.80% per annum.

6 EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT BENEFIT

 The latest actuarial valuation of the fund as at 31 December 2022 was carried out using the 'Projected Unit Credit Method'. Details 
of the fund as per the actuarial valuation are as follows:        
 

2022 2021
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

6.1 Amounts recognized in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation  185,141  144,067 
Fair value of plan assets  (27,750)  (30,203)
Net defined benefit obligation  157,391  113,864 

6.2 Movement in the present value of net defined benefit obligation

Net liability at the beginning of the year  113,864  98,642 
Current service cost   8,823  7,974 
Net interest on defined benefit obligation  13,204  9,447 
Net remeasurements for the year  16,860  1,492 
Contributions made during the year  (2,978)  (3,691)
Liability transferred from Holding Company  7,618  - 
Net liability at the end of the year  157,391  113,864 

6.3 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year  144,067  126,819 
Current service cost  8,823  7,974 
Interest cost  16,753  12,194 
Benefits paid during the year  (2,978)  (3,691)
Benefits due but not paid reversed  -  185 
Liability transferred from Holding Company  7,618  - 
Remeasurements on obligation:
Actuarial losses from changes in financial assumptions  680  433 
Experience adjustments  10,178  153 
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year  185,141  144,067 
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2022 2021
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

6.4 Movement in the fair value of the plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year  30,203  28,177 
Contributions made during the year  2,978  3,691 
Interest income on plan assets  3,549  2,747 
Benefits paid during the year  (2,978)  (3,691)
Benefits due but not paid reversed  -    185 
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income  (6,002)  (906)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  27,750  30,203 

6.4.1 Service Industries Limited Employees Gratuity Fund Trust as a gratuity fund of the Holding Company is also managing all the affairs 
relating to gratuity fund of the employees of the Company. Hence, total plan assets of Service Industries Limited Employees Gratuity 
Fund Trust as shown below have been allocated by the actuary for actuarial valuation purposes of the Company and Service Industries 
Limited - Holding Company. 

Mutual funds  96,810  102,710 
Bank balances  880  3,616 
Total plan assets  97,690  106,326 

Allocated to the Company  (27,750)  (30,203)
Allocated to Service Industries Limited - Holding Company  (69,940)  (76,123)

 -    -   
 
6.5 Amounts recognized in the statement of profit or loss

Current service cost  8,823  7,974 
Interest cost  16,753  12,194 
Interest income on plan assets  (3,549)  (2,747)
Net expense charged in the statement of profit or loss  22,027  17,421 

6.5.1 Charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales (Note 28)  19,096  13,727 
Distribution cost (Note 29)  103  92 
Administrative expenses (Note 30)  2,828  3,602 

 22,027  17,421 
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2022 2021
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

6.6 Remeasurements recognized in statement of other comprehensive income 

Experience adjustments  10,178  153 
Actuarial losses from changes in financial assumptions  680  433 
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income  6,002  906 

 16,860  1,492 
 

6.7 Principal actuarial assumptions used:

Discount rate used for interest cost % per annum 11.75  9.75 
Discount rate used for year end obligation % per annum 14.50  11.75 
Expected rate of salary increase % per annum 13.50  10.75 

6.8 Historical information

2022 2021 2020 2019
Amount Amount Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

Present value of defined benefit obligation  185,141  144,067  126,819  89,273 
Fair value of plan assets  (27,750)  (30,203)  (28,177)  (25,456)
Deficit  157,391  113,864  98,642  63,817 

Remeasurement loss / (gain) on obligation  10,858  586  2,354  (2,909)

Remeasurement (loss) / gain on plan assets  (6,002)  (906)  42  1,784 

6.8.1 Amounts for 2019  relates to period started from 01 July 2019 (date of demerger) and ended on 31 December 2019. 
 

6.9 The expected charge to statement of profit or loss for the year ending on 31 December 2023 will be Rupees 33.270 million. 
 

6.10 Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions

 The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumption at the reporting date: 

Defined benefit obligation

Changes in Increase in Decrease in

assumption assumption assumption

Bps Rupees in thousand

Discount rate  100  174,236  197,413 
Future salary increase  100  197,562  173,917 
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 The sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is 
unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit 
obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the 
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied. 

6.11 Mortality was assumed to be based on SLIC 2001-2005 ultimate mortality rates, set back one year.

6.12 The average duration of the benefit obligation is 6 years.

6.13 Expected maturity profile of undiscounted defined benefit obligation: 

Less than a year Between 1 - 2 years Between 3 - 5 years Between 6 - 10 years Over 10 years Total
--------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees in thousand ---------------------------------------------------------------

 8,051  38,599  148,977  109,764  1,301,476  1,606,867 

2022 2021
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

7. DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Deferred income tax  (Note 7.1)  -  2,761 
Deferred income - Government grant (Note 7.2)  -  -   

 -  2,761 

7.1 This represents deferred income tax liability on investment in associate (with significant influence). Provision for deferred income tax 
on other temporary differences was not considered necessary as the Company is chargeable to tax under section 169 of the Income 
Tax Ordinance, 2001.

7.2 Deferred income - Government grant

Balance at the beginning of the year  3,476  13,946 
Less: Amortized during the year (Note 32)  (3,476)  (10,470)

 -    3,476 
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities  (Note 11)  -    (3,476)
Balance at the end of the year  -    -   

7.2.1 The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP), through its Circular No. 06 of 2020 dated 10 April 2020 introduced a temporary refinance scheme 
for payment of wages and salaries to the workers and employees of business concerns (the Refinance Scheme). The refinance scheme 
was funded by SBP. Borrowers obtained loans from the banks and eased their cash flow constraints to avoid layoffs. One of the key 
feature of the refinance scheme was that borrowers can obtain loan at mark-up rates that are below normal lending rates. As per 
International Accounting Standard (IAS) 20 'Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance', the benefit 
of a Government loan at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a Government Grant. The Company obtained this loan as disclosed 
in note 5 to the financial statements. In accordance with IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' loan obtained under the refinance scheme was 
initially recognised at its fair value which is the present value of loan proceeds received, discounted using prevailing market rates of 
interest for a similar instrument. Hence, the benefit of the below-market rate of interest has been measured as the difference between 
the initial carrying value of the loan determined in accordance with IFRS 9 and the proceeds received. This benefit is accounted for and 
presented as deferred grant in accordance with IAS 20. The grant is being amortised in the statement of profit or loss, in line with the 
recognition of interest expense the grant is compensating.     
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2022 2021

Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

8 Trade and other payables

Trade creditors (Note 8.1)  1,261,315  784,070 
Accrued liabilities  539,137  411,722 
Contract liabilities - unsecured  (Note 8.2)  88,014  99,862 
Fair value of forward exchange contracts  9,425  -   
Provident fund payable  25,699  20,527 
Workers' profit participation fund (Note 8.3)  17,181  16,372 
Workers' welfare fund  (Note 8.4)  26,431  23,846 
Income tax deducted at source  5,004  3,140 
Payable to Holding Company (Note 8.5)  -    265 

 1,972,206  1,359,804 

8.1 These include Rupees Nil (2021: Rupees 3.647 million) due to Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited - subsidiary of the Holding 
Company. It is in ordinary course of business and interest free.

8.2 These include Rupees 1.17 million (2021: Rupees 0.238 million) relating to Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited - subsidiary of the 
Holding Company.

8.3 Workers’ profit participation fund

Balance at the beginning of the year  16,372  28,109 
Add: Provision for the year  (Note 31)  17,609  17,117 
Add: Interest for the year (Note 33)  1,500  1,250 
Less: Payments made during the year  (18,300)  (30,104)
Balance at the end of the year  17,181  16,372 

8.3.1 The Company retains workers' profit participation fund for its business operations till the date of allocation to workers. Interest is paid 
at prescribed rate under the Companies Profits (Workers Participation) Act, 1968 on funds utilized by the Company till the date of 
allocation to workers.

 
8.4 Workers' welfare fund

Balance at the beginning of the year  23,846  28,023 
Add: Provision for the year  (Note 31)  14,040  11,689 
Less: Payments made during the year  (11,455)  (15,866)
Balance at the end of the year  26,431  23,846 

8.5 The Company and Service Industries Limited - Holding Company opted group taxation under section 59AA of Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001 for the tax year 2021. Due to listing of the Company on 28 April 2021 and resultant dilution of shareholding of Service Industries 
Limited – Holding Company in the Company, from tax year 2022, the management decided to cease the group taxation. Hence, the 
net impact, after incorporating the prior period adjustments and advance tax, was recognized as payable to the Holding Company. 
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2022 2021
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

9. ACCRUED MARK-UP

Long term financing  8,492  3,920 
Short term borrowings  167,695  27,144 

 176,187  31,064 

10. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

From banking companies - secured

Short term running finances (Note 10.1 and Note 10.2)  1,626,304  611,480 
Export refinances  (Note 10.1 and Note 10.3)  3,712,595  3,312,595 
Export finance scheme (Note 10.1 and Note 10.4)  149,415  -   

 5,488,314  3,924,075 

10.1 TThese finance facilities are obtained from banking companies under mark-up arrangements and are secured by joint pari passu 
hypothecation charge over present and future current assets of the Company and ranking charge over present and future current 
assets of the Company. These form part of total credit facilities of Rupees 9,250 million (2021: Rupees 6,300 million).

 
10.2 The rates of mark-up range from 10.63% to 17.36% (2021: 7.50% to 9.77%) per annum. 

10.3 The rates of mark-up range from 2.25% to 10.00% (2021: 2.25% to 8.26%) per annum. 

10.4 The rates of mark-up range from 1% to 3% (2021: Nil) per annum. 

11. Current portion of non-current liabilities

Long term financing (Notes 5)  40,962  144,902 
Deferred income - Government grant (Note 7.2)  -    3,476 

 40,962  148,378 

12 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

12.1 Contingencies

12.1.1 The Company has challenged, before Honourable Lahore High Court, Lahore, the vires of first proviso to sub-clause (x) of clause 
(4) of SRO 491(1)/2016 dated 30 June 2016 issued under sections 3 and 4 read with sections 8 and 71 of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 
whereby through amendment in the earlier SRO 1125(I)/2011 dated 31 December 2011 adjustment of input sales tax on packing 
material of all sorts has been disallowed. The learned single judge of Honourable Lahore High Court has dismissed the writ petition 
of the Company, therefore intra-court appeal has been filled. Consequently, the Company has claimed input sales tax on packing 
material of Rupees 9.142 million (2021: Rupees 9.142 million) in its monthly sales tax returns. The management, based on advice 
of the legal counsel, is confident of favourable outcome of its appeal.

12.1.2 The Company has challenged, before Honourable Lahore High Court, Lahore, the vires of clauses (h) and (i) to sub-section (1) of 
section 8 of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 whereby claim of input sales tax in respect of building materials, electrical and gas appliances, 
pipes, fittings, wires, cables and ordinary electrical fittings and sanitary fittings have been disallowed. The Honourable Lahore High 
Court, Lahore has passed order whereby tax department shall consider whether  the Company is entitled to claim input sales tax 
on aforesaid goods that are used for the purpose of taxable supplies. Tax department shall consider the input sales tax adjustment 
for the relevant period. The Company has claimed input sales tax of Rupees 11.168 million (2021: Rupees 3.269 million) on such 
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goods in its respective monthly sales tax returns. The management, based on advice of the legal counsel, is confident of favourable 
outcome of this matter.     
 

12.1.3 Without considering the facts of the Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction between Service Industries Limited 
and the Company, the tax authorities through order dated 29 October 2021 alleged that the Company  suppressed its sale by 
Rupees 3,718.912 million during tax periods from  July 2019 to December 2019 and raised demand of Rupees 632.097 million 
and further tax of Rupees 111.547 million, along with penalty and default surcharge. Being aggrieved the Company filed appeal 
before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) - VI [CIR(A)] who upheld the order on 28 February 2022. The Company filed an 
appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) on 01 March 2022. ATIR on 20 June 2022 accepted the Company's 
contentions and remanded the issue on account of verification of the Company's claim that the sales tax liability (if any) on revenue 
reported by the Company in its audited financial statements, had been discharged by Service Industries Limited - Holding Company. 
On 14 November 2022, ACIR raised the original demand through appeal effect order, ignoring the findings and directions of ATIR. 
The Company filed an appeal before CIR(A) on 27 December 2022 and CIR(A) by way of his order dated 30 January 2023 has set-
aside the order dated 14 November 2022 of ACIR with the direction to ACIR to verify / confirm different treatment of sales in income 
tax return vs sales tax returns and to check adequate disclosure of the demerger transaction in audited financial statements of the 
Company and Service Industries Limited - Holding Company in light of directions of ATIR order dated 20 June 2022. Based on 
grounds and facts, the matter is likely to be decided in favour of the Company. 

12.1.4 Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) completed assessment proceedings and passed an order under section 11(2) of 
the Sales Tax Act, 1990 demanding sales tax amounting to Rupees 9.316 million and penalty amounting to Rupees 0.400 million 
against claimed input tax for the periods from July 2020 to June 2021. The Company filed an appeal before ATIR which was heard on 
13 December 2022 and the appellate order is awaited. The management is confident that decision will be in favour of the Company, 
hence, no provision has been made in these financial statements.   

12.1.5 Post dated cheques have been issued to custom authorities in respect of duties amounting to Rupees 2,471.501 million (2021: 
Rupees 1,657.194 million) on imported material availed on the basis of consumption and export plans. In the event the documents 
of exports are not provided on due dates, cheques issued as security shall be encashable.

12.1.6 The Company's share in contingency of associate accounted for under equity method is Rupees 109.672 million (2021: Rupees 
102.008 million).

12.2 Commitments

12.2.1 Contracts for capital expenditure are approximately of Rupees 30.710 million (2021: Rupees 35.905 million).  
 

12.2.2 Letters of credit other than capital expenditure are of Rupees 363.578 million (2021: Rupees 45.508 million).   
   

12.2.3  Outstanding foreign currency forward contracts are of Rupees 2,133.05 million (2021: Rupees 1,631.608 million). 
 

12.2.4  The Company has obtained vehicles under ijarah arrangements from Meezan Bank Limited and Bank AL Habib Limited for the period 
of four years and ijarah rentals are payable on monthly basis respectively. Future Ujrah payments under ijarah are as follows: 

2022 2021
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

Not later than one year  10,508  13,818 
Later than one year and not later than five years  16,162  24,644 

 26,670  38,462 
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12.2.5  Following represent commitments arising from short-term leases recognized on a straight-line basis as expense under the practical 
expedients applied by the Company. The amount of future payments under these leases and the period in which these payments 
will become due are as follows:

2022 2021
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

Not later than 1 year  4,310 -

13. FIXED ASSETS

Operating fixed assets (Note 13.1)  2,321,674  2,072,168 
Capital work-in-progress (Note 13.4)  272,904  59,236 

 2,594,578  2,131,404 
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13.1.1 Detail of operating fixed assets, exceeding the book value of Rupees 500,000 disposed during the year:

Description Quantity Cost
 Accumulated 

depreciation 

 Net book 

value 

 Sale 

proceeds 
 Gain 

 Mode of 

disposal 

 Particular of 

purchasers 

---------------------------------------------------Rupees in thousand---------------------------------------------------

Buildings on freehold 

land 

Warehouse 1  8,732  1,723  7,009  7,009 -  Insurance 
claim 

Jubilee General 
Insurance Company 
Limited, Karachi

Plant and machinery

Rotary Fusing Press 2  704 -  704  719  15 

Negotiation

Service Shoes Lanka 
(Private) Limited 
- subsidiary of 
Holding Company, 
Sri Lanka.

Single Needle Sewing 
Machine 16  3,231 -  3,231  3,671  440 
Double Needle Sewing 
Machine 2  586 -  586  599  13 
NC Machine Motor 1  641  21  620  620 - Insurance 

claim 
Jubilee General 
Insurance Company 
Limited, Karachi

Aggregate of items of 

operating fixed assets 

with individual book 

values not exceeding 

Rupees 500,000 61  17,376  13,438  3,938  4,051  113 
 31,270  15,182  16,088  16,669  581 

13.1.2 During the year, fire outbreak at factory premises of the Company at Muridke damaged certain items of operating fixed assets with 
an aggregate book value of Rupees 10.398 million. The Company had claimed such loss from its insurance providers in accordance 
with the relevant insurance policies as referred to in note 32.1.

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)

13.2 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales  (Note 28)  179,822  168,113 
Administrative expenses (Note 30)  7,040  3,258 

 186,862  171,371 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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13.3 Particulars of immovable properties (i.e. land and buildings) are as follows:

Manufacturing unit and residential 
colony Address

Area of freehold 
land

(Square Feet)

Covered area
(Square Feet)

Muridke factory and residential colony 10 - KM, Muridke - Sheikhupura Road, Muridke  1,345,693  408,789 

Freehold land Hadbast Manga Otar, Raiwind, Lahore  211,500  -   

13.4 Capital work in progress

Buildings 
on freehold 

land

Plant and 
machinery

Furniture, 
fixture and 

fittings

Service 
equipment Vehicles Total

---------------------------------------------------Rupees in thousand---------------------------------------------

At 31 December 2020  112,353 -  1,052  13,075  -  126,480 
Add: Additions during the year  78,119  44,223  9,037  74,182  -  205,561 
Less: Transferred to operating fixed assets 
during the year  (158,802)  (34,486)  (8,129)  (71,388)  -  (272,805)
At 31 December 2021  31,670  9,737  1,960  15,869  -  59,236 
Add: Additions during the year  339,580  220,844  5,778  71,615  1,478  639,295 
Less: Written off due to fire (Note 13.5)  (7,702) - - - -  (7,702)
Less: Transferred to operating fixed assets 
during the year  (104,119)  (221,053)  (7,738)  (85,015) -  (417,925)
At 31 December 2022  259,429  9,528  -  2,469  1,478  272,904 

13.5 During the year, fire outbreak at factory premises of the Company at Muridke damaged certain items of capital work-in-progress with 
an aggregate book value of Rupees 7.702 million. The Company had claimed such loss from its insurance providers in accordance 
with the relevant insurance policies as referred to in note 32.1. 

2022 2021
(Rupees in thousand)

14. LONG TERM SECURITY DEPOSITS

Security deposits against Ijarah  7,920  8,716 
Security deposits - others  3,529  3,529 

 11,449  12,245 
Less: Current portion shown under current assets (Note 23)  (877)  (1,129)

 10,572  11,116 
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2022 2021
(Rupees in thousand)

15. LONG TERM LOANS TO EMPLOYEES

Considered good:

Executives (Note 15.1, Note 15.2 and Note 15.3)  20,248  12,996 
Other employees (Note 15.3)  1,060  1,733 

 21,308  14,729 
Less: Current portion shown under current assets (Note 21)
Executives  (7,314)  (4,768)
Other employees  (360)  (673)

 (7,674)  (5,441)
 13,634  9,288 

15.1 Reconciliation of carrying amount of loans to executives:
Balance as at the beginning of the year  12,996  9,962 
Add: Reclassification of other employees to executives  -    1,273 
Add: Disbursements  13,581  6,500 
Less: Repayments                            (6,329)  (4,739)
Balance as at the end of the year  20,248  12,996 

15.2 Maximum aggregate balance due from executives at the end of any month during the year was Rupees 22.126 million (2021: Rupees 
13.943 million).    
 

15.3 These represent interest free loans to executives and employees for general purposes and house building. These are recoverable 
in monthly instalments over the period of 1 to 6 years and are secured by amount due to the employees against retirement 
benefits. 

15.4 The fair value adjustment in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' arising in respect of staff loans is not 
considered material and hence not recognized.

16. LONG TERM INVESTMENT

Investment in associate (with significant influence) - under equity method

Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited

 242,331,650 (2021: 178,699,500) fully paid ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each (Note 16.1)  2,217,650  1,805,402 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2022 2021
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

16.1 Investment in associate (with significant influence) - under equity method

Cost of investment  2,434,575  1,798,253 

Share of post acquisition changes in investee's net assets:

As at the beginning of the year  7,149  -   
Add: Share of post acquisition (loss) / profit - net of tax  (224,074)  8,202 
Less: Adjustment due to deemed disposal of equity accounted investee  -  (1,053)

 (216,925)  7,149 
Balance at the end of the year  2,217,650  1,805,402 

16.2 Summary of financial information of associate as per  audited financial statements for the year:

Current assets  10,659,078  3,818,378 
Non-current assets  19,572,718  16,355,425 
Total assets  30,231,796  20,173,803 
Current liabilities  9,078,646  1,570,759 
Non-current liabilities  9,407,310  9,025,525 
Share deposit money  18,448  30,181 
Total liabilities  18,504,404  10,626,465 
Net assets  11,727,392  9,547,338 

16.3 Reconciliation to carrying amounts:

Balance at the beginning of the year  9,547,338  -   
Net assets at acquisition date  -  4,555,187 
Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners  3,365,000  4,950,000 
(Loss) / profit after income tax  (1,184,946)  42,151 
Other comprehensive income  -  -   

Balance at the end of the year  11,727,392  9,547,338 

Percentage of holding 18.91% 18.91%

Company's share  2,217,650  1,805,402 
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2022 2021
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

16.4 Summarized statement of comprehensive income:

Revenue  8,307,127  187,746 

(Loss) / profit for the year  (1,184,946)  62,796 
Other comprehensive income for the year  -    -   
Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year  (1,184,946)  62,796 

16.5 Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing, sale, marketing, import and export 
of all steel radial truck, bus, light truck and off the road tyres. Its registered office is situated at Servis House, 2 – Main Gulberg, 
Lahore.     
   

16.6 Dongguan Service Global Limited is a limited liability company (wholly owned by foreign legal person) registered with Dongguan 
Administration of Market Regulations, China. Date of incorporation of Dongguan Service Global Limited is 18 December 2022. 
Business scope of Dongguan Service Global Limited is wholesale of shoes and hats, sales of leather products, sales of needle textiles 
and raw materials, wholesale of hardware products, sales of bags, sales of daily necessities, inspection of clothing and apparel, 
finishing services, technical services, technology development, technical consultation, technology exchange, technology transfer, 
technology promotion, import and export of goods, technology import and export (except for projects subject to approval according 
to law, independently carry out business activities according to law with a business license). Commercial address of Dongguan Service 
Global Limited  is Room 302, No. 18, Houjie Town, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, China. The capital of Dongguan Service Global 
Limited is USD 1,250,000. Service Global Footwear Limited shall own 100% shares of Dongguan Service Global Limited. However, 
Service Global Footwear Limited has not yet remitted funds into the bank account of Dongguan Service Global Limited against the 
shares subscribed and expects to make investment in shares of Dongguan Service Global Limited shortly.  

17. LONG TERM LOAN TO HOLDING COMPANY

Balance at the beginning of the year  2,500,000  - 
Add: Loan given to Holding Company  -  2,500,000 
Less: Loan repaid by Holding Company  (250,000)  - 

 2,250,000  2,500,000 
Less: Current portion shown under current assets (Note 21)  (500,000)  (250,000)
Balance at the end of the year  1,750,000  2,250,000 

17.1 This represents unsecured loan to Service Industrial Limited - Holding Company. This carries mark-up at 6-months KIBOR plus 0.25 
percent per annum or average borrowing cost, whichever is higher. The maximum aggregate amount receivable from the Holding 
Company at the  end of any month during the year was Rupees 2,500 million (2021: Rupees 2,500 million). It is neither past due 
nor impaired. Effective rate of mark-up charged on this long term loan ranges from 11.71% to 17.29% (2021: 7.94% to 11.71%) per 
annum.
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2022 2021
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

18. STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores  34,487  17,294 
Machinery spares  43,566  22,188 
Loose tools  11,146  7,497 

 89,199  46,979 
Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolete items  (Note 18.1)  (7,243)  (3,918)

 81,956  43,061 

18.1 Provision for slow moving and obsolete items

Balance at the beginning of the year  3,918  2,959 
Add: Provision for the year  3,325  959 
Balance at the end of the year  7,243  3,918 

19. STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw materials  (Note 19.1)  1,463,833  745,827 
Packing materials  70,413  48,769 
Work-in-process (Note 19.2)  802,489  489,315 
Finished goods (Note 19.3 and Note 19.4)  1,072,894  854,374 

 3,409,629  2,138,285 
Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolete stocks (Note 19.7)  (49,270)  (45,190)

 3,360,359  2,093,095 

19.1 These include stock-in-transit of Rupees 143.205 million (2021: Rupees 103.101 million).   
 

19.2 This includes stock of Rupees 160.843 million (2021: Rupees 48.732 million) sent to outside parties for processing.

19.3 These include stock in transit of Rupees 249.932 million (2021: Rupees 415.986 million). 

19.4 Finished goods of Rupees 41.088 million (2021: Rupees 48.308 million) are being carried at net realizable value.

19.5 The aggregate amount of Rupees 14.149 million (2021: Rupees 7.603 million) has been charged to cost of sales, being the cost of 
inventory written down during the year.

19.6 During the year, fire outbreak at factory premises of the Company at Muridke damaged certain items of raw material, work-in-process 
and finished goods. The carrying values of the assets damaged were Rupees 420.611 million, Rupees 15.795 million and Rupees 
50.585 million respectively. The Company had claimed such loss from its insurance providers as referred to in note 32.1. 
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2022 2021
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

19.7 Provision for slow moving and obsolete stocks

Balance at the beginning of the year  45,190  32,679 

Add: Provision for the year  4,080  12,511 

Balance at the end of the year  49,270  45,190 

20. TRADE DEBTS

Considered good:

Secured:
 - Against irrevocable letters of credit  1,094,395  93,764 
Unsecured:
- Related parties  (Note 20.3, 20.4 and 20.5)  91,081  262,682 
 - Others (Note 20.6)  662,854  465,511 

 753,935  728,193 
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses  (Note 20.7)  (8,610)  (4,243)

 1,839,720  817,714 

20.1 Types of counterparties:   -
Export

Corporate  1,756,617  633,614 
Other  -  - 

 1,756,617  633,614 
Local

Corporate  45,702  188,092 
Other  46,011  251 

 91,713  188,343 
 1,848,330  821,957 

20.2 Foreign jurisdictions of trade debts:

Europe  1,211,012  260,123 
Asia, Africa and Australia  318,307  262,145 
United States of America and Canada  227,298  111,346 

 1,756,617  633,614 
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20.3 This represents amounts due from following related parties:

2022 2021
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

Service Industries Limited - Holding Company  -    103,367 
Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited - subsidiary of the Holding Company  85,123  112,279 
Jomo Technologies (Private) Limited - associated company  5,958  47,036 

20.4 The maximum aggregate amount receivable from related parties at the end of any month during the year was as follows: 

Service Industries Limited - Holding Company  26,922  103,367 
Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited - subsidiary of the Holding Company  194,314  112,279 
Jomo Technologies (Private) Limited - associated company  65,230  77,107 

20.5 As at the reporting date, trade debts due from related parties amounting to Rupees 61.303 million (2021: Rupees 190.929 million) 
were past due but not impaired. The ageing analysis of this trade debts is as follows:

Upto 1 month  26,175  81,739 
1 to 6 months  30,793  28,463 
More than 6 months  4,335  80,727 

 61,303  190,929 

20.6 As at the reporting date, trade debts due from other than related parties of Rupees 296.675 million (2021: Rupees 85.702 million) 
were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers from whom there is no recent history of default. 
The age analysis of these trade debts is as follows:

Upto 1 month  45,008  24,993 
1 to 6 months  250,406  58,712 
More than 6 months  1,261  1,997 

 296,675  85,702 

20.7 Allowance for expected credit losses 
Balance at the beginning of the year  4,243  1,882 
Add: Allowance recognized during the year (Note 31)  4,367  2,361 
Balance at the end of the year  8,610  4,243 

20.8 The Board of Directors of Service Industries Capital (Private) Limited (SICPL) - wholly owned subsidiary of Holding Company of the 
Company has decided to close down the business operations of Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited - subsidiary of SICPL with 
effect from 15 January 2023, owing to prevailing global and economic downturn and unfavorable business conditions in Sri Lanka. 
However, as part of closure of business of Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited, the Company shall recover its trade debts from Service 
Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited in full during the financial year ending on 31 December 2023.
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2022 2021
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

21. LOANS AND ADVANCES

Considered good:

Short term loan to Holding Company (Note 21.1)  7,618  1,019,102 
Current portion of long term loan to Holding Company (Note 17)  500,000  250,000 
Advances against letters of credit  423,452  88,638 
Advances to suppliers (Note 21.2)  288,910  191,912 
Advances to staff  2,700  2,569 
Current portion of long term loans to employees  (Note 15)  7,674  5,441 

 1,230,354  1,557,662 

21.1 This represented unsecured loan to Service Industries Limited - Holding Company for working capital requirement. This carried 
mark-up at 1 - month KIBOR plus 0.05 percent per annum or average borrowing cost, whichever is higher. The maximum aggregate 
amount receivable from the Holding Company at the end of any month during the year was Rupees 2,746.29 million (2021: Rupees 
4,535.290 million). It is neither past due nor impaired. Effective rate of mark-up charged on this short term loan ranged from 10.40% 
to 16.63% per annum (2021: 7.48% to 9.57% per annum).

21.2 ADVANCES TO SUPPLIERS

Advances to suppliers  294,793  191,912 
Provision against doubtful advances to suppliers (Note 21.2.1)  (5,883)  -   

 288,910  191,912 

21.2.1 Provision against doubtful advances to suppliers

Balance at the beginning of the year  -    -   
Provision recognized during the year (Note 31)  5,883  -   
Balance at the end of the year  5,883  -   

22. ACCRUED MARK-UP

On short term loan to Holding Company (Note 22.1)  -    4,812 
On long term loan to Holding Company (Note 22.2)  -    50,292 
On term deposit receipts  -    2,733 

 -    57,837 

22.1 This represented accrued mark-up on short term loan given to Service Industries Limited - Holding Company. The maximum aggregate 
outstanding amount at the end of any month during the year was Rupees 37.074 million (2021: Rupees 80.495 million).

22.2 This represented accrued mark-up on long term loan given to Service Industries Limited - Holding Company. The maximum aggregate 
outstanding amount at the end of any month during the year was Rupees 90.949 million (2021: Rupees 50.356 million). 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2022 2021
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

23. SHORT TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Short term security deposits  4,650  1,452 
Prepayments  7,461  3,983 
Current portion of long term security deposits (Note 23)  877  1,129 

 12,988  6,564 

24. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Considered good:

Custom duty rebate  292,239  53,457 
Duty drawback  10,740  47,063 
Sales tax  484,527  367,316 
Fair value of forward exchange contracts  -    1,613 
Lab testing charges (Note 24.1)  3,159  26,573 
Claims receivable  53,529  -   
Insurance claim receivable (Note 32.1)  14,407  -   
Miscellaneous  12,904  -   

 871,505  496,022 

24.1 Lab testing charges

Lab testing charges  4,214  27,628 
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (Note 24.1.1)  (1,055)  (1,055)

 3,159  26,573 

24.1.1 Allowance for expected credit losses

Balance at the beginning of the year  1,055  -   
Add: Allowance recognized during the year (Note 31)  -    1,055 
Balance at the end of the year  1,055  1,055 

25. ADVANCE INCOME TAX - NET

Advance income tax  630,715  513,875 
Less: Provision for taxation  (410,365)  (166,534)

 220,350  347,341 
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2022 2021
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

26. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand  1,107  656 
With banks:
Current accounts:
Local currency  128,026  14,153 
Foreign currency  (Note 26.1)  32,487  8,067 

 160,513  22,220 
Saving accounts:
Local currency  (Note 26.2)  -    10 
Term deposit receipts  (Note 26.3)  -    912,531 

 161,620  935,417 

26.1 This represents EURO 134,550.85 (2021: EURO 40,133.29).

26.2 Rate of profit on bank deposits range from 4.25% to 6.50% (2021: 3.00% to 4.50%) per annum.

26.3 This represented term deposit with banking company having maturity period of one month and carried profit at the rate of 14.5%  
(2021: 12.00%)  per annum.

27. REVENUE 

Revenue from contracts with customers:

Export sales  11,699,022  6,565,536 
Local sales (Note 27.1)  257,491  518,908 

 11,956,513  7,084,444 
Less: Discounts, commissions etc.  (203,425)  (90,324)
Add: Duty drawback  -    46,037 

 11,753,088  7,040,157 

27.1 Local sales

Local sales  297,890  602,132 
Less: Sales tax  (40,399)  (83,224)

 257,491  518,908 

27.2 The amount of Rupees 56.775 million (2021: Rupees 18.836 million) included in contract liabilities (Note 8) at 31 December 2021 
has been recognized as revenue in 2022.     
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27.3 Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

 In the following table, revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by primary geographical market, major products and 
service lines and timing of revenue recognition:

Description 2022 2021
Rupees in thousand

Region

Europe  9,293,188  5,252,952 
United States of America and Canada  1,356,869  990,316 
Asia, Africa, Australia  845,540  231,944 
Pakistan  257,491  518,908 
Duty drawback  -    46,037 

 11,753,088  7,040,157 

Timing of revenue recognition

Products and services transferred at a point in time  11,753,088  7,040,157 
Products and services transferred over time  -    -   

 11,753,088  7,040,157 

Major products / service lines

Raw material  170,400  51,923 
Footwear  11,582,688  6,988,234 

 11,753,088  7,040,157 

27.4 Revenue is recognized at point in time as per the terms and conditions of underlying contracts with customers. 
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2022 2021
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

28. COST OF SALES

Raw materials consumed  (Note 28.1)  5,942,443  3,745,017 
Processing charges  165,341  14,599 
Salaries, wages and other benefits  (Note 28.2, Note 28.3 and Note 28.4)  2,386,761  1,634,581 
Packing materials consumed  700,049  383,059 
Stores and spares consumed  332,658  212,810 
Fuel and power  198,061  88,866 
Repair and maintenance  42,683  33,679 
Insurance  9,598  6,298 
Travelling  24,135  7,645 
Entertainment  4,166  7,373 
Rent, rates and taxes (Note 28.5)  2,951  -   
Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory  7,405  13,470 
Depreciation (Note 13.2)  179,822  168,113 
Other manufacturing charges  44,008  43,691 

 10,040,081  6,359,201 
Work-in-process:
Opening stock  489,315  250,274 
Closing stock  (802,489)  (489,315)

 (313,174)  (239,041)
Cost of goods manufactured  9,726,907  6,120,160 

Finished goods:
Opening stock  854,374  454,887 
Finished goods purchased  59,050  81,750 
Closing stock  (1,072,894)  (854,374)

 (159,470)  (317,737)
 9,567,437  5,802,423 

28.1 Raw materials consumed

Opening stock  745,827  684,426 
Add: Purchases during the year (Note 28.6) 7,081,060  3,806,418 
Less: Stock burnt due to fire  (420,611)  -   
Less: Closing stock  (1,463,833)  (745,827)

 5,942,443  3,745,017 
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28.2 Salaries, wages and other benefits include contributions of Rupees 85.195 million (2021: Rupees 62.263 million) and Rupees 19.096 
million (2021: Rupees 13.727 million) in respect of provident fund and gratuity fund respectively.   
 

28.3 Salaries, wages and other benefits include compensated absences expense of Rupees 19.426 million (2021: Rupees 15.564 million).

28.4 Salaries, wages and other benefits include share options expense of Rupees 16.619 million (2021: Rupees 11.522 million).

28.5 These include rent expense of Rupees 2.445 million (2021: Rupees Nil) related to short term leases. 

28.6 Custom duty rebate for the year amounting to Rupees 368.933 million (2021: Rupees 214.457 million) has been adjusted against 
raw materials consumed.

2022 2021
Rupees in thousand

29. DISTRIBUTION COST

Salaries and other benefits  (Note 29.1 and Note 29.2)  80,735  61,801 
Freight and insurance  396,968  235,983 
Samples, claims and product development  317,859  200,741 
Postage and courier  82,908  49,438 
Fuel and power  7,864  3,533 
Travelling and conveyance  23,300  6,943 
Entertainment  9,273  2,752 
Rent, rates and taxes (Note 29.3)  1,877  1,069 

 920,784  562,260 

29.1 Salaries and other benefits include contributions of Rupees 2.892 million (2021: Rupees 2.149 million) and Rupees 0.103 million 
(2021: Rupees 0.092 million) in respect of provident fund and gratuity fund respectively.

29.2 Salaries, wages and other benefits include share options expense of Rupees 1.948 million (2021: Rupees Nil). 

29.3 These include rent expense of Rupees 1.324 million (2021: Rupees 0.754 million) related to short term leases. 
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2022 2021
Rupees in thousand

30. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits (Note 30.1, Note 30.2 and Note 30.3)  335,497  299,650 
Communication  3,693  2,233 
Printing and stationery  7,266  3,036 
Travelling and conveyance  13,880  4,074 
Entertainment  11,897  6,056 
Vehicles' running  21,515  6,659 
Insurance  2,093  1,708 
Rent, rates and taxes  7,632  4,800 
Fuel and power  16,131  9,099 
Repairs and maintenance  12,011  1,880 
Auditor's remuneration  (Note 30.4)  2,963  2,600 
Legal and professional  33,820  27,380 
Subscription  138  1,860 
Depreciation  (Note 13.2)  7,040  3,258 
Ijarah rentals  13,192  15,497 
Computer running  11,605  8,611 
Advertisement  -    41 
General  22,969  21,324 

 523,342  419,766 

30.1 Salaries and other benefits include contributions of Rupees 10.063 million (2021: Rupees 8.942 million) and Rupees 2.828 million 
(2021: Rupees 3.602 million) in respect of provident fund and gratuity fund respectively.

30.2 Salaries and other benefits include share options expense of Rupees 6.464 million (2021: Rupees 7.201 million).

30.3 Salaries and other benefits include compensated absences  expense of Rupees 1.753 million (2021: Rupees 1.479 million).

30.4 Auditor's remuneration

Statutory audit fee  1,518  1,380 
Half yearly review  550  500 
Certification charges  500  375 
Reimbursable expenses  395  345 

 2,963  2,600 
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2022 2021
Rupees in thousand

31. OTHER EXPENSES

Donations  (Note 31.1)  4,226  1,930 
Allowance for expected credit losses - trade debts (Note 20.7)  4,367  2,361 
Provision against doubtful advances to suppliers (Note 21.2.1)  5,883  -   
Allowance for expected credit losses - lab testing charges (Note 24.1.1)  -    1,055 
Adjustment due to deemed disposal of equity accounted investee  -    1,053 
Workers' profit participation fund (Note 8.3)  17,609  17,117 
Workers' welfare fund (Note 8.4)  14,040  11,689 

 46,125  35,205 

31.1 This represents donation given to Servis Foundation - related party. Mr. Chaudhry Ahmed Javed, Director, Mr. Arif Saeed, Chairman, Mr. 
Omar Saeed, Director and Mr. Hassan Javed, Chief Executive are directors of Servis Foundation.   
 

32. OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

Interest on loans to Holding Company  544,882  287,668 
Interest on term deposit receipts and saving accounts  25,382  34,574 
Exchange gain - net  88,284  176,201 

Income From Non-Financial Assets

Excess of Company's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and 
liabilities over the cost of investment in associate (with significant influence)   -    11,258 
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets - net (Note 13.1.1)  581  10 
Insurance claim against business interruption loss (Note 32.1)  4,908  -   
Amortization of deferred income - Government grant  (Note 7.2)  3,476  10,470 
Scrap sales  16,291  7,952 

 683,804  528,133 

32.1 As referred to in notes 13.1.2, 13.5, and 19.6, during the  year fire outbreak at factory premises of the Company at Muridke damaged 
certain items of operating fixed assets, capital work-in-progress and stock-in-trade. The Company filed the insurance claim in respect 
of these assets. The insurer had appointed a surveyor who completed his survey during the current year and assessed the insurance 
claim at Rupees 510.000 million including business interruption claim of Rupees 4.908 million. Out of the total claim, the Company 
has received proceeds of Rupees 495.593 million from the insurer as of 31 December 2022. Subsequent to the reporting period, 
remaining amount has been received.
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2022 2021
Rupees in thousand

Carrying value of assets written off due to fire 

Operating fixed assets (Note 13.1)  10,399  - 
Capital work-in-progress (Note 13.4) 7,702  - 
Raw materials (Note 19)  420,611  - 
Work-in-process (Note 19)  15,795  - 
Finished goods (Note 19)  50,585  - 
Carrying value of assets written off due to fire  505,092  - 
Insurance claim verified to date  510,000  - 
Insurance claim against business interruption loss  4,908  - 

33. FINANCE COST

Mark-up on: 
- short term borrowings  403,785  118,872 
- long term financing  21,082  22,242 
Interest on workers’ profit participation fund  (Note 8.3)  1,500  1,250 
Bank charges and commission  40,813  41,693 

 467,180  184,057 

34. TAXATION

Current  (Note 34.1)  325,682  166,534 
Prior period adjustment  22,970  265 
Deferred tax  (2,761)  2,761 

345,891  169,560 

34.1 The Company falls under the ambit of presumptive tax regime under section 169 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Provision for 
income tax is made accordingly. Further, provision against income from other sources is made under the relevant provisions of the 
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

34.2 Provision for deferred income tax is not required as the Company is chargeable to tax under section 169 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001 and no temporary differences are expected to arise in the foreseeable future except for deferred tax liability as explained in note 7.
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2022 2021
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

34.3 Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit:

Accounting profit before taxation  687,950  572,781 
Applicable tax rate 29% 29%
Tax on accounting profit  199,506  166,106 
Prior period adjustment   22,970  265 
Deferred tax  (2,761)  2,761 
Super tax  39,477  -   
Tax effect of final tax regime income taxed at a lower rate  (3,377,104)  (2,046,255)
Tax effect of expenses / income that are not considered in determining taxable liability  3,463,803  2,046,683 

345,891  169,560 

35 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

35.1 Basic earnings per share

Profit after taxation attributable to ordinary shareholders (Rupees in thousand)  342,059  403,221 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (Numbers)  (Note 35.3)  204,734,897  191,555,137 
Basic earnings per share (Rupees) 1.67 2.10

35.2 Diluted earnings per share 

 Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion 
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company has granted share options to employees as explained in note 4.2.

Profit after taxation attributable to ordinary shareholders (Rupees in thousand)  342,059  403,221 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (Numbers) (Note 35.3)  204,734,897  191,555,137 
Adjustment for share options (Numbers)  645,178  524,007 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted earnings per share (Numbers)  205,380,075  192,079,144 
Diluted earnings per share (Rupees) 1.67 2.10

35.2.1 Share options issued by the Company have a dilutive effect on the earnings per share since the fair value of the ordinary shares during 
the year exceeds the exercise price of the options.

35.3 Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year :

Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of the year  204,437,500  163,550,000 
Effect of ordinary shares issued against cash  -    28,005,137 
Effect of ordinary shares issued under Employees Stock Option Scheme  297,397  -   

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at the end of the year  204,734,897  191,555,137 
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2022 2021
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

36. CASH (USED IN) / GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Profit before taxation  687,950  572,781 
Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:

Depreciation  186,862  171,371 
Provision for gratuity  22,027  17,421 
Provision for workers' profit participation fund  17,609  17,117 
Provision for workers' welfare fund  14,040  11,689 
Amortization of deferred income - Government grant  (3,476)  (10,470)
Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory  7,405  13,470 
Allowance for expected credit losses - trade debts  4,367  2,361 
Allowance for expected credit losses - lab testing charges  -  1,055 
Provision against doubtful advances to suppliers  5,883  -   
Finance cost  467,180  184,057 
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets  (581)  (10)
Insurance claim against business interruption loss  (4,908)  -   
Interest on loans to Holding Company  (544,882)  (287,668)
Interest on term deposit receipts and saving accounts  (25,382)  (34,574)
Exchange gain - net  (88,284)  (176,201)
Excess of Company's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and 
liabilities over the cost of investment in associate -  (11,258)
Share of (loss) / profit of equity accounted investee - net of taxation  224,074  (8,202)
Adjustment due to deemed disposal of equity accounted investee  -  1,053 
Employees' share option expense  25,031  18,723 
Working capital changes  (Note 36.1)  (2,924,815)  188,194 

 (1,929,900)  670,909 

36.1 Working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets:
Stores, spares and loose tools  (42,220)  (485)
Stock-in-trade  (1,758,335)  (724,577)
Trade debts  (938,089)  292,167 
Loans and advances  (437,826)  (52,213)
Prepayments  (6,676)  (481)
Other receivables  (350,677)  673,654 

 (3,533,823)  188,065 
Increase in trade and other payables  609,008  129 

 (2,924,815)  188,194 
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36.2 Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities
Year ended 31 December 2022

 Liabilities from financing activities

Long term

financing

Short term 

borrowings

Unclaimed 

dividend

-------------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------------

Balance at the beginning of the year  397,491  3,924,075  -   

Add: Financing / borrowings obtained  149,306  29,824,802  -   

Less: Repayment of financing / borrowings  (148,460)  (28,260,563)  -   

Dividends declared  -    -    921,594 

Dividends paid  -    -    (916,744)

Other changes - non-cash movement  3,477  -    -   

Balance at the end of the year  401,814  5,488,314  4,850 

Year ended 31 December 2021
 Liabilities from financing activities
Long term
financing

Short term
borrowings

-------------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------------

Balance at the beginning of the year  519,286  4,257,957 
Add: Financing / borrowings obtained  5,303  11,855,659 
Less: Repayment of financing / borrowings  (137,568)  (12,189,541)
Other changes - non-cash movement  10,470  -   
Balance at the end of the year  397,491  3,924,075 
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37. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

 The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for remuneration including all benefits to chief executive, directors and 
executives of the Company is as follows:

Chief Executive Officer Directors Executives

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

---------------------------------------------(Rupees in thousand) ---------------------------------------------

Managerial remuneration  40,375  35,083  21,791  18,697  62,950  66,800 
Bonus  20,833  20,000  5,673  3,832  31,568  27,297 
Allowances:
   House rent  4,038  3,508  5,516  4,725  23,715  24,038 
   Conveyance  4,038  3,508  480   -     6,880  2,758 
   Medical  -  -    3,269  2,805  8,568  10,091 
   Special allowance  -  -    4,034  1,196  216  3,708 
Retirement and other benefits  3,028  2,631  8,960  1,402  4,122  5,280 
Total  72,312  64,730  49,723  32,657  138,019  139,972 
Number of persons 1 1 2 2 30 32

Employee share options 
granted (No. of options) - -  250,000  450,000  598,000  200,000 
Issuance of ordinary shares 
(No. of shares) - -  450,000 -  200,000 -

37.1 No remuneration was paid to non-executive directors of the Company.

37.2 Chief Executive and certain executives of the Company are provided with fully maintained vehicles.

37.3 Aggregate amount charged in these financial statements for meeting fee to nine (2021: nine) directors was Rupees 1.840 million 
(2021: Rupees 1.866 million).

37.4 During the year ended 31 December 2022, Mr. Hassan Ehsan Cheema, Executive Director, Mr. Qadeer Ahmed Vaseer, Executive 
Director, Mr. Amer Ahmad Javed, Key management personnel, Mr. Syed Arshad Hussain Shah, Key management personnel, Mr. 
Usman Liaqat, Key management personnel and Mr. Muhammad Ashfaq, Key management personnel were granted 150,000 
(2021: 250,000), 100,000 (2021: 200,000), 35,000 (2021: Nil), 35,000 (2021: Nil), 101,500 (2021: Nil) and 100,000 (2021: 
200,000) employee share options respectively. 250,000 (2021: Nil), 200,000 (2021: Nil) and 200,000 (2021: Nil) number of ordinary 
shares were issued during the year ended 31 December 2022 to Mr. Hassan Ehsan Cheema, Executive Director, Mr. Qadeer Ahmed 
Vaseer, Executive Director and Mr. Muhammad Ashfaq, Key management personnel respectively.    

38. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

 The related parties comprise of the Holding Company, subsidiaries of the Holding Company, associated companies,  employees' 
gratuity fund trust, employees' provident fund trust and key management personnel. The Company in the normal course of business 
carries out transactions with various related parties. Detail of transactions with related parties, other than those which have been 
specifically disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are as follows:
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2022 2021
(Rupees in thousand)

Nature of relationship Nature of transactions

Holding Company

Service Industries Limited Sale of goods  68,244  224,929 
Expenses charged to the Company  235,853  183,712 
Purchase of goods  140,844  100,205 
Processing charges  118,947  -   
Loans given  9,886,995  3,008,311 
Loans repaid  11,156,097  2,403,500 
Interest income  544,882  287,668 
Dividend paid  735,975  -   

Sub-subsidiary of the Holding Company

Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited Sale of goods  170,401  53,216 
Purchase of goods  39,011  22,714 
Sale of operating fixed assets  6,189  -   

Associated company

Jomo Technologies (Private) Limited Sale of goods  11,985  67,227 
Purchase of goods  668  -   

Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited Investment made  636,322  1,786,995 
Service Foundation Donation made  4,226  1,930 

Key management personnel Dividends paid 10,794 -
Post employment benefit plans Company's contribution to gratuity fund trust  22,027  17,421 

Company's contribution to provident fund trust  98,150  73,354 

38.1 Detail of compensation to key management personnel is disclosed in Note 37.    
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38.2 Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions or have arrangements / agreements in place:

Name of the related party Basis of Relationship

Transactions entered or
agreements and / or

arrangements  in place
during the financial year

Percentage 
Shareholding

2022 2021

Service Industries Limited Holding Company  Yes  Yes Nil
S2 Power Limited Common directorship  No  No Nil
S2 Hydro Limited Common directorship  No  No Nil
Speed (Private) Limited Shareholding of Holding Company  No  No Nil
SBL Trading (Private) Limited Common directorship  No  No Nil
Jomo Technologies (Private) Limited Common directorship  Yes  Yes Nil
Service Industries Capital (Private) Limited Common directorship  No  No Nil
Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited Common directorship and share holding  Yes  Yes 18.91%
Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited Subsidiary of Service Industries Capital (Private) 

Limited (Subsidiary company of Service 
Industries Limited - Holding Company)  Yes  Yes Nil

Servis Foundation Common directorship  Yes  Yes Nil
Shalamar Hospital Directors of the Company are Trustees  No  No Nil
Kidney Centre Gujrat Directors of the Company are members of 

Board of Governors  No  No Nil
Shahid Arif Investment (Private) Limited Common directorship  No  No Nil
Nishat Power Limited Common directorship  No  No Nil
Cherat Packaging Limited Common directorship  No  No Nil
Habib Insurance Company Limited Common directorship  No  No Nil
Standard Spinning Mills (Private) Limited Common directorship  No  No Nil
Nestle Pakistan Limited Common directorship  No  No Nil
Thardeep Microfinance Foundation Common directorship  No  No Nil
Systems Limited Common directorship  No  No Nil
Service Provident Fund Trust Post employment benefit plan  Yes  Yes Nil
Service Industries Limited Employees Gratuity Fund 
Trust Post employment benefit plan  Yes  Yes Nil
Service Charitable Trust Directors of the Company are Trustees  No  No Nil
SIL GULF FZE Subsidiary of Holding Company  No  No Nil
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38.3 Particulars of companies incorporated outside Pakistan with whom the Company had entered into transactions or had agreements and 
/ or arrangements in place is as follows:

Name Country of incorporation Basis of association Percentage 
Shareholding

Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited Sri Lanka Subsidiary of Service Industries Capital 
(Private) Limited (Subsidiary company 
of Service Industries Limited - Holding 
Company)

Nil

SIL GULF FZE United Arab Emirates Subsidiary of Service Industries  Limited - 
Holding Company Nil

Dongguan Servis Trading Co., Ltd China Subsidiary company 100%

38.4 As on 31 December 2022, disclosure relating to subsidiary company, subsidiary of Service Industries Capital (Private) Limited - 
associated company and subsidiary of Service Industries Limited - Holding Company incorporated outside Pakistan: 

Particulars Details

Name of the company Service Shoes Lanka 
(Private) Limited 

SIL GULF FZE Dongguan Service 
Global Limited

Jurisdiction Sri Lanka United Arab Emirates China
Beneficial owner Service Industries Capital 

(Private) Limited
Service Industries 
Limited

Service Global Footwear 
Limited

Investment made during the year ended 31 December 2017 2022 To be made
Investment in

Local currency PKR 62,770,000 PKR 7,215,000 To be made
Foreign currency USD 600,000 AED 150,000 To be made

Terms and conditions of investment Investment in shares of 
subsidiary company

Investment in shares of 
subsidiary company

To be made

Amount of returns received None None None
Litigation against investee company None None None
Default / breach related to foreign company None None None
Gain / (loss) on disposal of investment Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable

39. PLANT CAPACITY

Installed capacity Actual production

(Pairs in thousand) (Pairs in thousand)

2022 2021 2022 2021

Strobel construction  1,600  1,450  1,526  1,365 
lasted construction  2,250  1,575  2,145  1,515 

 3,850  3,025  3,671  2,880 
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39.1 The deviation in actual production from installed capacity is due to rapidly growing trends as the Company has to change major shoe 
lines in accordance with the market trends. This involves change in manufacturing operations and product mix which causes variances 
not only between the installed capacity and actual production but also between the actual production of any two years.

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

40.1 Financial risk factors

 The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, other price risk and interest rate 
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial 
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.

 Risk management is carried out by the Company's finance department under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The 
Company's finance department evaluates and hedges financial risks. The Board provides principles for overall risk management, as 
well as policies covering specific areas such as currency risk, other price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and investment 
of excess liquidity. 

(a) Market risk

(i) Currency risk

 Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist 
due to transactions in foreign currencies.

 The Company is exposed to currency risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the United States 
Dollar (USD), Euro, Pound Sterling (GBP) and Chinese Yuan (CNY). Currently, the Company's foreign exchange risk exposure 
is restricted to the amounts receivable from / payable to the foreign entities. The Company's exposure to currency risk was as 
follows:
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2022 2021
Amount Amount

Cash at banks - EURO  134,551  40,133 
Trade debts - USD  2,892,102  2,507,944 
Trade debts - EURO  4,478,120  927,743 
Trade debts - GBP  75,526  - 
Other receivables - USD  207,918  - 
Other receivables - EURO  60,256  - 
Trade and other payables - USD  (2,096,919)  (690,989)
Trade and other payables - EURO  (702,812)  (351,890)
Trade and other payables - CNY  (65,725)  (7,357)
Net exposure - USD  1,003,101  1,816,955 
Net exposure - EURO  3,970,115  615,986 
Net exposure - GBP  75,526  - 
Net exposure - CNY  (65,725)  (7,357)

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the period:

Rupees per US Dollar

Average rate 204.92 163.26
Reporting date rate 226.40 176.60

Rupees per EURO

Average rate 213.99 192.73
Reporting date rate 241.45 201.00

Rupees per GBP

Average rate 250.83 224.26
Reporting date rate 273.02 239.55

Rupees per CNY

Average rate 30.22 25.31
Reporting date rate 32.53 27.86

 Sensitivity analysis

 If the functional currency, at reporting date, had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the USD, Euro, GBP and CNY with all other 
variables held constant, the impact on profit after taxation for the year  would have been higher / lower by Rupees 55.133 million 
(2021: Rupees 20.462 million) mainly as a result of exchange gains / losses on translation of foreign exchange denominated 
financial instruments. Currency risk sensitivity to foreign exchange movements has been calculated on a symmetric basis. In 
management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of inherent currency risk as the year end exposure does not reflect 
the exposure during the year.   
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(ii) Other price risk

 Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to 
the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company 
is not exposed to equity and commodity price risks.

(iii) Interest rate risk

 This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates.

 The Company's significant interest-bearing financial asset is loans to Service Industries Limited - Holding Company. The Company's 
interest rate risk arises mainly from long term financing, short term borrowings and loans to the Holding Company. Borrowings 
obtained at variable rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings obtained at fixed rate expose the Company 
to fair value interest rate risk.

 At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest bearing financial instruments was: 

2022 2021
Amount Amount

(Rupees in thousand)

Fixed rate instruments

Financial asset

Term deposit receipt -  912,531 

Financial liabilities

Long term financing  240,151  383,411 
Short term borrowings  3,862,010  3,312,595 

Floating rate financial instruments

Financial asset

Bank balances - saving accounts  -    10 
Loans to Holding Company  2,257,618  3,519,102 

Financial liabilities

Long term financing  161,663  14,080 
Short term borrowings  1,626,304  611,480 

 Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

 The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change 
in interest rate at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss of the Company. 

 Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

 If interest rates at the year end date, fluctuates by 1% higher / lower with all other variables held constant, profit after taxation for 
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the year  would have been Rupees 1.721 million (2021: Rupees 17.419 million) higher / lower, mainly as a result of  higher / 
lower interest income / expense on floating rate financial instruments. This analysis is prepared assuming the amounts of assets and 
liabilities outstanding at reporting the dates were outstanding for the whole year. 

(b) Credit risk

 Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to 
discharge an obligation. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to 
credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:

2022 2021
Amount Amount

(Rupees in thousand)

Security deposits  16,099  13,697 
Trade debts  1,839,720  817,714 
Loans and advances  2,278,926  3,533,831 
Accrued mark-up  -    57,837 
Other receivables  83,999  28,186 
Bank balances  160,513  934,761 

 4,379,257  5,386,026 

 The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (If 
available) or to historical information about counterparty default rate:

Rating 2022 2021
Short term Long term Agency Amount Amount

Banks (Rupees in thousand)
 

Meezan Bank Limited A1+ AAA VIS  10,975  8,067 
United Bank Limited A1+ AAA VIS  72  11 
MCB Bank Limited A1+ AAA PACRA  4,430  5,827 
Habib Bank Limited A1+ AAA VIS  1,228  3,084 
Allied Bank Limited A1+ AAA PACRA  -    800 
MCB Islamic Bank Limited A1 A PACRA  21,659  224 
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA  362  37 
Askari Bank Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA  12,440  248 
Soneri Bank Limited A1+ AA- PACRA  81,594  912,530 
Faysal Bank Limited A1+ AA PACRA  316  140 
Bank Al Habib Limited A1+ AAA PACRA  562  3,687 
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited A1+ AAA PACRA  157  82 
Samba Bank Limited A1 AA VIS  22  - 
Dubai Islamic Bank A1+ AA VIS  19  24 
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited A+ A1 PACRA  26,591  - 
The Bank of Punjab AA+ A1+ PACRA  86  - 

 160,513  934,761 

Annual Report 2022 109



Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2022

 The Company's exposure to credit risk and allowance for expected credit losses related to trade debts is disclosed in Note 20.

 Due to the Company's long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after giving due consideration to their 
strong financial standing, management does not expect non-performance by these counter parties on their obligations to the 
Company. Accordingly, the credit risk is minimal. 

 Trade debts

 The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss 
allowance for all trade debts.

 To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the 
days past due. These trade receivables are netted off with the collateral obtained, if any, from these customers to calculate the net 
exposure towards these customers. The Company has concluded that the expected loss rates for trade debts against local sales are 
different from the expected loss rates for trade debts against export sales.

 The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 months before 31 December 2022 and the 
corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and 
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The Company 
has identified the Gross Domestic Product, Unemployment, Interest and the inflation Index to be the most relevant factors, and 
accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected changes in these factors.

 On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 was determined as follows

At 31 December 2022

Local sales Export sales

Expected loss 

rate
Trade debts Loss allowance

Expected loss 

rate
Trade debts Loss allowance

% (Rupees in thousand) % (Rupees in thousand)
Not past due 0%  76,186  - 0%  449,292  - 

Up to 30 days 14.35%  2,357  339 2.25%  32,391  729 

31 to 60 days 34.52%  7,451  2,572 10.27%  19,121  1,964 

61 to 90 days 40.74%  24  10 15.65%  -  - 

91 to 180 days 53.47%  40  21 27.51%  7,285  2,004 

181 to 360 days 56.54%  99  56 36.43%  -  - 

Above 360 days 100.00%  915  915 100.00%  -  - 

 87,072  3,913  508,089  4,697 

Trade debts which are not 
subject to risk of default  4,641  -  1,248,528  - 

Gross Trade debts  91,713  3,913  1,756,617  4,697 

110 Service Global Footwear Limited



At 31 December 2021

Local sales Export sales

Expected loss 

rate
Trade debts Loss allowance

Expected loss 

rate
Trade debts Loss allowance

% (Rupees in thousand) % (Rupees in thousand)

Not past due 0%  64,508  - 0%  -  - 
Up to 30 days 0.63%  32,219  203 0%  -  - 
31 to 60 days 3.78%  7,771  293 0%  -  - 
61 to 90 days 8.38%  2,524  211 0%  -  - 
91 to 180 days 17.96%  9,131  1,640 0%  -  - 
181 to 360 days 33.05%  150  50 0%  -  - 
Above 360 days 100.00%  1,846  1,846 100.00%  -  - 

 118,149  4,243  -  - 
Trade debts which are not 
subject to risk of default  70,194  -  633,614  - 
Gross Trade debts  188,343  4,243  633,614  - 

(c) Liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.

 The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of 
committed credit facilities. At 31 December 2021, the Company had Rupees 3,761.686 million (2021: Rupees 2,375.925 million) 
available borrowing limits from financial institutions and Rupees 161.620 million (2021: Rupees 935.417 million) cash and bank 
balances. The management believes the liquidity risk to be low. Following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, 
including interest payments. The amount disclosed in the table are undiscounted cash flows:

 Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 31 December 2022:

Carrying

Amount

Contractual

cash flows

6 months

or less

6-12 

months

1-2

Years

More than

2 Years

--------------------------------------------------------(Rupees in thousand) --------------------------------------------------------
Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Long term financing  401,814  518,224  31,015  31,478  80,939  374,792 
Short term borrowings  5,488,314  5,639,405  5,056,264  583,141  -    -   
Trade and other payables  1,800,452  1,800,452  1,800,452  -  -    -   
Accrued mark-up  176,187  176,187  176,187  -  -    -   
Unclaimed dividend  4,850  4,850  4,850  -  -    -   
Derivative financial liabilities  9,425  9,425  9,425  -  -    -   

 7,881,042  8,148,543  7,078,193  614,619  80,939  374,792 
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Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 31 December 2021:

Carrying

Amount

Contractual

cash flows

6 months

or less

6-12 

months

1-2

Years

More than

2 Years

--------------------------------------------------------(Rupees in thousand) --------------------------------------------------------
Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Long term financing  397,491  440,027  83,292  78,896  48,957  228,882 
Short term borrowings  3,924,075  3,940,349  3,940,349  -    -    -   
Trade and other payables  1,195,792  1,195,792  1,195,792  -    -    -   
Accrued mark-up  31,064  31,064  31,064  -    -    -   

 5,548,422  5,607,232  5,250,497  78,896  48,957  228,882 

 The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of interest rates / mark up 
rates effective as at reporting date. The rates of interest / mark up have been disclosed in note 5 and note 10 to these financial 
statements.   
 

2022 2021

At amortized 

cost

At amortized 

cost
FVTPL

-------------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------------
40.2 Financial instruments by categories

Assets as per statement of financial position

Security deposits  16,099  13,697  - 
Trade debts  1,839,720  817,714  - 
Loans and advances  2,278,926  3,533,831  - 
Accrued mark-up  -  57,837  - 
Other receivables  83,999  26,573  1,613 
Cash and bank balances  161,620  935,417  - 

 4,380,364  5,385,069  1,613 

2022 2021

At amortized 

cost
FVTPL

At amortized 

cost

(Rupees in thousand)
Liabilities as per statement of financial position

Long term financing  401,814  -  397,491 
Accrued mark-up  176,187  -  31,064 
Short term borrowings  5,488,314  -  3,924,075 
Trade and other payables  1,800,452  9,425  1,195,792 
Unclaimed dividend  4,850  -  - 

 7,871,617  9,425  5,548,422 

112 Service Global Footwear Limited



40.2.1  Reconciliation of financial assets and financial liabilities to the line items presented in the statement of financial position is as 
follows:

2022

 Financial 

assets 

 Non-financial 

assets 

 Assets as per 

statement 

of financial 

position 

-------------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------------
Assets

Security deposits  16,099  7,461  23,560 

Trade debts  1,839,720  -  1,839,720 

Loans and advances  2,278,926  715,062  2,993,988 

Other receivables  83,999  787,506  871,505 

Cash and bank balances  161,620  -  161,620 

 4,380,364  1,510,029  5,890,393 

2022

 Financial 

liabilities 

 Non-financial 

liabilities 

 Liabilities as 

per statement 

of financial 

position 

-------------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------------

Liabilities

Long term financing  401,814  -  401,814 

Accrued mark-up  176,187  -  176,187 

Short term borrowings  5,488,314  -  5,488,314 

Trade and other payables  1,809,877  162,329  1,972,206 

Unclaimed dividend  4,850  -  - 

 7,881,042  162,329  8,038,521 
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2021

 Financial 

assets 

 Non-financial 

assets 

 Assets as per 

statement 

of financial 

position 

-------------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------------
Assets

Security deposits  13,697  3,983  17,680 
Trade debts  817,714  -  817,714 
Loans and advances  3,533,831  283,119  3,816,950 
Accrued mark-up  57,837  -  57,837 
Other receivables  28,186  467,836  496,022 
Cash and bank balances  935,417  -  935,417 

 5,386,682  754,938  6,141,620 

2021

 Financial 

liabilities 

 Non-financial 

liabilities 

 Liabilities as 

per statement 

of financial 

position 

-------------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------------

Liabilities

Long term financing  397,491  -  397,491 
Accrued mark-up  31,064  -  31,064 
Short term borrowings  3,924,075  -  3,924,075 
Trade and other payables  1,195,792  164,012  1,359,804 

 5,548,422  164,012  5,712,434 

40.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

 As on the reporting date, recognized financial instruments are not subject to off setting as there are no enforceable master netting 
arrangements and similar agreements.

40.4 Capital risk management

 The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern in order to 
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of 
capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, 
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industry and the requirements of the lenders, the Company 
monitors the capital structure on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as borrowings divided by total capital employed. 
Borrowings represent long term financing and short term borrowings obtained by the Company as referred to in note 5 and note 10 
respectively. Total capital employed includes 'total equity' as shown in the statement of financial position plus 'borrowings'.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2022
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2022 2021
Amount Amount

(Rupees in thousand)

Borrowings  5,890,128  4,321,566 
Total equity  6,164,524  6,729,388 
Total capital employed  12,054,652  11,050,954 
Gearing ratio 48.86% 39.11%

41. RECOGNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(i) Fair value hierarchy 

 Judgements and estimates are made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are recognized and measured at 
fair value in these financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the 
Company has classified its financial instruments into the following three levels. An explanation of each level follows underneath the 
table.

 
Recurring fair value measurements

Level 1  Level 2      Level 3 Total
At 31 December 2022

-------------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------------
 

Financial liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities  -    9,425  -    9,425 

Recurring fair value measurements
Level 1  Level 2      Level 3 Total

At 31 December 2021
-------------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------------

 
Financial assets

Derivative financial assets  -    1,613  -    1,613 

 The above table does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the 
carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value. Due to short term nature, carrying amounts of certain financial assets 
and financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair value. For the majority of the non-current receivables, the fair values 
are also not significantly different to their carrying amounts.

 There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 for recurring fair value measurements during the year. Further there was no transfer 
out of level 3 measurements.

 The Company’s policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.
 
 Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and equity securities) 

is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the 
Company is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

 Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is 
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determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

 Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is 
the case for unlisted equity securities.

(ii) Valuation techniques used to determine fair values 

 Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar 
instruments.   
 

42. PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURES

 Employees provident fund of Service Industries Limited - Holding Company namely Service Provident Fund Trust is also managing 
provident fund benefits of the employees of the Company.

 As at the reporting date, the Service Provident Fund Trust is in the process of regularizing its investments in accordance with section 218 
of the Companies Act, 2017 and the regulations formulated for this purpose by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. 

43. OPERATING SEGMENTS             

  These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment. 
 
 2.19% (2021: 7.42%) of the sales of the Company relates to customers in Pakistan. Of the remaining sales of the Company relating to 

customers outside Pakistan, 46.19% (2021: 48.65%) of those sales are made to customers in Germany.

  All non-current assets of the Company as at 31 December 2022 were located in Pakistan.

 17.87% (2021: 43.43%) of the local sales of the Company are made to a single customer in Pakistan. 

44. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

2022 2021

Number of employees  5,886  5,226 

Average number of employees during the year   5,522  4,914 

45. DETAILED BREAK-UP UTILIZATION OF THE PROCEEDS RAISED FROM THE ISSUE

 The Company issued Prospectus dated 31 March 2021 in relation to the issue of 40,887,500 ordinary shares (20% of the total post-
IPO paid-up capital of the Company) of face value of Rupees 10 each. The Company has received subscription amount of Rupees 
2,175,215,000 against Initial Public Offer of 40,887,500 ordinary shares of face value of Rupees 10 each at a price of Rupees 53.2 
per ordinary share (including premium of Rupees 43.2 per ordinary share). On 26 April 2021, shares have been duly allotted to all 
shareholders. As per paragraph 4.1.5 of the Prospectus, the proceeds from IPO shall be utilized for equity investment in Service 
Long March Tyres (Private) Limited (SLM). SLM shall utilize the proceeds to make payments to the contractors on account of civil and 
Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing (MEP) works of the Radial Bus and Truck Tyre Project. Detailed break-up utilization of the proceeds 
raised from the Issue for the period from 28 April 2021 to 31 December 2022 is as follows:

116 Service Global Footwear Limited



(Rupees in thousand)

IPO Proceeds 2,175,215

Profit on term deposit receipts received by the Company  46,250

2,221,465

Equity investment in Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited (SLM)  2,221,465

Utilization of aforesaid equity investment by Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited: 

Payments to the contractors on account of Civil and Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing (MEP) works of the project 2,221,465

46. UNUTILIZED CREDIT FACILITIES

Non- funded Funded

2022 2021 2022 2021

(Rupees in thousand) (Rupees in thousand)

Total facilities 2,635,000  5,475,000 9,250,000  6,300,000 
Utilized at the end of the year  (228,352)  (159,231)  (5,488,314)  (3,924,075)

Unutilized at the end of the year 2,406,648  5,315,769 3,761,686  2,375,925 

47. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

 The Board of Directors of the Company has proposed final cash dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 of Rupees 1 per share 
(i.e. 10%) at their meeting held on 30 March 2023 . However, this event has been considered as non-adjusting event under IAS 10 
'Events after the Reporting Period' and has not been recognized in these financial statements.
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48. DISCLOSURES BY COMPANY LISTED ON ISLAMIC INDEX

2022 2021
Amount Amount

(Rupees in thousand)

DESCRIPTION 

Loan / advances obtained as per Islamic mode:

Loans  2,502,778  3,996,639 
Advances from customers  88,014  99,862 
Shariah compliant bank deposits / bank balances

Bank balances  59,560  8,455 
Profit earned from shariah compliant bank deposits / bank balances

Profit on deposits with banks  133  3,990 
Revenue earned from shariah compliant business  11,753,088  7,040,157 
Gain / (loss) or dividend earned from shariah compliant investments  -  - 
Exchange gain earned  88,284  176,201 
Mark-up paid on Islamic mode of financing  120,089  45,821 

Profits earned or interest paid on any conventional loan

Profits earned  25,249  30,584 
Interest paid on loans  157,162  77,820 

 Relationship with shariah compliant banks

Name Relationship 

MCB Islamic Bank Limited Bank balance and short term borrowings
Meezan Bank Limited Ijarah, bank balance and short term borrowings
Faysal Bank Limited (Barkat Islami) Bank balance and short term borrowings
Dubai Islamic Bank Bank balance and short term borrowings
The Bank of Punjab (Taqwa Islamic banking) Short term borrowings
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited Bank balance and short term borrowings
Bank Al Habib Limited Ijarah

49. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

 These financial statements were authorized  for issue on 30 March 2023 by the Board of Directors of the Company. 

50. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

 Corresponding figures have been re-arranged, wherever necessary, for the purpose of comparison. However, no significant 
rearrangements have been made.

51. General

 Figures have been rounded off to nearest thousand of rupees, except stated otherwise.

Arif Saeed
(Director)

Usman Liaqat
(Chief Financial Officer)

Hassan Javed
(Chief Executive)
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Pattern of Shareholding 
As at December 31, 2022 

Number of Shareholders
Shareholding

Total Shares held
From To

173 1 100 4,466
1042 101 500 507,508
784 501 1,000 749,681
710 1,001 5,000 1,830,217
151 5,001 10,000 1,238,112
47 10,001 15,000 567,989
44 15,001 20,000 786,827
27 20,001 25,000 617,351
20 25,001 30,000 572,238
7 30,001 35,000 228,288

13 35,001 40,000 502,209
9 40,001 45,000 377,396

18 45,001 50,000 880,288
1 50,001 55,000 51,000
4 55,001 60,000 232,236
4 60,001 65,000 255,874
2 65,001 70,000 132,757
1 70,001 75,000 72,461
1 75,001 80,000 80,000
1 80,001 85,000 83,323
4 85,001 90,000 353,526

10 95,001 100,000 996,687
1 100,001 105,000 105,000
2 105,001 110,000 212,000
1 120,001 125,000 121,000
2 125,001 130,000 257,026
2 140,001 145,000 290,000
2 145,001 150,000 295,381
1 165,001 170,000 169,500
2 180,001 185,000 365,603
1 185,001 190,000 189,772
1 190,001 195,000 191,500
5 195,001 200,000 996,000
1 205,001 210,000 210,000
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Number of Shareholders
Shareholding

Total Shares held
From To

1 245,001 250,000 250,000
1 255,001 260,000 256,000
1 275,001 280,000 275,901
1 295,001 300,000 300,000
1 305,001 310,000 309,818
1 340,001 345,000 345,000
1 355,001 360,000 360,000
1 360,001 365,000 363,452
1 365,001 370,000 370,000
1 370,001 375,000 371,325
1 420,001 425,000 424,000
1 435,001 440,000 438,500
1 445,001 450,000 450,000
1 475,001 480,000 479,165
2 495,001 500,000 1,000,000
1 505,001 510,000 505,014
1 525,001 530,000 529,544
1 565,001 570,000 569,317
1 585,001 590,000 589,793
1 595,001 600,000 600,000
1 645,001 650,000 645,500
1 780,001 785,000 782,000
1 815,001 820,000 816,325
1 835,001 840,000 838,837
1 865,001 870,000 868,000
1 1,195,001 1,200,000 1,199,902
1 1,230,001 1,235,000 1,231,598
1 1,265,001 1,270,000 1,267,326
1 1,455,001 1,460,000 1,455,500
1 3,780,001 3,785,000 3,784,624
1 5,335,001 5,340,000 5,337,852
1 163,545,001 163,550,000 163,549,991

3,127 205,087,500

Pattern of Shareholding 
As at December 31, 2022 
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Categories of Shareholders Number of 
Shareholders

Number of 
Shares held Percentage

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouses and minor children 13 2,687,509 1.3104 

Associated Companies, undertakings and related Parties 1 163,549,991 79.7464 

NIT and ICP 4 1,522,951 0.7426 

Banks, Development Financial Instituations, Non Banking Financial Instituations 4 2,393,550 1.1671 

Modarabas and Mutual Funds 14 7,410,094 3.6131 

General Public
a. Local 3,043 18,261,318 8.9042 

b. Foreign 4 5,357,352 2.6122 

Others (to be specified)
1- Joint Stock Companies 35 3,616,424 1.7634 

2- Investment Companies 3 136,913 0.0668 

3- Pension Funds 1 9,000 0.0044 

4- Others 5 142,398 0.0694 

3,127 205,087,500 100.0000 

Shareholders holding 10% or more 1 163,549,991 79.7464 
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Information required under the Code of Corporate Governance

Categories of Shareholders Number of 
Shares held Percentage

Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties

SERVICE INDUSTRIES LIMITED (CDC)  163,549,991 79.7464

Mutual Funds

CDC - TRUSTEE AL AMEEN ISLAMIC DEDICATED EQUITY FUND (CDC)  29,307 0.0143
CDC - TRUSTEE AL HABIB STOCK FUND (CDC)  20,000 0.0098
CDC - TRUSTEE AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND (CDC)  309,818 0.1511
CDC - TRUSTEE AL-AMEEN SHARIAH STOCK FUND (CDC)  3,784,624 1.8454
CDC - TRUSTEE APIF - EQUITY SUB FUND (CDC)  37,061 0.0181
CDC - TRUSTEE ATLAS ISLAMIC STOCK FUND (CDC)  505,014 0.2462
CDC - TRUSTEE ATLAS STOCK MARKET FUND (CDC)  838,837 0.4090
CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN ASSET ALLOCATION FUND (CDC)  15,005 0.0073
CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN BALANCED FUND (CDC)  40,430 0.0197
CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN ISLAMIC FUND (CDC)  816,325 0.3980
CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN DEDICATED EQUITY FUND (CDC)  24,113 0.0118
CDC-TRUSTEE AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC RET. SAV. FUND- EQUITY SUB FUND (CDC)  589,793 0.2876
MCBFSL TRUSTEE ABL ISLAMIC DEDICATED STOCK FUND (CDC)  300,000 0.1463

Directors and their spouses and minor children

CHAUDHRY AHMED JAVED  1 0.0000
MR. ARIF SAEED  1 0.0000
MR. ARIF SAEED (CDC)  782,000 0.3813
MR. OMAR SAEED  1 0.0000
MR. OMAR SAEED (CDC)  1,455,500 0.7097
MR. HASSAN JAVED  1 0.0000
MR. AZMAT ALI RANJHA  1 0.0000
MR. ABDUL RASHID LONE  1 0.0000
MS. MALEEHA HUMAYUN BANGASH  1 0.0000
MR. HASSAN EHSAN CHEEMA  1 0.0000
MR. HASSAN EHSAN CHEEMA (CDC)  250,000 0.1219
MR. QADEER AHMED VASEER  1 0.0000
MR. QADEER AHMED VASEER (CDC)  200,000 0.0975

Pattern of Shareholding 
As at December 31, 2022 
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Categories of Shareholders Number of 
Shares held Percentage

Executives - -

Public Sector Companies and Corporations - -

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance Companies, 

 Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds  2,502,317 1.2201

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting rights

SERVICE INDUSTRIES LIMITED (CDC)  163,549,991 79.7464

Trade in shares of the Company by Directors, Executives and their spouses and minor children

Name  Purchase 

MR. OMAR SAEED   -  DIRECTOR  289,500 
MR. ARIF SAEED   -  DIRECTOR  782,000 
MR. HASSAN EHSAN CHEEMA   -  DIRECTOR  250,000 
MR. QADEER AHMED VASEER   -  DIRECTOR  200,000 
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I/We_________________________________________________________of __________________________________________________

________________________ being a member(s) of Service Global Footwear Limited and holder of_______________________ Ordinary Shares hereby 

appoint Mr. / Mrs. / Miss ________________________________________________ of _____________________________________________

or failing him / her __________________________ of __________________ as my/our proxy in my / our absence to attend and vote for me / us on my / 

our behalf at the 4th Annual General Meeting to be held on April 28, 2023 at 10:00 a.m. and / or at any adjournment thereof.

 

In witness thereof I / We have signed and set my / our hands seal thereon this _________________________day of _________________________2023 

in the presence of _________________________

Signed this ____________________________ day of ____________________________ 2023

  

Important:

1. This Proxy Form, duly completed and signed, must be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of holding 
the meeting. A proxy must be a member of the Company.

2. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instrument of proxies are deposited by a member with the Company, all such instruments 
of proxy shall be rendered invalid.

3. For CDC Account Holders / Corporate Entities

 In addition to the above the following requirements have to be met:

• Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be provided with the proxy form.
• The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.
• In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted along with proxy form to 

the Company.

Form of Proxy
4th Annual General Meeting

Account No.
Folio No. 

CDC Account No.

Participant I.D.
Signature on Fifty - Rupees

Revenue Stamp

The Signature should agree with 
the specimen registered with 

the Company.



The Company Secretary
Service Global Footwear Limited
Servis House, 2-Main Gulberg,
Lahore.
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The Company Secretary
Service Global Footwear Limited
Servis House, 2-Main Gulberg,
Lahore.



SERVICE GLOBAL FOOTWEAR LIMITED
Registered Office: Servis House 2-Mian Gulberg, Lahore.
Phone: +92 42- 35751990-6 Fax No. +92-42-35711827
Email: shareholders@servis.com
Website: www.serviceglobalfootwear.com

Ballot Paper For Voting Through Post
(in person and virtual 4th Annual General Meeting to be held at 10:00 a.m. on Friday, April 28, 2023)

Designated email address of the Chairman at which the duly filled in ballot paper may be sent: chairman@servis.com

Name of shareholder/joint shareholders
Registered Address 
Number of Shares held (on close of April 17, 2023) and folio number
CNIC No./Passport No (in case of foreigner) (Copy to be attached)
Additional information and enclosures
(In case of representative of body corporate, Corporation and Federal 
Government) 

I/we hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the following resolutions through postal ballot by conveying my/our assent or dissent to the 
following resolution by picking tick (√) mark in the appropriate box below:

Sr. No. Name and Description of Resolutions
I/We assent to the
resolution (FOR)

I/We dissent to the
resolution (AGAINST)

1. “Resolved that pursuant to the requirements of Section 
199 of the Companies Act, 2017, approval of the members 
of Service Global Footwear Limited (the “Company”) be and 
is hereby accorded and the Company be and is hereby au-
thorized to renew the investment of up to PKR 4.5 Billion 
(Rupees Four Billion Five Hundred Million) in the form of 
working capital loan in Service Industries Limited, a holding 
/ associated company, approved by the shareholders vide 
special resolution dated April 28, 2022 and expiring on June 
30, 2023, for a further period of one year till June 30, 2024 
with all other terms and conditions of the investment to re-
main unchanged.

Further resolved that Mr. Hassan Javed, Chief Executive 
Officer and / or Mr. Arif Saeed, and / or Mr. Omar Saeed, Di-
rectors of the Company be and is hereby singly empowered 
and authorized to undertake the decision of said investment 
as and when deemed appropriate and necessary in the best 
interest of the Company and its shareholders and to take all 
steps and actions necessary, incidental and ancillary includ-
ing execution of any and all documents and agreements as 
may be required in this regard and to do all acts, deeds and 
things, that may be considered necessary or necessary for the 
purpose of implementing this resolution.”
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Sr. No. Name and Description of Resolutions
I/We assent to the
resolution (FOR)

I/We dissent to the
resolution (AGAINST)

2. “Resolved that approval of the shareholders of Service 
Global Footwear Limited (the “Company”) be and is hereby 
accorded and the Company be and is hereby authorized to 
circulate the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company together with the reports and documents required 
to be annexed thereto under the Companies Act, 2017 
through QR enabled code and weblink instead of circulation 
through CD/DVD/USB.

Further resolved that Mr. Hassan Javed, Chief Executive 
Officer and / or Mr. Arif Saeed, and / or Mr. Omar Saeed, 
Directors of the Company be and is hereby singly empowered 
and authorized to do all acts, deeds and things, take or 
cause to be taken all necessary action for the purposes of 
implementing this resolution."

______________________
Signature of Shareholder(s)    

Place:   
Date: 

NOTES / PROCEDURE FOR SUBMISSION OF BALLOT PAPER:

1. Duly filled and signed original postal ballot should be sent to the chairman, Mr. Arif Saeed, Service Global Footwear Limited at Servis 
House 2-Main Gulberg, Lahore or a scanned copy of the original postal ballot to be emailed at: chairman@servis.com.

 
2. Copy of CNIC/Passport (in case of foreigner) should be enclosed with the postal ballot form.

3. Postal Ballot forms should reach chairman of the meeting on or before April 27, 2023 during working hours. Any Postal Ballot 
received after this date, will not be considered for voting.

4. Signature on Postal Ballot should match the signature on CNIC/Passport (in case of foreigner).

5. Incomplete, unsigned, in correct, defaced, torn, mutilated, over written ballot papers will be rejected.

6. In case of representative of body corporate and corporation, Postal Ballot must be accompanied with copy of CNIC of authorized person, 
along with a duly attested copy of Board resolution, Power of Attorney, or Authorization Letter in accordance with Section(s) 138 or 139 of 
the Companies Act 2017, as applicable, unless these have already been submitted along with Proxy Form. In case of foreign body corpo-
rate etc. all documents must be attested from the Pakistani Embassy having jurisdiction over the member.

7. Ballot paper has also been placed on the website of the Company www.serviceglobalfootwear.com. Members may download the ballot 
paper form the website or use original/photocopy published in newspapers
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�یر�و�ی آ�ڈ�ٹر�ز
س �، �ر�ٹا�ر ہو�ئے ہیں ا�و�ر ا�نی ا�یت کی 

�ن�ٹ
�و�و�د�ہ آ�ڈ�ٹر�ز میسر�ز ر�ا�ض ا�مد ا�نڈ کمپنی �، �ا�ر�ر�ڈ ا�ا�ؤ�ن�ٹ

�یا�د پر د�و�ا�ر�ہ تقر�ر�ی کے لئے خو�د و پیش کر�ے ہیں�۔ بو�ر�ڈ آ�ف ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر ز 31 �د�بر 2023 �و 
�تم ہو�ے و�ا�ے ما�ی سا�ل کے لئے کمپنی کے آ�ڈ�ٹر کے طو�ر پر ا�ن کی د�و�ا�ر�ہ تقر�ر�ی کے لئے آ�ڈ�ٹ 

�یٹی کی سفا�ر�ش کی تو�یق کر�ے ہیں�۔

 �ر�ٹا�ر�نٹ کی سہو�یا�ت میں سر�ما�ہ ا�ر�ی
�کمپنی ا�نے ملا�ز�ین کے لیے ر�ٹا ر�نٹ کی سہو�یا�ت کی منصو�ہ بند�ی ر�تی ہے و کہ متعلقہ بو�ر�ڈ 

�آ�ف ر�یز کے مطا�ق ہے�۔

�سا�ا�ہ گو�و�ا�ر�و�ں کی تیا�ر�ی کے بعد تبد�یا�ں
31�د�بر 2022 �ے ے کر 30�ما�ر�چ 2023 �ک ا�س سا�ا�ہ ر�و�ر�ٹ  �میں و�ی تبد�لی ا�سی 

�یں ہو�ی و کہ ا�س ما�ی گو�و�ا�ر�ے پر�ا�ر ا�د�ا�ز ہو ما سو�ا�ے 31 �د�بر 2022 �و تم ہو�ے 
�و�ا�ے ما�ی سا�ل  �ا ا�لا�ن بر�ا�ے حتمی ڈ�و�ڈ�ڈ 1 �ر�و�ے فی شیئر )�نی  10�صد( �س کی ا�د�ا�گی 
�صص ا�گا�ن کے سا�ا�ہ ا�لا�س عا�م میں منظو�ر کر�ے ے مشر�و�ط ہے�۔ ا�و�ر جیسا کہ 31 �د�بر 
2022 �و تم ہو�ے و�ا�ے ما�ی سا�ل کے آ�ڈ�ٹ شد�ہ ما�ی بیا�ا�ت  �کے نو�ٹ نمبر 47�میں د�ر�ج کیا 

�یا ہے�۔

 �ا�تر�ا�ف
ا�ز�ں  ا�و�ر تعا�و�ن کے مشکو�ر ہیں�۔ لا�و�ہ  د�ل ے بو�ر�ڈ کے ممبر�ا�ن کی قا�ل قد�ر ر�ما�ی  �م تہہ 
پر  مصنو�عا�ت  ہما�ر�ی  کی  گا�کو�ں  ہما�ر�ے  ا�و�ر  ششو�ں  و  عز�م  پر  ا�و�ر  ا�ھک  کی  ملا�ز�ین  تما�م  �م 
ا�نے صص ا�گا�ن ا مخلص تر�ن شکر ہ  بو�ر�ڈ کی جا�ب ے  �ا�ما�د کے بھی شکر گز�ا�ر ہیں�۔ م 
ر�ھی�۔ جا�ر�ی  حما�ت  متز�ز�ل  غیر  ہما�ر�ی  ا�و�ر  کیا  بھر�و�ہ  پر  م  ے  ا�ہو�ں  کہ  ہیں�۔  کر�ے   �ا�د�ا 

�م آ�ند�ہ سا�و�ں میں ا�ھے نتا�ج حا�ل کر�ے کیلئے پر عز�م ہیں�۔
�جا�ب بو�ر�ڈ

حسن جا�و�د �عا�ر�ف سعید 
�ئر�ین    �ف  �ا�گز�ٹو 

�و�ر�ہ 30�ما�ر�چ2023
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یں 	  معا�و�ہ  و�ی  و  ٹر�ز  ڈ�ا�ر  ا�ڈ�نڈ�ٹ  بشمو�ل  ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر  ا�گز�ٹو  ا�ن  ا�نے  �کمپنی 
ہو�ں�۔ شا�ل  میں  ا�لا�س  یٹی  ا  بو�ر�ڈ  کسی  و�ہ  کہ  کے  ا�س  �ما�سو�ا�ے  گی�،  کر�ے   �ا�د�ا 

�کمپنی بو�ر�ڈ ا یٹی ا�لا�س میں شا�ل ہو�ے ے متعلقہ سفر�ی    �ا�و�ر ر�ا�شی ا�ر�ا�جا�ت 	 
 �ا�د�ا کر�ے گی�۔

ا�و�ر ا�س کی منظو�ر�ی 	  �و�تاً �ظر ثا�ی کی جا�ے گی  �ڈ�ا�ر ٹر�ز کے معا�و�ہ کی پا�سی پر و�تاً 
�د�ی جا�ے گی ۔

31 �د�بر 2022 �و تم ہو�ے و�ا�ے سا�ل کے د�و�ر�ا�ن�، �معا�و�ے کے لیے ما�یا�ی گو�و�ا�ر�و�ں میں 
�د�ر�ج ذ�ل ر�و�م و�و�ل کی گئیں جن میں چیف ا�گز�ٹو آ�سر ا�و�ر ا�گز�ٹو ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر�ز کی د�گر مر�ا�عا�ت 

�شا�ل ہیں:

 72.312 �ین ر�و�ے )2021:  64.730 �ین ر�و�ے( �چیف ا�گز�ٹو آ�سر و ا�د�ا 	 
ئے�۔ �یے 

�د�و ا�گز�ٹو ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر و 49.723 �ین ر�و�ے )2021: 32.657 �ین( �ا�د�ا یے ئے�۔	 

 �بو�ر�ڈ آ�ف ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر�ز کے ا�لا�س
�ا�س سا�ل 4 �بو�ر�ڈ میٹنگز ہو�یں�۔ ممبر�ا�ن کی حا�ر�ی مند�ر�ہ ذ�ل ہے�۔

�حا�ر�ی �ہد�ہ �ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر�ز

4/4 �ئر�ین �نا�ب عا�ر�ف سعید

4/4 �چیف ا�گز�ٹو آ�سر �نا�ب حسن جا�و�د

0/4 �ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر �و�د�ر�ی ا�مد جا�و�د

3/4 �ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر �نا�ب عمر سعید

4/4 �ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر �نا�ب عظمت علی ر�ا�ھا

3/4 �ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر �نا�ب عبد�ر�ید و�ن

4/4 �ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر ہہ ہما�و�ں بنگش �تر�ہ مل�ی�

4/4 �ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر �نا�ب حسن ا�سا�ن چیمہ

4/4 �ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر �نا�ب قد�ر ا�مد و�یر

�بو�ر�ڈ ا�و�ر یٹی کے ا�لا�سو�ں میں شر�ت ہ کر�ے و�ا�ے ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر�ز کے لئے غیر حا�ر�ی کی ر�صت 
�منظو�ر کی گئی ۔

�بو�ر�ڈ ے د�و کمیٹیا�ں تشکیل د�ی ہیں نی آ�ڈ�ٹ یٹی ا�و�ر ہیو�ن ر�سو�ر�س ا�نڈ ر�مو�ر�شن یٹی�۔ 
�کمیٹیا�ں د�ر�ج ذ�ل ممبر�ا�ن پر مشتمل تھیں�۔

�آ�ڈ�ٹ یٹی
�آ�ڈ�ٹ یٹی ا�س و�ت تین ا�ر�ا�ین پر�مشتمل ہے س میں ے د�و ا�ڈ�نڈ�ٹ ڈ�ا�ر ٹر�ز ہیں ا�و�ر ا�ک 

�ا�ن ا�گز�ٹو ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر ہے�۔ یٹی ا ئر ین ا�ڈ�نڈ�ٹ ڈ�ا�ر ٹر ہے�۔ ا�س یٹی کے حو�ا�ے کی 
�شر�ا�ط  �ا�ر�و�ر�ٹ گو�ر�نس کے ضا�طہ ا�لا�ق ر�گو�شن کے مطا�ق تر�یب د�ی گئیں ہیں ا�و�ر یٹی و 

�ا�س کی تعمیل کر ے ا مشو�ر�ہ د�ا یا ہے�۔

�یٹی کی ا�س سا�ل  4 �میٹنگز ہو�یں�۔ ہر ممبر کی حا�ر�ی د�ر�ج ذ�ل ہے:

�حا�ر�ی �ہد�ہ �ممبر�ا�ن

3/4 �ئر�ین / �آ�ز�ا�د ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر �نا�ب عبد�ر�ید و�ن

4/4 �ممبر / ا�ن ا�گز�ٹو ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر �نا�ب عمر سعید

3/4 �ممبر�/ آ�ز�ا�د ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر ہہ ہما�و�ں بنگش �تر�ہ مل�ی�

ی�و�یر�شن یٹی یم� �ہیو�ن ر�سو�ر�س ا�و�ر�ر�
ی�و�یر�شن یٹی میٹی تین ا�ر�ا�ین پر مشتمل ہے جن میں ے ا�ک ا�ڈ�نڈ�ٹ  یم� �ہ ہیو�ن ر�سو�ر�س ا�و�ر�ر�
�ڈ�ا�ر یکٹ�، �ا�ک ا�ن ا�گز ٹو�ڈ�ا�ر ٹر�ا�و�ر ا�ک ا�گز ٹو ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر ہیں�۔ یٹی ا ئر ین ا�ڈ�نڈ�ٹ 
�ڈ�ا�ر ٹر ہے�۔ یٹی ا�گز ٹو�ز کے معا�و�ے�، �ا�کی ا�ر کر�د�گ�ی کے جا�ز�ے ا�و�ر جا�ینی کی منصو�ہ 

�بند�ی و�غیر�ہ کے ا�ر�ے میں ا�نی سفا�ر�شا�ت بو�ر�ڈ و پیش کر�ے ہیں�۔

�یٹی کی ا�س سا�ل 3 �میٹنگز ہو�یں ۔ ہر ممبر کی حا�ر�ی د�ر�ج ذ�ل ہے:

�حا�ر�ی �ہد�ہ �ممبر�ا�ن

3/3 �ئر�ین / �آ�ز�ا�د ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر �نا�ب عظمت علی ر�ا�ھا

3/3 �ممبر / ا�گز�ٹو ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر �نا�ب حسن جا�و�د

3/3 �ممبر / ا�ن ا�گز�ٹو ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر �نا�ب عمر سعید

�صص ا�گا�ن کی تفصیل
�ا�ر�و�ر�ٹ گو�ر�نس کے ضا�طہ ا�لا�ق کے مطا�ق 31 �د�بر 2022 �ک کی صص ا�گا�ن کی تفصیل 
�ا�س سا�ا�ہ ر�و�ر�ٹ میں د�ر�ج کی گئی ہے�۔ کمپنی کے صص میں ا�ر کسی ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر�، �ی ا�ی ا�و�، �ی ا�ف 
�ا�و�، �کمپنی سیکر�ٹر�ی�، �ا�د�ر�و�ی آ�ڈ�ٹ کے سر�بر�ا�ہ�، �ا�ن کی بیو�ا�ں ا چھو�ے بچو�ں ے ر�د و فر�و�ت 

�کی ہے تو و�ہ بھی ا�س ر�و�ر�ٹ میں د�ر�ج کر د�ی گئی ہے�۔

132 Service Global Footwear Limited



2022 �کے ا�م و�ا�عا�ت  �میں ے ا�ک �،�ا�مر�کہ میں و�ے کی سب ے بڑ�ی کمپنیو�ں میں ے 
�ا�ک کے سا�ھ ا�ہا�ی ا�م معا�د�ہ کر�ا ہے�۔ ا�س  �معا�د�ے ے آ�ے و�ا�ے سا�و�ں میں ز�بر�د�ت 
�تو�یع ا�و�ر تر�ی متو�ع ہے�۔ م ے ا�س معا�د�ے کے  �لئے  �یر پید�ا�و�ا�ر�ی ا�عد�ا�د و�ف کی 

�ہے�۔

�م  �ے معر�و�ف تر�ن و�ر�ی بر�ا�ڈ�ز میں ے ا�ک کے سا�ھ ا�ت چیت کر ر�ہے ہیں کہ و�ہ مستقبل 
�ر�ب میں سر�و�س گلو�ل فٹ و�ئر لمیٹڈ کی مصنو�عا�ت ر�د�ے ۔ ا�تد�ا�ی مر�ا�ل طے ہو چکے ہیں 
�ا�و�ر م 2023 �کی د�و�سر�ی ہ ما�ی میں ا�س بر�ا�ڈ کی لئے پید�ا�و�ا�ر شر�و�ع کر د�ں گے�۔ ا�س ے 
�ہما�ر�ے گا�کو�ں کی فہر�ت میں بہت بڑ�ا ا�ضا�ہ ہو گا�، �ا�و�ر نتیجتاً �ہ ہما�ر�ی نمو کی و�ششو�ں و آ�گے بڑ�ا�ے 

�میں معا�و�ن ہو گا�۔

�فا�تی و�تو�ں کی تیا�ر�ی پر ہما�ر�ی سر�ما�ہ ا�ر�ی ا�ک مظبو�ط پید�ا�و�ا�ر�ی شعبے کی شکل ا�یا�ر کر چکی ہے�۔ 
�ا�ب ہما�ر�ے پا�س و�ر�پ میں سا�ل 2023 �ا�و�ر ا�س کے بعد فر�و�ت کے لیے متعد�د کر�ٹ ا�ر�ا 

)CE( �شا�ن و�ا�ی مصنو�عا�ت ہیں�۔

�ین میں ہما�ر�ے ا�ر�و�ا�ر�ی معا�ملا�ت "�ڈ�و�گ گو�ا�ن سر�و�س گلو�ل لمیٹڈ" �کے ا�م ے ا�ک چینی 
�ذ�لی ا�د�ا�ر�ے کی تشکیل کے ذ�ر�عے بڑ�ا�ا یا ہے�۔ ا�ب ہما�ر�ے پا�س و�تو�ں کی ر�د�ا�ر�ی کے 
�عا�می مر�ز میں�، �ا�نا نئی مصنو�عا�ت کی تیا�ر�ی ا شعبہ�، �لز آ�س�، �ا�و�ر ر�د�ا�ر�ی ا د�تر ہے�۔ ہ ہمیں 
�د�گر لا�قا�ی و�ے بنا�ے و�ا�ے ا�د�ا�ر�و�ں کے مقا�لے میں مختلف شعبو�ں میں ا�ک ز�بر�د�ت مسا�تی 
�بر�تر�ی فر�ا�م کر�ا ہے س میں ٹیکنا�و�ی�، �نئی مصنو�عا�ت کی تیا�ر�ی کی ا�ر�کر�د�گی�، �ا�ت پر کنٹر�و�ل�، 

�ا�و�ر فر�و�ت بڑ�ا�ے کے و�ا�ع شا�ل ہیں�۔

�سر�و�س گلو�ل فٹ و�ئر لمیٹڈ ا�نی منظم حکمت عملی پر عمل د�ر�آ�د کر�ے ہو�ے ے تر�ی کی ر�ا�ہ پر گا�ز�ن 
�ہے ا�و�ر ا�نے صص ا�گا�ن کے لیے قد�ر میں یر ا�ضا�ہ کر�ے کے لیے  �پر�عز�م ہے

�ا�ر�و�ر�ٹ گو�ر�نس کے بہتر�ن طر�قو�ں پر عمل
�کمپنی تما�م ممکنہ ا�لا�ی ا�و�ر قا�نو�ی ضو�ا�ط پر و�ر�ا ا�تر�ے ا�و�ر ا�ر�و�ا�ر و ا�لیٰ �تر�ن پیشہ و�ر�ا�ہ ا�و�ر ا�لا�ی 
�یا�ر�ا�ت ا�و�ر طر�قو�ں کے مطا�ق چلا�ے کے لیے پر�عز�م ہے�۔ بو�ر�ڈ�ے لگا ا�ر بہتر�ی کیلئے ا�ک 
�طر�قہ ا�ر تشکیل کر د�ا ہے و کہ لگا ا�ر و�و�د�ہ طر�قو�ں و جا�تا ر�تا ہے ا�و�ر ہ ا�س ا�ت ا  �بھی تقا�ضا 
�کر ا ہے کہ کمپنی میں و�ت کے سا�ھ سا�ھ تبد�لی آ�ے ا�و�ر جب منا�سب و�ا�ع آ�یں تو کمپنی ا�س 
�کیلئے تیا�ر ہو�۔ چنا�چہ کمپنی ما�ر�یٹ میں د�یا�ب بہتر�ن ملا�ز�ین حا�ل کر�ے ا�و�ر ا�ن و و�ہ مہا�ر�ت 
�ا�و�ر و�ا�ع د�ے س ے و�ہ ا�علی ا�د�ا�ف و حا�ل کر�ے و�ا�ے بن جا�یں�۔ کمپنی لگا�ا�ر ا�نی مصنو�عا�ت 
�کی ا�سا�م ا جا�ز�ہ لیتی ر�تی ہے ا کہ معا�شر�ے کے سب ے ا�م مسئلہ ا ل نکا�ل سکے�، �ا�و�ر ا�س 

�طر�ح ا�نے صص ا�گا�ن کے لیے لگا�ا�ر منا�ع پید�ا کر�ی ر�ہے�۔

�کمپنی ا�د�ر�و�ی کنٹر�و�ز ا�و�ر ا�م کر�ے کے طر�قو�ں ا جا�ز�ہ لینے کے لیے آ�ز�ا�د ا�د�ا�ر�و�ں کی خد�ما�ت 
�ا ا�عما�ل جا�ر�ی ر�ھے ہو�ے ہے ا کہ شفا�ف ما�ی معلو�ما�ت فر�ا�م ہو سکے�، �و�ا�د و و�ا�ین ے م 
�آ�گی ا�و�ر ا�د�ر�و�ی کنٹر�و�ل کے نظا�م کی پا�بند�ی و یقینی بنا�ا جا سکے ۔ ا�س طر�ح ہمیں ا�نی پر�و�ڈ�شن 

�میں قد�ر بڑ�ا�ے ا د�ف بھی حا�ل ہو ا ہے�۔

پلا�نس پر ا�ک ظر کم�
�کمپنی ا�ر�و�ر�ٹ گو�ر�نس کی ا�و�و�ں پر سختی ے عمل پیر�ا ہے و کہ سیکو�ر�یز ا�و�ر ا�چینج کمیشن آ�ف 
�پا�تا�ن ے جا�ر�ی یے ہیں ا�و�ر�تما�م مقر�ر�ہ شر�ا�ط پر عمل د�ر�آ�د کیا ہے ۔ ا�س ا لا�ہ د�ر�ج ذ�ل 
ز�، 2019 �کی تعمیل کے بیا�ن میں کیا یا ہے  �ن

ن � ی�ش �کمپنیو�ں )�و�ڈ آ�ف ا�ر�و�ر�ٹ گو�ر�نس( �ر�گول�
 �س ا یر�و�ی آ�ڈ�ٹر�ز کے ذ�ر�عے جا�ز�ہ یا یا ہے�۔

 �ا�ر�و�ر�ٹ ا�و�ر ما�یا�ی ر�و�ر�نگ کے فر�م و�ر�ک پر ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر�ز کے بیا�ا�ت
�ا�ر�و�ر�ٹ ا�و�ر ما�یا�ی ر�و�ر�نگ کے فر�م و�ر�ک پر ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر�ز کے بیا�ا�ت د�ر�ج ذ�ل ہیں:

1 �۔ ا�ظا�یہ کے تیا�ر کر�د�ہ ما�ی گو�و�ا�ر�ے �،�کمپنی کے معا�ملا�ت�، �ا�م کر�ے کے نتا�ج�، �یش فلو ا�و�ر 
�ا�کو�ٹی میں تبد�لی و ا�حسن طر�قے ے پیش کر�ے ہیں�۔

2 �۔ کمپنی ے ا�ھی طر�ح ے ا�ا�و�ٹس کے کھا�ے تیا�ر کر ر�ھے ہیں�۔

3 �۔ ما�ی گو�و�ا�ر�و�ں ا�و�ر ا�ا�ئو�نٹنگ کے تخمینو�ں کی تیا�ر�ی میں منا�سب ا�ا ئو نٹنگ پا�سیو�ں و تسلسل 
�کے سا�ھ ا�عما�ل کیا جا�ر�ا ہے ا�و�ر ا�ا�ؤ�نٹنگ کے تخمینے معقو�ل ا�و�ر د�ا�مند�ا�ہ فیصلے پر مبنی ہیں�۔ 

4 �۔ ما�ی گو�و�ا�ر�و�ں کی تیا�ر�ی پا�تا�ن میں ا�گو ہو�ے و�ا�ے بین ا�و�ا�ی ما�ی ر�و�نگ میعا�ر�ا�ت کے 
�مطا�ق کی گئی ہے�۔ 

5 �۔ کمپنی ے ٹھو�س ا�د�ر�و�ی کنٹر و�ز ا�گو کر ر�ھے ہیں س ے یقینی بنا�ا جا�ا ہے کہ غلط معلو�ما�ت ہ 
�لے ا�و�ر نقصا�ن ہ ہو�۔ ا�د�ر�و�ی کنٹر و�ز کے نظا�م ا ا قا�د گی ے جا�ز�ہ یا جا ا ہے�۔ ا�س نظا�م و بو�ر�ڈ 

�کی حسب یٹی ے ا�ضا�طہ شکل د�ی ہے  �ا�و�ر حسب ر�و�ر�ت بہتر کیا جا ا ہے�۔

6 �۔ کمپنی کے لگا�ا�ر چلنے میں کسی قسم ا و�ی شک یں ہے�۔

7 �۔ ا�ر�و�ر�ٹ گو�ر�نس کے بہتر�ن طر�قو�ں ے ہٹنے کے و�ی و�ا�د یں ہے�، �جیسا کہ فہر�ت 
�سا�ز�ی کے ضو�ا�ط میں تفصیل ے بتا�ا یا ہے�۔

8 �۔ پچھلے 2 �سا�و�ں کے ا�م آ�پر�نگ ا�و�ر ما�ی ا�د�ا�د�و�ما�ر�ا�س سا�ا�ہ ر�و�ر�ٹ میں د�ر�ج ہے�۔ 

�تند ا�د�ر�و�ی ما�ی کنٹر و�ز
�ز نظا�م ا�یا�ر کیا ہو�ا ہے و کہ کمپنی کے ا�ثا�ہ جا�ت 

ش �کمپنی ے ا�د�ر�و�ی ا�و�ر ما�ی کنٹر و�ل ا ا�ہا�ی و�ئ�
�کی فا�ت و یقینی بنا�ا ہے�، �د�و�کہ د�ی کی شنا�ت کر ا ہے�، �ا�س ے بچا�ا ہے ا�و�ر متعلقہ و�ا�ین 

�کی پا�د�ا�ر�ی و یقینی بنا�ا ہے�۔ ا�د�ر�و�ی آ�ڈ�ٹ ا شعبہ بو�ر�ڈ�کے ا�د�ر�و�ی کنٹر�و�ل کے نظا�م کی 
�منا�سب و�فہ ے ظر ثا�ی ا�و�ر نگر�ا�ی کر�ا ہے�۔

�ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر�ز ا معا�و�ہ
�ڈ�ا�ر ٹر�ز ے بو�ر�ڈ کے ڈ�ا�ر ٹر�ز کے معا�و�ہ کے لئے ا�ک پا�سی منظو�ر کی ہے ۔ ا�س پا�سی 

 �کے ا�م نکا�ت د�ر�ج ذ�ل ہیں:
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�ل پر تو�ہ د�ی جا�ی ہے�، �و�ا�ع ڈ�و�ڈ�ے جا�ے ہیں�، �ا�شن پلا�ن بنا�ئ�ے جا�ے ہیں�، �ا�ن پر عمل 
ی�ا�ر ا�د�ا�ف حا�ل کئے جا�یں�۔  �د�ر�آ�د کیا جا�ا ہے ا کہ طو�ل المع�

�ما�حو�ل�، صحت ا�و�ر سیفٹی
�سر�و�س گلو�ل فٹ و�ئر لمیٹڈ ے کمپنی ے و�ا�تہ تما�م ا�د�ر�و�ی ا�یک ہو�ڈ�ر�ز جیسے کہ ملا�ز�ین�، 
�ا�ر�ین ا�و�ر شیئر ہو�ڈ�ر�ز کے لیے ا�ک محفو�ظ�، صحت مند�، ا�و�ر ضا�طہ ا�لا�ق پر مبنی ما�حو�ل فر�ا�م کر�ے 

�کے لیے د�ر�ج ذ�ل ا�قد�ا�ما�ت یے ہیں�۔

1( �ا�یا ا پہلا�سی تو�ا�ا�ی ے چلنے و�ا�ا و�تو�ں ا ا�ر�ا�ہ
�مبر 2017 �میں�، �سر�و�س گلو�ل فٹ و�ئر لمیٹڈ ے 1 �گا�و�ا�ٹ �سی تو�ا�ا�ی ے�لی پید�ا کر�ے 
�و�ا�ے پلا�ٹ کی تنصیب مکمل کی ا�و�ر مبر 2019 �میں ا�س کی صلا�یت و 2�گا�و�ا�ٹ ک بڑ�ا د�ا�، 
�ا�س طر�ح سر�و�س گلو�ل فٹ و�ئر لمیٹڈ ا�یا میں سی تو�ا�ا�ی ے چلنے و�ا�ا پہلا ا�ر�ا�ہ بن یا�۔ سر�و�س 
�گلو�ل فٹ و�ئر لمیٹڈ پہلی کمپنی ہے س ے ا�س سا�ل کے شر�و�ع میں ڈ�یو ٹی ا�و و�ر�م  �یو�ا میں ر�ن 

کی�۔ نما�ند�گی  کی  پا�تا�ن  میں  �و 
ٹ �ی�

ی�ش �
�ا�ن

2(  �عتی و�ا�د کی پا�د�ا�ر�ی
�و ے تصد�ق شد�ہ ہے و کہ ا�سا�ی 

ٹ �
�ی�ئ

ی�ش �
پلا�نس ا�ن �سر�و�س گلو�ل فٹ و�ئر لمیٹڈ بز�س سو�ل کم�

�قو�ق کے و�ا�ین �،ILO �نو�شن ا�و�ر پا�تا�ن کے لیبر و�ا�ین کے مطا�ق ما�حو�ل و د�ر�ت ر�نے کی 
�ا�ید کر�ا ہے�۔ لا�و�ہ ا�ز�ن سر�و�س گلو�ل فٹ و�ئر لمیٹڈ SEDEX Global�ا  2015 �ے 
�ممبر ہے و کہ ا�س ا�ت کی عکا�ی کر�ا ہے کہ م عا�می ا�ر�و�ا�ر میں د�س ہز�ا�ر ے ز�ا�د ملا�ز�ین و بہتر�ن 
�ا�م کر�ے ا ما�حو�ل فر�ا�م کر�ے میں ا�و�ر ا�لا�یا�ت پر مبنی ا�ر�و�ا�ر�ی طر�قے پر عمل کر�ے کے لئے 

�ا�و�ر ا�ن  �میں بہتر�ی ا�ے کے لیے پر عز�م ہیں ۔

3( خو�ا�تین ا�و�ر معذ�و�ر ا�فر�ا�د و ملا�ز�ت فر�ا�م کر�ا
�سر�و�س گلو�ل فٹ و�ئر لمیٹڈ ا�س ا�ت میں فخر محسو�س کر�ا ہے کہ و�ہ معا�شر�ے کے ہر فر�د کے لیے بلا 
�ا�یا�ز ملا�ز�ت فر�ا�م کر�ا ہے ۔ م خو�ا�تین ا�و�ر معذ�و�ر ا�فر�ا�د و بھی ا�نے ا�ں ملا�ز�م ر�نے کی حو�لہ ا�ز�ا�ی 
�کر�ے ہیں�۔ سر�و�س گلو�ل فٹ و�ئر لمیٹڈ ے خو�ا�تین ملا�ز�ین کے لیے و�ا�ق ما�حو�ل فر�ا�م کر�ے 
�کے لیے�مر�د�کہ و�تو�ں کے ا�ر�ا�ے میں علیحد�ہ پر�و�ڈ�شن ا�نز قا�م کر ر�ھی ہیں جہا�ں 171 �ے 

�ز�ا�د�ہ خو�ا�تین ا�م کر ر�ی ہے�۔

4( �بین ا�ا�و�ا�ی یا�ر�ا�ت ے مطا�قت
�سر�و�س گلو�ل فٹ و�ئر لمیٹڈ مجمو�ی مینجمنٹ سسٹم )IMS( �کے ا�ک و�یع پر�و�کٹ ے گز�ر�ا ہے 

�ا�و�ر ا�ب فر�و�ر�ی 2022 �میں تین بین ا�ا�و�ا�ی یا�ر�ا�ت  �ے تصد�ق شد�ہ ہے�۔

ISO 9001:2015 1. �و�ا�ٹی میں بہتر�ی ا نظا�م 
ISO 14001:2015 2. �ما�حو�یا�ت میں بہتر�ی ا نظا�م 
ISO 45001:2018 3.  �پیشہ و ر�ا�ہ فا�ت ا نظا�م 

�ا�س کے لا�و�ہ�، �سر�و�س گلو�ل فٹ و�ئر لمیٹڈ ملک کی و�ہ پہلی و�تو�ں کی کمپنی بھی بن  �چکی ہے س کے 
�ا�حا�طے کے ا�د�ر و�و�د لیبا�ر�ر�ی د�ر�ج ذ�ل یا�ر�کے تحت تصد�ق شد�ہ ہے�۔

 ISO 17025/2017 �لیبا�ر�ر�ی میں بہتر�ی ا نظا�م 

�بین ا�ا�و�ا�ی یا�ر�ا�ت  �کی  �سب ے ز�ا�د�ہ تعمیل کر�ے و�ا�ی کمپنیو�ں میں�ما�ر ہو�ے کے ا�نے عز�م 
�و بر�ر�ا�ر ر�تے ہو�ے�، �م ے ا�س سا�ل بھی ا�نی ا�عد�ا�د و بر�ر�ا�ر ر�نے کر�ے کے لیے ز�د 

�یا�ر�ا�ت شا�ل یے ہیں�۔

5( �ا�ر�ین کے تحفظ کے ا�قد�ا�ما�ت
�سر�و�س گلو�ل فٹ و�ئر لمیٹڈ 2010 �ے SATRA �ٹیکنا�و�یز ا ر�ن بھی ہے و و�ے ا�و�ر 
�مڑ�ے کی مصنو�عا�ت پر تحقیق ا�و�ر ٹیسٹ کر�و�ا�ی ہے ا�کہ ہ یقینی بنا�ا جا سکے کہ مصنو�عا�ت آ�ر�ا�م د�ہ�، 

ا�و�ر پا�ید�ا�ر ہے�۔ �محفو�ظ�، �ا�ر�آ�د 

6( �ا�ر�و�ا�ر�ی ا�لا�یا�ت ا�و�ر ا�سد�ا�د بد�نو�ا�ی کے ا�قد�ا�ما�ت
�م ا�ر�و�ا�ر و و�ر�ی د�ا�تد�ا�ر�ی ا�و�ر متعلقہ و�ا�ین کی پا�د�ا�ر�ی کے سا�ھ کر�ے کے لیے پر عز�م ہیں�۔ 
�ہما�ر�ا ا�لا�یا�ت ا�و�ر ا�ر�و�ا�ر کر�ے کے طر�قو�ں ا بیا�یہ کہتا ہے کہ�، “�ہ کمپنی کی پا�سی ہے کہ و�ہ ا�نے 
�آ�پر�نز و ا�علی تر�ن ا�لا�ی ا�قد�ا�ر کے مطا�ق چلا�یں تما�م قا�نو�ی ضا�طو�ں کی تعمیل کر�ں ا�و�ر ا�د�ا�ر�و�ں 

�کے لیے بنا�ے ئے بہتر�ن یا�ر�ا�ت کے مطا�ق ہو�ں�”�۔

7( �و�ی محصو�ا�ت میں ہما�ر�ا حصہ
�سر�و�س گلو�ل فٹ و�ئر لمیٹڈ ا ٹیکس�، �ڈ�و�ٹی ا�و�ر محصو�ا�ت کی د میں و�ی خز�ا�ے میں ا�ک ا�م سا�ا�ہ 
 �شر�ا�ت ہے�۔2022 �میں سر�و�س گلو�ل فٹ و�ئر لمیٹڈ ے 254 �ین ر�و�ے ا�س د میں ا�د�ا کئے�۔

�کمپنی کی سما�ی ذ�ہ د�ا�ر�ی 
�سر�و�س گلو�ل فٹ و�ئر لمیٹڈ و سر�و�س ا�ڈ�ٹر�ز لمیٹڈ   �کی طر�ح ا�د�ا�ر�و�ں و عطیا�ت د�نے کی  �ر�و�ا�ت 
�پر عمل کر کہ سما�ی طو�ر پر ا�عو�ر ا�ر�و�ا�ر�ی ا�د�ا�ر�ہ بننے کے ظر�ہ کے سا�ھ تشکیل د�ا یا ہے�۔ پچھلی کئی 
�د�ا�یو�ں کے د�و�ر�ا�ن�، �ر�و�پ صحت ا�و�ر تعلیم میں ا�م فلا�ی ا�و�ں میں شا�ل ر�ا ہے�۔ سر�و�س گلو�ل 
�فٹ و�ئر لمیٹڈ ا مقصد ا�نے ملا�ز�ین�، �ا�ر�ین�، �شیئر ہو�ڈ�ر�ز ا�و�ر متعلقہ آ�ا�د�و�ں کی خد�ت کر�ا 
�ا�و�ر ما�حو�ل کی بہتر�ی کے لیے و�ش کر�ا ہے�۔ کمپنی ا ا�ر�ا�د�ہ ا�کل سا�د�ہ و�ہ ہے: �و�ا�ا�، �خو�حا�ی ا�نا 

�ا�و�ر�ا�حسن طر�قے ے و�گو�ں کی تعمیر�و�تر�ی کر�ے میں د�د کر�ا�۔

�سا�ل کے د�و�ر�ا�ن�، �کمپنی ے سما�ی ذ�ہ د�ا�ر�ی سر�ر�یو�ں کی د میں 4.226�ین ر�و�ے ا عطیہ کیا�۔

�مستقبل پر ا�ک ظر:
�سا�ل 2022 �میں غیر معمو�ی نمو حا�ل ہو ی و سر�و�س گلو�ل فٹ و�ئر لمیٹڈ کی ا�ر�خ میں سب ے 
�ز�ا�د�ہ ہے�۔ ہ نمو فر�و�ت بڑ�ا�ے ا�و�ر نت نئی مصنو�عا�ت کی تیا�ر�ی کی  �پر�و�ش و�ششو�ں کے و�ہ ے 

�حا�ل ہو�ی ہے�، �س و  �پید�ا�و�ا�ر�ی ا�عد�ا�د میں تیز�ی ے تو�یع ے ممکن بنا�ا ہے�۔
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�ڈ�ا�ر ٹر�ز ر�و�ر�ٹ بر�ا�ے صص ا�گا�ن
�سر�و�س گلو�ل فٹ و�ئر لمیٹڈ کے بو�ر�ڈ آ�ف ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر�ز 31 �د�بر 2022 �و تم ہو�ے و�ا�ے ما�ی سا�ل 

�کے آ�ڈ�ٹ شد�ہ سا�ا�ت پر مبنی ر�و�ر�ٹ پیش �کر�ے ہو�ے خو�ی محسو�س کر�ے ہیں�-

�ڈ�ا�ر ٹر�ز ر�و�ر�ٹ کمپنیز ا�یکٹ 2017 �کے سیکشن 227 �کے تحت تیا�ر کی گئی ہے�۔ ہ ر�و�ر�ٹ کمپنی 
�کے سا�ا�ہ ا�لا�س و کہ و�ر�ہ 28 �ا�پر�ل 2023 �و منعقد ہو گا ا�س میں کمپنی کے ممبر�ز و پیش کی 

�جا�ے گی�۔

�سر�و�س گلو�ل فٹ و�ئر لمیٹڈ و�تو�ں کے ا�ر�و�ا�ر میں مہا�ر�ت ر�تا ہے�، �پید�ا�و�ا�ر�ی سہو�یا�ت 
�بر�آ�د�ی منڈ�و�ں کے لیے�و�تو�ں کی مصنو�عا�ت کی تیا�ر�ی پر و�ر�ی طر�ح مر�و�ز ہیں�۔ سر�و�س گلو�ل 
�فٹ و�ئر لم�ی�ٹ�د پا�تا�ن ے و�ے ا سب ے بڑ�ا بر�آ�د کنند�ہ ہے�۔ سر�و�س گلو�ل فٹ و�ئر لمیٹڈ 
�کی یا�د�ی ا�ر�ٹ ما�ر�یٹ آ�ر�ا�م د�ہ و�ے بنا ا  �ہے ا�و�ر ہ کمپنی کی آ�د�ی ا ا�م ذ�ر�عہ ہے�۔ کمپنی ا 

�ر�ٹر�ڈ ہیڈ آ�س سر�و�س ا�ؤ�س -2�ین گلبر�گ�،  �ا�ہو�ر میں و�ا�ع ہے�۔

�ما�ی سا�ل 2021 �ا�و�ر 2022 �کی ا�ر�کر�د�گی ا و�ا�ز�ہ 
31 �د�بر 2022 �و تم ہو�ے و�ا�ے ما�یا�ی نتا�ج کے مقا�لے میں 31 �د�بر 2021 �و تم ہو�ے

 �و�ا�ے سا�ل کے لیے سر�و�س گلو�ل فٹ و�ئر لمیٹڈ کی ما�یا�ی ا�ر�کر�د�گی  �د�ر�ج ذ�ل ہے�۔

2021 2022
�یلا�ت 

�صد تبد�لی �آ�د�ن فر�و�ت ا صد �ر�و�ے ہز�ا�ر میں  �آ�د�ن فر�و�ت ا صد �ر�و�ے ہز�ا�ر میں 

67% �ا�ص فر�و�ت 11,753,088  7,040,157 

77% 18%  1,237,734 19% �ر�و�س منا�ع 2,185,651 

84% 11%  748,636 12% �آ�پر�نگ منا�ع 1,379,204 

20% 8%  572,781 6% �منا�ع قبل ا�ز ٹیکس 687,950 

-15% 6%  403,221 3% �منا�ع بعد ا�ز ٹیکس 342,059 

-20% ی�ز آ�د�ی  1.67  2.10  �
�ئ
�فی �ش

�سر�و�س گلو�ل فٹ و�ئر لمیٹڈ ے  �سا�ل 2022 �کے د�و�ر�ا�ن ا�نے 11.75 �ا�ر�ب ر�و�ے کی  �شا�د�ا�ر 
�آ�د�ن فر�و�ت حا�ل کی و کہ پچھلے سا�ل کی ا�ی د�ت کے مقا�لے میں 66.94 �صد ز�ا�د�ہ ہے�۔ 
�مقا�ی مشکلا�ت�، �ا�ر�تو�ں میں ا�ضا�ے ا�و�ر بڑ�ے پیما�ے پر ا�فر�ا�ط ز�ر کے ا�و�و�د�، �سر�و�س گلو�ل فٹ 
�و�ئر لمیٹڈ ا�نے آ�پر�نگ منا�ع میں گز�تہ سا�ل کے مقا�لے میں 84 �صد ا�ضا�ہ حا�ل کر�ے 
�میں ا�یا�ب ر�ا ہے و کہ 2021 �میں 748 �ین ر�و�ے تھا�ا�و�ر 2022 �میں 1.38 �ا�ر�ب ہے�۔

�سر�و�س ا�گ ما�ر�چ ا�ر�ز )�پر�ا�یو�ٹ( �لمیٹڈ�میں سر�و�س گلو�ل فٹ و�ئر لمیٹڈ�کی سر�ما�ہ ا�ر�ی 
�ے 224 �ین ر�و�ے ا نقصا�ن ہو�ا ہے س ے قبل  �ا�ز  �ٹیکس منا�ع 687 �ین ہو یا ہے و 
�گز�تہ سا�ل کے مقا�لے میں 20 �صد ز�ا�د�ہ ہے�۔ ا�م�، �ا�س سا�ل میں�، �ہمیں ا�ید ہے کہ سر�و�س 

�ا�گ ما�ر�چ ا�ر�ز )�پر�ا�یو�ٹ( �لمیٹڈ منا�ع بخش ر�ہے گا س ے  �سر�و�س گلو�ل فٹ و�ئر لمیٹڈ 
�کے منا�ع پر مثبت ا�ر�ا�ت مر�ب ہو�ں گے�۔

�سر�و�س گلو�ل فٹ و�ئر لمیٹڈ ا�نی منظم حکمت عملی پر عمل د�ر�آ�د کر�ے ہو�ے ے تر�ی کی ر�ا�ہ پر 
�گا�ز�ن ہے ا�و�ر ا�نے صص ا�گا�ن کے لیے قد�ر میں یر ا�ضا�ہ کر�ے کے لیے  �پر�عز�م ہے

�فی شیئر آ�د�ی
31 �د�بر 2022 �و تم ہو�ے و�ا�ے سا�ل کے د�و�ر�ا�ن کمپنی کی فی صص آ�د�ی  1.67 �ر�و�ے ر�ی 
�و گز�تہ سا�ل کے 2.10 �ر�و�ے کے مقا�لے میں 20 �صد کی کمی و ظا�ہر کر�ی ہے�۔ فی شیئر آ�د�ی 
�میں کمی کی یا�د�ی و�و�ا�ت ا�م ما�ل کی قیمتو�ں میں ا�ضا�ہ�، �بین ا�ا�و�ا�ی تر�یل کے ز�ا�د�ہ ا�ر�ا�جا�ت�، 
�ا�و�ر کم ا�ز کم ا�ر�ت میں ا�ضا�ہ شا�ل ہیں�۔ ا�ظا�یہ�،�کمپنی کے منا�ع و بہتر بنا�ے کے لیے ہر�ممکن 

�و�ش کر ر�ی ہے�۔

�کمپنی کی ا�ر�کر�د�گی ا جا�ز�ہ
�بو�ر�ڈ ے کمپنی کی ا�ر�کر�د�گی پر مستقل ظر ر�نے ا ا�ک نظا�م تر�یب د�ا ہے�۔ بو�ر�ڈ ا ہر ر�ن بو�ر�ڈ کی میٹنگ 
�میں مستعد�ی ے ا�نی شمو�یت و یقینی بنا�ا ہے ا�م معا�ملا�ت پر تفصیلی گفتگو ہو�ی ہے ا�و�ر ا�ظا�یہ و و�ا�ح 
 �د�ا�ا�ت د�ی جا�ی ہیں ا�و�ر ا�ن د�ا�ا�ت کے�عمل د�ر�آ�د کر�و�ا�ے پر  �بو�ر�ڈ ا�و�ر کمیٹیا�ں�مستقل ظر ر�تی ہیں ۔

�کمپنی کی ا�ر کر�د�گی ا جا�ز�ہ لینے کے لیے ا�ظا�یہ ے مختلف یا�ر�ا�ت بنا�ر�ھے ہیں جن میں عتی 
�شر�ح نمو�، �م مر�بہ کمپنیو�ں کی و�ر�ت حا�ل �، �گز�تہ سا�و�ں کی ا�ر کر�د�گی ا�و�ر کمپنی پر ا�ر ا�د�ا�ز ہو�ے 

�و�ا�ے مجمو�ی ا�صا�د�ی ا�و�ر ا�ر�و�ا�ر�ی حا�ا�ت شا�ل ہیں�۔ 

�بجٹ بنا�ا جا�ا ہے ا�و�ر ا�ل ا�ر کر�د�گی ا بجٹ ے تقا�لی جا�ز�ہ سا�ل کے د�و�ر�ا�ن ا قا�د�گی ے یا جا�ا ہے 
 �ا�کہ بلا ا�یر ا�صلا�ح کی جا سکے�۔ 

�ا�ظا�یہ ا�س ا�ت و یقینی بنا�ی ہے کہ ا�ر�و�ا�ر کے بہتر�ن طر�قو�ں پر عمل د�ر�آ�د ہو ر�ا ہے�۔ ا�ظا�یہ 
�ا�ر�و�ا�ر کی ا�ر کر�د�گی ا ہر ہ ما�ی کے ا�تا�م پر جا�ز�ہ لیتی ہے�۔ ا�س ا مقصد و�و�د�ہ سا�ل کی ا�ر کر�د�گی 
�ا گز�تہ سا�ل کی ا�ر کر�د�گی ے ا�و�ر�بجٹ ے و�ا�ز�ہ کر�ا  �ا�و�ر�بہتر کر�ا ہے�۔ ز�د ہ کہ کمپنی ے ا�س 

�سا�ل کے د�و�ر�ا�ن کسی بھی ر�ض کی ا�د�ا�گی میں د�ر یں کی�۔

�ر�ک�، �غیر ممکنا�ت ا�و�ر ا�ن ے بچا�و
�کمپنی ا ر�ک مینجمنٹ پر�و�ر�ا�م کمپنی کی ا�ر�ر�د�گی پر ممکنہ مضر ا�ر�ا�ت و کم کر�ے پر مر�و�ز ر�تا ہے ۔ 
�کمپنی کی سینئر ا�ظا�یہ ر�ک مینجمنٹ ا ا�م سر ا�جا�م د�تی ہے ا�و�ر ا�نے نتا�ج�،  �بو�ر�ڈ آ�ف ڈ�ا�ر�ٹر�ز 
�کے سا�نے ر�تی ہے�۔ ا�س ا�ر�ر�و�ا�ی میں حکمت عملی ے متعلقہ�، �ما�ی�، �مر�ل ا�و�ر آ�پر�نل ر�ک کی 

�شنا�ت�، �جا�ز�ہ ا�و�ر ا�سکے ل شا�ل ہیں�۔ 

گ ا�و�ر منصو�ہ 
�ن
ج�ٹ � �یئر ا�ظا�یہ کی ٹیم کمپنی ا�و�ر ا�س کے ا�ر�و�ا�ر�ی شعبو�ں�کیلئے ا�ک ا�ہا�ی تفصیلی �ج

�بند�ی کر�ی ہے س �میں SWOT Analysis �شا�ل ہے�۔ ا�س کی یا�د پر ا�م مسا�ل کے 
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